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PART I
Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K. or thisnsal Report, may contain "forward-looking statersémtithin the meaning of the federal
securities laws made pursuant to the safe harloeigions of the Private Securities Litigation RefioAct of 1995. We have based these forward-
looking statements largely on our current expemtatiand projections about future events and firdt@inds affecting the financial condition of
our business. Forward-looking statements shouldeatad as a guarantee of future performancesoltseand will not necessarily be accurate
indications of the times at, or by, which such perfance or results will be achieved. Forward-loglstatements are based on information
available at the time those statements are maderamdnagement's good faith belief as of that tivith respect to future events, and are subject
to risks and uncertainties that could cause agteiibrmance or results to differ materially fronogle expressed in or suggested by the forward-
looking statements. Our actual results could diffi@terially from those anticipated in these forwknaking statements as a result of various
factors, including those set forth below under Pdtem 1A, "Risk Factors" in this Annual RepoFhese statements, which represent our curren
expectations or beliefs concerning various futwenés, may contain words such as "may," "will," gegt,” "anticipate," "intend," "plan,”
"believe," "estimate” or other words indicatingutg results. Such statements may include, but@rknmited to, statements concerning the
following:

. the initiation, cost, timing, progress and resafteur research and development activities, pragirstudies and future clinic
trials;
. our ability to obtain and maintain regulatory apfdoof our future product candidates, and any eelaestrictions, limitation:

and/or warnings in the label of an approved prodacdidate;

. our ability to obtain funding for our operatiot

. our plans to research, develop and commercializéubure product candidate

. our strategic alliance partners' election to pudesmelopment and commercializatic

. our ability to attract collaborators with developmheregulatory and commercialization expert

. our ability to obtain and maintain intellectual pesty protection for our future product candida

. the size and growth potential of the markets forfature product candidates, and our ability toveghose market:
. our ability to successfully commercialize our figyoroduct candidate

. the rate and degree of market acceptance of aurefproduct candidate

. our ability to develop sales and marketing capidslj whether alone or with potential future cotiediors;

. regulatory developments in the United States areldo countries

. the performance of our th-party suppliers and manufacture

. the success of competing therapies that are omieewailable

. the loss of key scientific or management persor

. our expectations regarding the time during whichwilebe an emerging growth company under the J@BS
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. our use of the proceeds from our recently complitiéid! public offering and private placement; ¢

. the accuracy of our estimates regarding expensesefrevenues, capital requirements and neediftiti@nal financing

Given these uncertainties, you should not placeiemdliance on these forward-looking statementes@torward-looking statements represent
our estimates and assumptions only as of the datésoAnnual Report on Form 10-K and, except agpiited by law, we undertake no obligation
to update or revise publicly any forward-lookingtstments, whether as a result of new informatiatoyré events or otherwise after the date of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We qualify allafr forward-looking statements by these cautiossaements.

Iltem 1. Business.
Our Business

We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutioatgany focused on discovering and developing eegatemonoclonal antibodies to treat severe
and life-threatening diseases with unmet medicatiseWe use our proprietary XmAb technology platféo create next-generation antibody
product candidates designed to treat autoimmunekergic diseases, cancer and other conditionsohtrast to conventional approaches to
antibody design, which focus on the portion of lamdiies that interact with target antigens, we famusghe portion of the antibody that interacts
with multiple segments of the immune system. Tloidipn, referred to as the Fc domain, is constadtiaterchangeable among antibodies. Our
engineered Fc domains, the XmAb technology, careaeily substituted for natural Fc domains. Weéwaiour Fc domains enhance antibody
performance by, for example, increasing immunehibiy activity, improving cytotoxicity or extendincirculating half-life, while maintaining
99.5% identity in structure and sequence to naamtibodies. By improving over natural antibodydtion, we believe that our XmAb-
engineered antibodies offer innovative approachéetting disease and potential clinical advardayer other treatments.

Our business strategy is based on the ghagplay nature of the XmAb technology platforrmtodify features of natural antibodies and
create numerous differentiated antibody productickates. We have internally generated a pipelinetias allowed us to selectively partner
certain development programs while maintaining dwhership of other programs. We also have a numbichnology licenses under which
we have licensed the XmAb technology platform tampfaceutical and biotechnology companies for uselimited number of programs,
providing multiple revenue streams that requirdurther resources from Xencor. There are curreityantibody product candidates in clinical
trials that have been engineered with XmAb techgylincluding four candidates being advanced grisees and development partners.

We were founded in 1997 based on proteginerering technology developed by our co-foundexsss Dahiyat, Ph.D. and Stephen Mayo,
Ph.D. at the California Institute of Technology. Wagan our first therapeutic monoclonal antibodyieeering and discovery programs in 2002
and entered into our first XmAb technology licems004. Our product development partnerships aodrology licenses have provided us
approximately $60 million in cash during the lasefyears, and we have the potential to receivagamegate of approximately $1.3 billion in
milestone payments, in addition to royalties orsalipon successful development and commercializafithe programs contemplated by our
product development partnership and technology$ieeagreements. These potential milestone payrnmehisle $240 million relating to the
achievement of clinical development milestonesprsisent, our XmAb technology platform is protedigd22 U.S. issued patents and 56 U.S.
patent applications, in addition to foreign couptets.
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On December 3, 2013 we closed our initiddlic offering of 14,639,500 shares of common staickn offering price of $5.50 per share,
resulting in net proceeds of approximately $72.Bioni, after deducting underwriting discounts, coissions and offering expenses.

Our internally-generated pipeline incluttes following three lead XmAb-engineered antibodre are currently in development:

. XmADb5871 is being developed for the treatment of autoimmiiseases, including rheumatoid arthritis and lupusses ou
Immune Inhibitor Fc Domain and targets B cellsjraportant component of the immune system. We beldmAb5871 has the
potential to address a key unmet need in autoimrtherapies due to its combination of potent B-t#illbition without B-cell
depletion. We are currently conducting a Phasealdliical trial for XmAb5871 in rheumatoid arthsipatients with active
disease on stable non-biologic DMARD therapy. Wgeex to report preliminary data from this trialtire second half of 2014.
Our partner, Amgen Inc. (Amgen), has an optionciquére an exclusive worldwide license for XmAb58@&gercisable at any tin
before completion of a data review period followmg planned subsequent Phase 2b proof-of-contigftat trial. Until the
option exercise, we lead research, developmentreamdifacturing activities for XmAb5871 with collaladive input and
development support from Amgen. According to theehican College of Rheumatology, rheumatoid arthatid lupus affect
approximately 1.3 million and 160,000 adults in thated States, respectively. Humira, the leadimigoady therapy for
autoimmune diseases, generated sales of approkrat8 billion worldwide in 2012.

. XmAb7195 is being developed for the treatment of severenastéind allergic diseases. It uses our Immune lahibc Domair
and is designed to reduce blood plasma levelsEfidich mediates allergic responses and allerigieade. Its three specific
mechanisms of action give it potential advantages ourrent therapies: (i) increased IgE bindifiyjrthibition of IgE productior
and (iii) rapid clearance of IgE from circulatioe anticipate filing an investigational new drugbgation (IND) with the Unite
States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and aitig a Phase 1a clinical trial in the first hdl26014. We plan to report
preliminary data from this trial at the end of 2024cording to the U.S. Centers for Disease Coranal Prevention (CDC), one
12 Americans has asthma, and there were 1.8 méiinargency room visits caused by asthma in 201@&iXthe leading
antibody therapy for the treatment of severe réfrgcastnma, generated approximately $1.3 billoworldwide sales in 2012.

. XmAb5574/MOR208 is being developed for the treatment of bl-based cancers and uses our Cytotoxic Fc Domainp&rtmer,
MorphoSys AG (MorphoSys), is currently conductingy tPhase 2 clinical trials of XmAb5574/MOR208 irtipats with B-cell
acute lymphoblastic leukemia (B-ALL) and non-Hodgkimphomas (NHL). In addition, an investigator spored Phase 2
clinical trial in chronic lymphocytic leukemia (CI.lis being conducted. According to the Leukemia byrtiphoma Society, over
60,000 Americans are diagnosed with these caneetsyear. Rituxan, the leading antibody therapyNidi., generated
approximately $6.1 billion in worldwide oncologylesiin 2012.
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A summary of the partnered and non-parthpreduct development programs that we have gestenaternally is shown below.

PROGRAM " Fe DOMAIN /. PRIMARY
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£ g Oecology ——— {3 Xencor
E £ fpinmes — O Xencor
25 T80 —a 3 Xencor

* Currently enrolling Phase 2a portion of Phase 1bliaécal trial.

In addition, we have licensed our XmAb teallogy to pharmaceutical and biotechnology comgafaeuse in a limited number of their
programs. These licensees include Boehringer legaliCSL, Janssen, Merck and Alexion, and colletyithese licensees have three Phase 1
clinical development-stage programs and four pirdeal development-stage programs.

Our XmAb Fc domain technology is a platfasfrantibody components that enable the creatidherfaipeutic antibody candidates that have
novel interactions with the human immune and atyr@gulation systems. We have identified a s&ocolomains, each of which is engineered
to have a specific function based on its Fc reedptaling profile, including:

. Immune I nhibitor Fc Domain —selective immune inhibition and rapid target cégere, targeting the receptor ¥RIIb

. Cytotoxic Fc Domain —increased cytotoxicity, targeting the receptory Rilla on natural killer (NK) cells and RcRlla on
other immune system cells

. Xtend Fc Domain —extended antibody helife, targeting the receptor FCRn on endothelidisc

In addition, we have engineered XmAb Fc dim® with other properties, including rapid antigégarance, antibody stability and multiple-
antigen specificity (heterodimer). Each XmAb Fc @damconsists of a naturally occurring Fc domairhveitsmall number of amino acid chang
usually two that we found to be critical for modirig interactions with the desired Fc receptorsthvguch limited modifications of the natural
Fc domain, XmAb-engineered antibodies are typicallgr 99.5% identical in structure and sequencetaral antibodies, simplifying product
development yet enhancing function.




Table of Content

Fc Domain

XmAb Technology:
Engineered Fc Domains

Immune Inhibitor Fe Domain Xiend Fo Domain

Targeted Receptor: FoyRllb Targated Recaptor: FeyRllla, FoyRila Targeted Receptor: FcRna
Therapeutic Use: Autoimmune diseases Therapeutic Use: Oncology Therapeutic Usa: Extends hail-ife,
potentialy improving dosing and efficacy

Key Product Product

Candidate: Candidates:
AmabSETT | AmABTI9E XmAbSST4/ MOR208 _ Muttiplo Partriers
Indications: Indications: Indications: Indications:
Rheumatokd Aathrma [ Abergy B-ALL, NHL, CLL Various
arthritis/Lupus

Our XmAb Technology Platform

We developed the XmAb technology platforonf a systematic effort to engineer the Fc doméantibodies to manipulate its interactions
with a variety of its natural receptors. We usedpatented screening technology, consisting ofrélgns and computer models of the three-
dimensional structure of the Fc domain, to focusfiam the vast number of possibilities, manageabts of possible amino acid changes that
result in small modifications to the Fc domain stane which effect significant changes in antibéalyction and performance.

From this design and screening effort, weehidentified a set of Fc domains, each of whechrgineered with particular amino acid
changes to augment a specific naturally-occurrintdpady function based on its Fc receptor bindinafife:

. Immune I nhibitor Fc Domain —rapid target clearance and selective immune itibibitargeting the receptor dlIb;

. Cytotoxic Fc Domain —increased cytotoxicity, targeting the receptory Rilla on natural killer (NK) cells and RcRlla on
other immune system cells; and

. Xtend Fc Domain —extended ha-life, targeting the receptor FcRn on endothelidlsc

In addition, we have engineered XmAb Fc dim® with other properties, including rapid antigégarance, antibody stability and
multispecificity (heterodimer). Each XmAb Fc domamnsists of a naturally occurring Fc domain wittnzall number of amino acid changes,
usually two that we found to be critical for modirlg interactions with the desired Fc receptorseréfore, XmAb product candidates are ust
over 99.5% identical in structure and sequenceatoral antibodies but have enhanced function. hirest to other engineering approaches for
next-generation antibodies, we believe that ouifgrism minimizes changes to antibody structure whikximizing functional improvement. We
believe this conservative design allows our engeeantibodies to retain the beneficial stabiligarmacokinetics, and ease of discovery of
natural antibodies, as well as to use walidated methods for antibody manufacturing. Wielie we can thereby avoid the problems many
antibody platforms have had in production and dadpility.
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Our XmAb technologies include modified Fanthins that modulate existing immune receptor augons to tailor antibodies for improved
therapeutic use. In the table below, we detaibitogperties of the Fc receptors targeted by our Xrteshnologies:

XmAb Fc Domain Receptor Receptor Type Function Cell Types Disease Are¢
B cells,
other immunt
cell inhibition cells autoimmune
Immune S rapid target liver .
Inhibitor FcyRllb inhibitory clearance sinusoidal various
endothelial
cells
FcyRlla phagocytosis  macrophage
Cytotoxic —_— activating oncology
FcyRllla cytotoxicity NK cells
salvage, antibody endothelial .
Xtend FCcRn transport recycling cells various

I mmune I nhibitor Fc Domain technology

Fey Rllb is an inhibitory receptor that is expressedBocells and other cells. RaRIIb, when engaged by Fc domains, signals insidecét
to block immune response activation pathways, farmgle the B-cell receptor pathway that activategsponse to antigen recognition and
ultimately results in the production of antibodiesantigen. We have focused on this role as anitapbnegative feedback regulator of the B-
cell response, where its biology is well-validatisl. expression and signaling characteristics maade it a difficult target for monoclonal
antibodies, as targeting it by itself does notgeigits inhibitory properties. ReRIIb must be associated with other specific parpmeteins on th
cell surface to activate its inhibitory propertig¢e have circumvented this problem by discoveriagants of the Fc domain with enhanced
binding to Fcy Rllb and designed the Fv domain to target a Bymeitein. This coupling of the two target proteiimssome cases, will trigger the

inhibitory properties of Fg Rllb.

We have discovered a series of/Rtlb immune inhibitor Fc variants with increasedding affinity to Fcy Rllb of up to 400-fold. The
high affinity variant has two amino acid substibuis in the Fc domain and has been applied to coeaitiirst immune inhibitor product
development candidate XmAb5871. This antibody, diesd in greater detail below, targets CD19 on Bsdhrough its variable domain and
recruits Foy RIIb to induce its inhibitory properties. We havewn in several preclinical studies that XmAb58iHilbits B-cell responses to a
variety of stimuli, and we have begun clinical depenent (in partnership with Amgen) on this prodcandidate.

We have also applied this high affinity lnmme Inhibitor Fc Domain to our anti-IgE antibody Xb¥195, which as a result inhibits
activation of only IgE-positive B cells and henaewents production of IgE, a key mediator of aliergsponse. Also, we have discovered an
exciting new mechanism of action mediated by theime Inhibitor Fc Domains. High RRIlb binding causes very rapid clearance from the
circulation of the complexes formed between XmAlY 28d IgE, a property that we believe is uniquermgrigE inhibitor antibodies. This
provides another mechanism to lower the amounirofilating IgE.

The rapid clearance mechanism of Immunébitun Fc Domains offers a highly differentiatingriction for antibodies targeting soluble
antigens, such as IgE, and opens opportunitiethéotechnology beyond B-cell modulation. For example are generating discovery candidates
using Immune Inhibitor Fc Domains to clear pathaidgrgets from circulation.
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Cytotoxic Fc Domain technology

Our Cytotoxic Fc Domain technology considts: series of variant Fc domains that improvelioig to the activating Fgreceptors. This
binding improvement drives increased antibody-ddpancell cytotoxicity (ADCC), a primary mechanisifrantibody cytotoxicity. The lead Fc
variant used in nearly all of our Cytotoxic Fc Damantibody candidates is an Fc domain with tworamacid substitutions that increase affinity
for FcyRllla, the activating receptor expressed on natiligl (NK) cells, by approximately 40-fold. NK Be are cytotoxic lymphocytes of the
innate immune system and play a major role in eation of tumor cells and virally infected cellsuiGCytotoxic Fc Domain also increases
affinity for Fcy Rlla by approximately five-fold, with potential foecruitment of other important effector cells sashmacrophages, which play
a role in both innate and adaptive immunity by dfigg and digesting foreign material. F&llla is considered an important mediator of the
antitumor efficacy of antibodies such as Genengddirceptin (trastuzumab) and Biogenldec/Generst&itixan (rituximab).

Numerous publications have demonstratedhtipertance of Fg receptors for anti-tumor efficacy in mouse modeid also in clinical
studies of Rituxan and Herceptin. We have appligdQytotoxic Fc Domain to a large number of val@h{e.g. Rituxan, Herceptin, Bristol-
Myers Squibb and Eli Lilly and Company's Erbituetieximab)) and unvalidated antibodies, and inadles we have seen a marked increase of
ADCC measured in vitro. We have established thatitotoxic Fc Domain technology increases thetamtior efficacy of antibodies in a
number of mouse models. In primate studies, we Baea/n that our anti-CD19 antibody XmAb5574/MOR2@8jch incorporates our
Cytotoxic Fc Domain, depletes monkey B cells whereaimilar anti-CD19 antibody with an unmodifiedddomain did not successfully kill B
cells.

In Phase 1 clinical studies, antibodie®iporating our Cytotoxic Fc Domain, for example #umAb2513 against CD30 in Hodkgin's
lymphoma, have shown tumor reduction response cat@parable or superior to response rates in fhddiseports of non-Fc engineered
antibodies against the same target cells. Sevartaigrs and licensees are using our Cytotoxic Foddo in their oncology antibodies, including
four programs currently in clinical trials.

Xtend Fc Domain technology

Our Xtend Fc Domain technology consistt@flomains designed to increase binding affinittheoreceptor FcRn. FcRn is present inside
lysosomes in endothelial cells lining the bloodseds and functions to rescue antibodies from tiyeadkation that makes most proteins short-
lived in circulation. As a result of interactionghvFcRn, all antibodies have half-lives rangingnfra few days to a few weeks, allowing less
frequent dosing for antibody drugs than most olfi@logics. We have engineered a series of Fc vigriduat increase binding of the Fc domail
FcRn to enhance FcRn-mediated rescue and theretase circulating half-life. Our lead Xtend Fc Dmmhas two amino acid substitutions
and has shown up to three-fold increases ofvo half-life for a number of different antibodies ironkey models.

We believe extension of half-life can bgleked to improve therapeutic antibody performaincseveral ways:

. Increased dosing interval, providing superior pdat@nvenience and likely compliance. Such a redfi@guency of dosing als
results in lower drug use in aggregate, reducirgg abgoods.

. Lower drug quantities at the same dosing intergdaha parent antibody. This can simplify dosagenfdation and sometime
enable subcutaneous formulation. Cost of goodsdgaed as well.

. Higher drug levels using the same dose and dosiegval as the parent antibody, resulting in lordrelg exposure and potentie
translating to better efficacy.
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We have licensed Xtend Fc Domain technologgeveral biopharmaceutical companies who arggusiend Fc Domains to both improve
existing antibody drugs and to create new drugs leitg half-lives.

Additional XmAb Fc domains

We continue to design Fc domain variantsfzave identified improved functions in additionthese described above. Our goal is to remain
at the forefront of antibody engineering by using expertise in Fc domain engineering to create fo@ations for use in antibody therapeutics.
We have Fc variants that improve complement-depgrggotoxicity. Other Fc variants have been engiad to eliminate binding to all Rc
receptors, thereby creating Fc domains that haveytmoxic effector function at all. Such domairessé important use in therapeutics where no
effector function is desired.

We have created Fc variants that form befereric Fc domains that enable the creation gfdwsic antibodies that have different Fv
domains on each side of the Fc domain in ordeind to a different antigen with each of their Fwntiins. For example, we can readily create
bispecific antibodies that bind both CD3 and a tuartigen in order to recruit cytotoxic T cellsth@ tumor cell. Because of the Fc domain,
these bispecific antibodies retain the long h&f-4ind ease of production typical of standard adiis. We have generated a number of
bispecific antibody discovery programs using ourAnheterodimer Fc domains and have demonstratec thigpecific antibody built on these
Fc domains is active in primate models.

Antibody Fv domain engineering capabilities

We have developed tools to engineer huredrend fully human, high-affinity antibody Fv domsi Usually starting from a mouse
antibody Fv domain, we analyze its amino acid segeieomputationally to find the best matches witmlan antibody sequences, which we
substitute into the murine Fv domain to createbadties with very high human sequence content. @pircach preserves the structural integrity
of the antibody and maintains binding to antigere &ls0 perform antigen affinity enhancement by aatiaionally filtering sequence changes
and generating small, focused libraries of Fv vdasidhat we screen for tighter binding. All of anternally discovered candidates, including
XmAb5871, XmAb7195 and XmAb5574/MOR208, were getexfaising these tools.

Lead XmAb Product Candidates

Worldwide
Commercial Stage of
Candidate Indication Fc Domain Rights Development Next Steps
XmAb5871 lupus and Immune Inhibitor Xencor (Amgen  Phase 1b/2a Preliminary data
rheumatoid option upon ongoing expected 2H 201:
arthritis Phase 2b POC Phase 2b POC tri
data) planned first half
of 2015
XmAb7195 asthma and Immune Inhibitor Xencor preclinical IND filing plannec
allergic diseases 1H 2014 Phase la
trial planned 1H
2014
XmAb5574/MOR20¢€  B-cell cancers Cytotoxic MorphoSys Phase 2 trials Phase 2 trials for
ongoing other indications*
Phase 3 clinical
trials*
* Timing and trial design for future clinical triis be determined by MorphoSys.
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XmADb5871, a B-cell Inhibitor for the Treatment of Autoimmune Diseases

Overview of XmAb5871

XmAb5871 is a monoclonal antibody for theatment of autoimmune diseases that uses our ledminibitor Fc Domain to target ke
RIIb, an inhibitory receptor expressed on B cefid ather immune cells, and through its Fv domaigetess CD19, which is expressed on all B
cells. By simultaneously targeting the B-cell pioge CD19 and Fg Rllb, XmAb5871 has an ability to engage the natumaibitory pathway
provided by Fo/ Rllb, preventing further activation of B cells bytaantigens and potentially also suppressing tigyatf B cells to further
provoke downstream autoimmune responses from $.¢elD19 and Fg Rllb are expressed broadly throughout B-cell dgwelent, so we
expect that XmAb5871 will confer broad suppressibB-cell activation and downstream events sucardgbody production. We have
demonstrated that XmAb5871 inhibits B-cell functiormultiple animal models and in initial humamatial trials without destroying these
important immune cells, in contrast to other B-talbeting therapies, such as Rituxan, that aackdestroy B cells. We believe the
combination of potent inhibition without B-cell defion, which can lead to opportunistic infectiohas the potential to address a key unmet
need in autoimmune therapies. The coupling betv@i2t9 and Fg Rllb, mediated by XmAb5871, promotes a strong riegatignal in the B
cell, preventing its activation and potentially édong disease pathology in a variety of autoimmane inflammatory conditions by broadly
blocking all B-cell populations. XmAb5871 is thesti potential therapy that we are aware of thaetsr Foy RIIb inhibition.

{B} Matural
Feedback Inhibition

ControBed Immune
Riesponsa

I:'E"'} Hatural

Immiung Responss

Immunity and
Autoimmaunity

oL

{C} HenAbSETY
Therapoutic InhibiHion

FeyRilh :m&:
B call : —

Inhibitad Immune
Fesponse

Therapeutic Inhibition by XmAb5871 Mimics Natural Pathways. (A) B-cell responses against antigen leéal antibody secretion, resulting in immunity and insome
cases autoimmunity. (B) Excess antibodies producén the B-cell response can engage both the antigand the inhibitory receptor Fc yRIIb on the B-cell surface,
acting to control the immune response. (C) XmAb587nimics the natural feedback inhibition by targeting CD19, rather than the antigen, on the Bell surface and
recruiting Fc yRIIb to inhibit activation of the targeted B cell.

In December 2010, we entered into a coliatian and option agreement with Amgen for XmAb583(rring the option period, which
expires upon completion of a data review periotbfeing our planned Phase 2b proof-of-concept (P@i@jcal trial, we lead research,
development and manufacturing activities for XmABS8vith collaborative input and development supfrartn Amgen. Under the agreement,
Amgen paid us an upfront payment and early devedopmilestones and is
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obligated to pay additional milestones, both betord after payment of an option exercise fee, apdlties on sales following an exercise of the
option by Amgen. If Amgen exercises its option @agts the option exercise fee, it will be solelypassible for the costs associated with the
further development, commercialization, manufactdigtribution, marketing and promotion of XmAb5871

Clinical Development Summary

The clinical trial application for XmAb58%tas approved by the United Kingdom Medicines amdltticare Products regulatory agency in
September 2011. To date, all clinical developmenXimAb5871 has been conducted in western andaldaarope. We plan to file an IND for
XmAb5871 with the FDA in 2015. In December 2012, aeenpleted a Phase 1a clinical trial in healthymtders and XmAb5871 was observed
to be well tolerated and to have promising immuppsessive activity based on several biomarkersrebdeduring the trial. Currently, we are
conducting a Phase 1b/2a clinical trial in rheundbgothritis patients with active disease on statae-biologic DMARD therapy to study safety,
pharmacokinetics and XmAb5871's effect on rheurdaddiritis disease response.

Further Clinical Development

We initiated a Phase 1b/2a clinical trieKenAb5871 in January 2013. This clinical trialasnulti-center, randomized, placebo-controlled,
double-blinded, multiple ascending dose study efdéifety, tolerability, pharmacokinetics and phaiodgnamics of XmAb5871 in rheumatoid
arthritis (RA) patients with active disease on katon-biologic DMARD therapy. The primary objediof this clinical trial is to determine the
safety and tolerability profile of every 14-day, ltiple dose, intravenous administration of XmAb58i batients with RA. Secondary objectives
are (1) to characterize the pharmacokinetics amdunogenicity of intravenously administered XmAb58&7 patients with RA and (2) to
evaluate the effect of XmAb5871 on RA disease nesp@s measured by changes in Disease ActivityeSX®using C-reactive protein (DAS28-
CRP) at Week 13 for the Phase 2a part of thisaglririal. Our planned clinical trials include artravenous to subcutaneous bridging study in
humans to prepare for subcutaneous administrationri future clinical trials. We believe that a sutaneous formulation will be more
commercially attractive and convenient for patieSsveral subcutaneous formulations are being dpedlin collaboration with Amgen and
should be compatible with auto-injector devicesdoses in the 1-3 mg/kg range. We expect to ieithalr Phase 2b POC clinical trial in the first
half of 2015 and expect to enroll 150-200 modetaisevere rheumatoid arthritis patients on stabABRD therapy. This clinical trial is
designed to assess efficacy at 24 weeks. We ettptaiata from this trial, if positive, will supggivotal Phase 3 clinical trials in rheumatoid
arthritis and lupus.

XmAb7195, an IgE Inhibitor for the Treatment of Asthma and Allergic Diseases
Overview

XmAb7195 is an anti-IgE antibody engineei@deduce IgE levels for the treatment of asthnthather atopic diseases. Its three specific
mechanisms of action give it potential advantages ourrent therapies: increased IgE affinity, bitidn of the transition of B cells to IgE-
secreting cells and rapid clearance of IgE frorautation.

. XmAb7195 is a humanized a-IgE antibody with an Fv domain that targets theesdgit epitope as Xolair, which is validatec
block IgE. XmAb7195's affinity for IgE is approxitady three times higher than that of Xolair. Weide that this contributes to
the increased suppression of IgE observed in adlipical studies.
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. XmAb7195, in contrast to Xolair, has our Immuneibitor Fc Domain that has a 4-fold higher affinity than natural antibodi
for Fcy RIIb. XmAb7195 and XmAb5871 have the same Fc domaih XmAb7195, unlike XmAb5871, inhibits only IgE-
positive B cells. By binding to FgRIIb on IgE-positive B cells, XmAb7195 suppresdesirtactivation and differentiation into
IgE-secreting plasma cells. This binding reduc&spgpduction, a mechanism not seen with Xolair, atichately lowers IgE
levels in the blood.

. In our preclinical primate and other animal studies observed rapid reductions in IgE levels, dvem the highl-elevatec
levels found in chimpanzees, and rapid clearandégfrom circulation. We did not observe any cégare or such magnitude of
reduction with Xolair. This suggests a new mechara$ action in which high FgRIlb binding causes very rapid clearance of
complexes formed between XmAb7195 and IgE in therliwe believe XmAb7195 binds to F&lIlb expressed in cells lining t
blood vessels in the liver which take up and degthed XmAb7195 IgE complex.

These three mechanisms lead to levelsrafrségE below gquantifiable levels in preclinicalimipanzee studies and offer the potential for
superior IgE control and superior clinical efficalye believe the limitations of current treatmeithvXolair can be overcome with XmAb7195,
and that superior IgE control means our productlickte can potentially treat a larger populatiothvguperior efficacy.

Clinical Development Plans

We plan to file an IND for XmAb7195 for heta with the FDA and to initiate a Phase 1a clinidal in the first half of 2014 and to report
preliminary data at the end of 2014. The Phaséntgesascending dose clinical trial in healthy wdkers will include parallel cohorts in
allergen-sensitive subjects with high IgE levelsisTclinical trial will be designed to study safetyd pharmacokinetics in humans and validate
XmAb7195's ability to suppress both free and tiggl levels. If the Phase 1a clinical trial is sugsfal, we anticipate starting a Phase 1b mul
ascending dose clinical trial of XmAb7195 in hegl#uult volunteers and in patients with mild-to-recate asthma in early 2015 to study safety,
pharmacokinetics, and IgE reduction. We have receoorrespondence from the FDA in response to-#iNibemeeting request that concurred
with our Phase 1 clinical trial plan, pending revief a full IND submission. Following the Phaseatad 1b clinical trials, we anticipate initiating
a Phase 2 POC clinical trial of XmAb7195 for intediate-term treatment of patients with poorly-cold asthma, which we expect will
include patients with high IgE levels and/or higidp mass. We expect the dosing for this clinidal to be based on data from the Phase 1
clinical trials.

XmAb5574/MOR208, a Cytotoxic B-cell Depleting Prodat Candidate for the Treatment of B-cell Cancers
Overview

XmAb5574/MOR208 is a monoclonal antibodsgtttargets CD19 and incorporates our Cytotoxic BmBin technology for killing of
malignant B cells. XmAb5574/MOR208 was discovergdib and is now being developed by MorphoSys, fauntsto a collaboration and licen
agreement that we entered into in June 2010. Whikagreement, we granted MorphoSys an exclusoré&dwide license to
XmAb5574/MOR208 for all indications. We were resgibte for completing a Phase 1 clinical trial of Kb5574/MOR208 in CLL, which was
completed in January 2013. MorphoSys is solelyoesible, at its own cost, for all other developrmemi commercialization activities.
MorphoSys commenced Phase 2 clinical trials inepdgi with B-ALL and NHL, in April and May 2013, gectively.

We humanized XmAb5574/MOR208 with our pretary technology and applied our Cytotoxic Fc Damta enhance binding to the hun
Fc receptors FgRIlla and Foy Rlla, thereby enhancing
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recruitment of natural killer (NK) cells and otHery R-bearing effector cells. We applied further engiirgg to the CD19-binding Fv domain of
XmAb5574/MOR208 to enhance its affinity over 10efdbr human CD19, and also increased its affirstyrthonkey CD19, enabling monkey
toxicology and efficacy studies.

CD19 is an alternative target to CD20 tiaat be used in salvage regimens for patients gaifiituxan. Further, CD19 is expressed on the B
cell surface earlier in development and persisigdo through Bzell maturation. Therefore, XmAb5574/MOR208 mayabée to target a broad
spectrum of lymphoid malignancies, such as ALL bt Gvhere Rituxan's efficacy may be limited. Fiyalve believe that combination therapy
of XmAb5574/MOR208 with immunomodulatory agents;isas lenalidomide, and/or new chemotherapy agefiéss the potential for superior
efficacy to existing therapies.

kil

FevyRllla

XmAbS5T4/
MORZ08

Malignant B Cell Natural Killer Cell
(CLL, ALL, NHL, ...)

XmAb5574 recruits Natural Killer cells to malignant B cells to promote their destruction.
Further Clinical Development

Based on the Phase 1 clinical trial resiisrphoSys decided to continue the developmebtnoAb5574/MOR208 and has initiated two
Phase 2 clinical trials of XmAb5574/MOR208 in patewith ALL and NHL, respectively. The Phase 2idl trial in ALL began in April 2013
and is an open-label, multicenter, single-arm céihtrial designed to assess efficacy in patientfesng from relapsed or refractory B-ALL.
Secondary outcome measures include response dyrsaifety and pharmacokinetics of XmAb5574/MOR2A8otal, 30 patients are planned
be enrolled. The Phase 2 clinical trial in NHL begaMay 2013 and is an open-label, multicenterglgi-arm clinical trial designed to assess the
efficacy of XmAb5574/MOR208 in patients with relapsor refractory NHL. Secondary outcome measurgdade response duration, safety and
pharmacokinetics of XmAb5574/MOR208. A total oftepl20 patients are planned to be enrolled in $eparate sub-indications (follicular
lymphoma, MCL, diffuse large B-cell lymphoma, arttier forms of NHL). In addition, an investigatgponsored Phase 2 clinical trial in CLL
a combination therapy with lenalidomide began imu2ay 2014. Additional clinical trials in other Bitmalignancies and in combination with
chemotherapy are possible and will be conductéigeatliscretion of and under the control of MorphaSy

Our Research and Development Pipeline

We have used our various Fc platforms amitbedy optimization capabilities to produce a girmgvpipeline of development candidates.
These include new Immune Inhibitor Fc Domain caat#id designed to remove target antigens from eitioal and multiple oncology candida
using our CD3 bispecifics platform. We will conteto progress these candidates as additional apfiborclinical development by us or as out-
licensing opportunities to generate additional nexe
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Applying the rapid clearance property of the Immune Inhibitor Fc Domain

We are exploring multiple new candidateaagpis for application of our Immune Inhibitor FcrBain, in particular capitalizing on the
newly discovered rapid clearance property, whicltdbuoff the natural scavenging role of ¥RIIb on liver sinusoidal endothelial cells. For
example, building on our lead anti-IgE product ddate, XmAb7195, we are now characterizing a segmmkration antibody with a modified
version of the llb immune inhibitor domain. The nBwdomain has intermediate affinity enhancemenk&y Rllb, which we have discovered
promotes IgE control in mouse models with a lordgsing interval than XmAb7195. We are also exppapproaches to clear pathologic
immune complexes from circulation. Immune complex@scentral to the kidney pathology in lupus nijsheind a variety of other conditions
and form when antigens present in the circulatienracognized by antibodies of the immune system.

CD3 bispecifics for oncology

Using our XmAb heterodimeric Fc domains,are generating several tumor-targeted bispedifibadies that contain a tumor antigen
binding domain and a CD3 binding domain. Our platf@nables the creation of Fc-containing bispegifiat recruit T-cells via CD3 binding to
kill tumor cells targeted by the antigen bindingrdon. The inclusion of an Fc domain provides a piéimprovement in half-life over first-
generation bispecifics such as the Micromet (Amd&nhE technology, which require continuous infusidure to their extremely short half-life.
We have produced a CD3 binding bispecific antibtbdy targets CD19, which demonstrates in primatdetsogood tolerability, a multi-day
half-life and sustained target cell depletion frarsingle dose. We have produced a first preclimaalidate targeting CD38 and confirmed the
multi-day half-life in mouse models that is typicdlistandard antibodies, and have produced a squectinical candidate targeting CD123. We
are creating a stable cell line for production pteh to perform activity studies in monkeys in ttear future. Additional development candidates
against additional tumor targets are in discovery.

Second Generation Biologics

Our Xtend Fc Domain technology can potdigtismprove the performance of commercially sucéaistherapeutic antibodies by enhancing
their half-life and improving dosing conveniencee Wave produced several enhanced versions of digijdn some cases simply applying the
Xtend Fc Domain mutations, and in other casesratsgifying other features. AbbVie's Humira (adalimabjis the industry-leading anti-TNF
antibody for the treatment of rheumatoid arthriteaching global sales above $5 billion. We hawelpced and characterized a Hd#f-enhance
version of Humira that we call Xtend-TNF (also kmoas XmAb6755). It has approximately twice thevivo half-life of Humira, which is dosed
on a biweekly schedule, and we believe Xtend-TN$-tha potential to achieve monthly dosing in rhetaidearthritis patients without loss of
efficacy. A stable cell line has been created aachave a business relationship with Boehringerlh&ien to manufacture Xtend-TNF drug
supply for preclinical toxicology and clinical sied.

A second enhanced rheumatoid arthritis dswyr Xtend-CTLA4, a CTLA-4-Fc fusion that we iesle improves on the performance of
Orencia. Orencia had initially inconvenient monthigravenous dosing, but after approval of weeldlgcsitaneous dosing, global sales are now
approaching $1 billion annually. We applied therXtd=c Domain to our proprietary CTLA-4 fusion, amhing a 40% improvement in hdife in
monkeys, and applying our engineering capabilitiessnhanced affinity for its target CD86 by at t&2G-fold. Monkey studies comparing
Xtend-CTLA4 to abatacept showed that Xtend-CTLAd kignificantly superior immunosuppression andgbtential for monthly subcutaneous
dosing in humans.
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Product Development Partnerships, Other Commerciahgreements and Technology Licenses

We use product development partnershigs phiarmaceutical and biotechnology companies tgptemment our internal drug discovery and
development capabilities, to assist the efficidabgl commercialization of our products and tecbggland to generate near and long-term
funding. To date, the revenue generated from upfiess, license fees, option fees and milestonenpats associated with these arrangements,
combined with the development expenses assumedryyantners, have allowed us to better manage menating expenses and continue to
invest in building new opportunities.

Below is a table summarizing our materialdoct development agreements and exclusive techndicenses:

Current
Licensed Development
Partner Year Antibody/Technology Indication Milestones  Royalties Stage
Product
Development
Partnerships
Amgen 201cC XmAb5871 Autoimmune Yes Yes Phase :
diseast clinical
MorphoSys 201C XmAb5574/MOR20! Oncology Yes Yes Phase @
clinical
Technology
License:
Alexion 201z Xtend technolog Various Yes Yes Preclinical

Collaboration and Option Agreement with Amgen

In December 2010, we entered into a colialimn and option agreement with Amgen Inc. (Amgamsuant to which we agreed to
collaborate with Amgen to research, develop andneerialize XmAb5871, an Fc-engineered monoclongibady that targets CD19 via its Fv
domains and FgRIIb via its XmAb Fc domain, and products basedebr. Under the terms of the agreement, we grantédhgen an
exclusive license to research, develop, manufaetmdecommercialize XmAb5871 and certain relatedipcts worldwide, which license is
exercisable by Amgen only after Amgen's (1) nadificn to us that it is electing to exercise thenise and (2) payment of a $50.0 million option
exercise fee to us during the option period. Th@ameriod began when we received the upfront trfrom Amgen and ends on the earliest
to occur of (a) the 9® day after delivery by us of a clinical trial reppackage from the Phase 2 POC clinical trial tiig)termination of the
agreement, and (c) March 23, 2017 (or March 2312022mgen exercises an option to take over ceraipects of development due to our
failure to perform certain development obligatiori3)iring the option period and prior to Amgen eigng its option under the agreement, we
are required to use reasonably diligent effortsaiaduct development activities through completiba BOC trial. We are currently leading
research, development and manufacturing activitieXmAb5871 with collaborative input and developmheupport from Amgen and have
established a joint development committee to gotteerdevelopment activities of XmAb5871 which megtarterly regarding the ongoing
development program we are leading. If Amgen egercits option and pays the option exercise feeruhé agreement, the exclusive
worldwide license to research, develop and commakzei XmAb5871 granted to Amgen under the agreemvéhibecome effective, and Amgen
will thereafter have the right to control, and vii# solely responsible for the costs associatdd, Wie development, commercialization,
manufacture, distribution, marketing, promotion atider exploitation of XmAb5871 and products babenteon.

Under the terms of the agreement, we recdean initial upfront payment of $11.0 million.addition, if Amgen exercises its option, and if
specified clinical, regulatory and sales milestoaesachieved, we are entitled to milestone paysneiap to $439.0 million in the aggregate,
$2.0 million of which we received from Amgen updre tinitiation of our Phase 1b/2a clinical trialXhAb5871 in January 2013 in patients w
moderate to severe rheumatoid arthritis. The aultiti$437.0 million of milestone payments is corsgdi as follows: a total of $62.0 million
relates to clinical development
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milestone events; a total of $150.0 million reldtethe filing and completion of regulatory apprisvand a total of $225.0 million relates to the
achievement of certain product sale goals. If keghproducts are successfully commercialized, @alao entitled to receive tiered royalties in
the high single-digit to the high-teen percent mbhgsed upon net sales of products by Amgen filiaigfs and its sublicensees in a calendar
year, subject to minimum annual royalty payments ather adjustments in certain circumstances. dhelties payable by Amgen under
agreement may be increased if we elect to con&rituAmgen's development costs under the agreedengen's royalty obligations continue
a product-by-product and country-by-country basitil the later to occur of the expiration of thetko-expire valid claim in a licensed patent
covering the applicable product in such countryl@iears after the first commercial sale of sucidpct in such country.

The term of this agreement will continudiluadl of Amgen's royalty payment obligations haseired or upon expiration of the option
period if Amgen has not exercised the option. Tgre@ment provides that it may be terminated byeeitlarty upon the other party's insolvency
or the other party's material breach of the agre¢fsuch breach remains uncured for 90 daysQaile8/s in the case of a non-payment breach.
Amgen may terminate the agreement without causa @palays' advance written notice to us. If Amgeallenges the validity of a patent
relating to XmAb5871, then we may terminate thissaghent immediately. In the event that Amgen teateis this agreement for convenience or
we terminate due to Amgen's material breach, waddwights to develop, manufacture and commera@alimAb5871 will revert back to us
completely. Along with these rights, Amgen is obligd to transfer all regulatory documents, clindzth and know-how, and we are granted a
license from Amgen to allow us to develop, manufeectand commercialize XmAb5871 worldwide withouy dinancial obligations to Amgen.

Collaboration and License Agreement with MorphoSys AG

In June 2010, we entered into a collabonaéind license agreement with MorphoSys AG (Morpisp®hich we subsequently amended in
March 2012. We granted to MorphoSys an exclusivddmade license under certain of our patents aralakhow to research, develop and
commercialize XmAb5574/MOR208, as well as othei-&m019 antibodies that incorporate our cytotoxic Bondin technology, with the right
sublicense under certain conditions. Under thederhthe agreement, we agreed to collaborate withpkbSys to develop and commercialize
XmAb5574/MOR208, a high potency cytotoxic monoclaaaibody developed by us for the treatment afé-malignancies and other disea:
Under the terms of the agreement, we initiatedspathsored a Phase 1 clinical trial for XmAb5574/MBDR in patients with chronic
lymphocytic leukemia in December 2010 which was plated in January 2013. Following such completMorphoSys is responsible for all
further clinical development and commercializatoficensed antibodies and licensed products utideagreement and is required to use
commercially reasonable efforts to achieve cerdawvelopmental and regulatory milestones and otlfigedce obligations under the agreement.
In addition, MorphoSys is responsible for all castaiting to the development and commercializatibKmAb5574/MOR208, or other
antibodies covered by the agreement, including fi@gtwring, regulatory, clinical and registratiorst®

Under the terms of the agreement, we redean upfront payment of $13.0 million and recei$8d million for development milestones in
2013. If certain developmental, regulatory andsaldestones are achieved, we are also eligibtedeive up to an additional $299.0 million in
milestone payments. The $299.0 million of milestpagments is comprised as follows: $62.0 millickates to clinical development milestone
events, $187.0 million relates to the filing andngbetion of regulatory approvals and an additid%0.0 million of aggregate milestone
payments relate to the achievement of certain mtoghle goals. If licensed products are commergd|iwe are also entitled to receive tiered
royalties in the high single-digit to low-teen pemt range based upon net sales of products sditbbpyhoSys, its affiliates and its sublicensees
in a calendar year. MorphoSys' royalty obligationstinue on a licensed product-by-licensed produadtcountry-by-country basis until the later
to occur

16




Table of Content

of the expiration of the last valid claim in thednsed patent covering a licensed product in soghtry, or 11 years after the first sale of a
licensed product following marketing authorizatiarsuch country.

The term of this agreement will continudiluadl of MorphoSys' royalty payment obligationaue expired unless terminated earlier. The
agreement provides that it may be terminated theejparty upon written notice to the other partyhi@ event of the other party's insolvency or
the other party's material breach of the agreemsnth breach remains uncured for 120 days, a&8® in the case of a non-payment breach.
MorphoSys may terminate the agreement without capsa 90 days' advance written notice to us. Iretrent that MorphoSys terminates this
agreement for convenience or we terminate due tgpMiSys' material breach, worldwide rights to depemanufacture and commercialize
XmAb5574/MOR208, as well as any other antibodiegeced by the agreement, revert back to us compledébng with these rights,
MorphoSys is obligated to transfer all regulatooguments, clinical data and know how, and we aaatgd a license from MorphoSys to allow
us to develop, manufacture and commercialize XmAdBBAOR208, or other antibodies covered by the agess, worldwide, subject to
reimbursing MorphoSys a portion of their develophmsts out of future revenue generated from thveldpment and commercialization of
XmAb5574/MOR208.

Option and License Agreement with Alexion

In January 2013, we entered into an opdiuth license agreement with Alexion Pharmaceutitads,(Alexion). Under the terms of the
agreement, we granted to Alexion an exclusive rebd&ense, with limited sublicensing rights, take and use our Xtend technology to
evaluate and advance compounds against six diffeasget programs during a five-year research temaer the agreement, up to completion of
the first multidose human clinical trial for each target compouidxion may extend the research term for an amluiti three years upon writt
notice to us and payment of an extension fee df B@llion. Alexion is responsible for conductind edsearch and development activities under
the agreement at its own expense.

In addition, we granted to Alexion an esile option, on a target-by-target basis, to obaairexclusive commercial, worldwide, royalty-
bearing license, with sublicensing rights, underXtend technology to develop and commercializedpots that contain the target for which the
option is exercised. In order to exercise thisaptAlexion must pay a $4.0 million option fee witspect to each target for which the option is
exercised. Alexion may exercise this option at timg during the research term.

Under the agreement, we received an upfrapment of $3.0 million. Alexion is also requiredpay an annual maintenance fee of
$0.5 million during the research term of the agreeinand $1.0 million during any extension of theeagch term. In addition, if certain
development, regulatory and commercial milestomeseahieved, we are eligible to receive up to $&@lbon for the first product to achieve
such milestones on a target-tayget basis. If licensed products are successtoligmercialized, we are also entitled to receiyalt@es based o
a percentage of net sales of such products soidexjon, its affiliates or its sublicensees, whjpércentage is in the low single digits. Alexion's
royalty obligations continue on a product-by-pradared country-by-country basis until the expiratidrthe last-to-expire valid claim in a
licensed patent covering the applicable produsuich country.

Absent early termination, the term of tigee@ment will continue until the expiration of Alex's royalty payment obligations or until the
expiration of the research term if Alexion has ex¢rcised its option for a product license underagreement. Either party may terminate the
agreement for a material breach of the agreemetitebgther party if such breach remains uncure@@odays, or 30 days in the case of a non-
payment breach. Alexion may terminate the agreemihbut cause on a target-by-target basis upode§8' advance written notice to us.
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Collaboration Agreement with Boehringer Ingelheim

In February 2012, we entered into a collabon agreement with Boehringer Ingelheim Inteoral GmbH (BI) for the establishment of
certain manufacturing processes and the produofionr next generation monoclonal anti-TNF antibéalyuse in our preclinical and Phase 1
clinical development. Under the terms of the agme@imwve are required to use commercially reasoreffidets to complete Phase 1 clinical
testing of the product and to find a licensing partfor the further development and commercialimatf the antibody into a therapeutic product.

We will be required to pay for servicesfpened and products provided by Bl under the agesgmursuant to project plans entered into
from time to time. In addition, we are requiredeéamburse BI for all out-of-pocket expenses, inatgdthe cost of raw materials, incurred in
connection with the project plan. Bl has agreedeiay all payments due to them under the agreenmehiding an annual interest rate which
low double digit percentage, until (A) in the cadgere we have entered into a license agreementavtiitd party, the later of (1) the effective
date of such license agreement or (2) the earli@y completion of the clinical summary report f@Phase 1 clinical trial of the product or
(i) February 10, 2017 or (B) in the case wheredeeide to continue to develop the product on our,am or before five years from the earlier
of (i) completion of the clinical summary report o Phase 1 clinical trial of the product or (igldfuary 10, 2017. Any payments due by us ir
situation described in clause (A) of the precediegtence will be made in installments each of whithbe limited to a maximum percentage
any licensing revenue that we receive under thécaigbe third-party license. We are not obligateghay Bl any or all of the amounts owed
under the agreement, including interest paymenteif(a) are not able to further develop the proflrctechnical or scientific reasons or (b) do
not decide to proceed with the further developneétite product without a business partner and aable to enter into a partnership agreement
within an agreed upon period of time after Phasknical development.

Pursuant to the agreement, we have graitadirst right to negotiate to manufacture anggy the products for use in any future Phase 2
and Phase 3 clinical trials, and should Bl exersiggh right, Bl has a first right to negotiate tarmafacture and supply commercial product as
principal supplier for an agreed upon period follagvthe first commercial launch of the productstia event that we desire to produce the
products using the process developed and perfooy@&l outside the agreement or any manufacturirgegent which we may enter into with
BI, we will be required to pay Bl a one time teclugy access fee of $3.5 million in exchange foraldwide, irrevocable, exclusive and roye
free license, with sublicensing rights, to useptecess developed by Bl under the agreement taipeothe products.

Absent early termination, the agreemenittetiminate upon completion of all projects settdn the agreement. Either party may terminate
the agreement upon 180 days prior written notiddeoother party if such party will not be ablectory out the project contemplated by the
agreement for scientific, technical or businessoga. Either party may also terminate by writteticeato the other party if the other party
breaches the agreement in any material manneclif lsreach remains uncured for 30 days followingdteminotice from the terminating party.

As of December 31, 2013 BI has provideevitk material for IND enabling toxicology studiesdadrug product for early stage clinical
studies.

Clinical Supply Agreement with Cook Pharmica

In October 2012, we entered into a clinggdply agreement with Cook Pharmica, LLC (Cook)der the terms of the agreement, Cook
agreed to produce and supply drug substance agdododuct for use in our clinical studies and perfeelated services, and we granted to
Cook, its affiliates and subcontractors a non-esigkilicense to use certain of our intellectualpemty and confidential information for the
purpose of performing obligations under the agregm@ook is

18




Table of Content

currently performing services related to the maciufiie under current good manufacturing practic€v(e) of drug substance of XmAb7195
under the agreement.

We pay for services performed and drug tsuize provided by Cook under the agreement pursagmbject plans entered into from time
time. In addition, we are required to reimburse ICfay all pass-through and out-of-pocket costs gjgecin each project plan, plus an additional
percentage mark-up on certain of such costs, whécbentage is in the low double digits.

Absent early termination, the agreemenittetiminate five years after the effective dat@vied that the agreement will automatically
renew for an additional two-year term. Cook hasuthidateral right to terminate the agreement up®d days prior written notice to us. Either
party may terminate the agreement upon writtercadt the other party in the event of the othetyfmimsolvency or the other party's material
breach of the agreement if such breach remainsreddar 15 days in the case of a payment relateddbr or 30 days in the case of a non-
payment related breach.

Development and Manufacturing Services Agreement with Catalent

In September 2005, we entered into a devedmt and manufacturing services agreement (trede@atManufacturing Agreement) with
Catalent Pharma Solutions LLC (formerly Cardinabife PTS, LLC) (Catalent). Under the terms of tgeeament, Catalent may, from time to
time, provide development and manufacturing sesvioe us related to our XmAb technology. Catalertdurrently performing services relatec
the manufacture under cGMP of drug substance of BB&X1 under the agreement. We pay for servicesimeed by Catalent under the
agreement pursuant to statements of work entetedriom time to time.

Under the terms of the agreement, if Catadevelops one or more cell lines using its petary GPExgene product expression technology
(GPEx Technology) in the course of performing sesiunder the agreement, we have the option taskcany such cell line for non-cGMP
research for a license fee of $30,000 per yeaa fmeriod of up to 10 years and on other terms tagoeed upon by Catalent and us. In addition,
we have the option to license any cell line devetbpy Catalent in the course of performing serviceger the agreement that incorporates
the GPEx Technology for use in the production ofichl and commercial supplies of gene expressiodyrcts by us or any of our manufactu
for 10 years for an upfront fee that ranges betvgfeand $0.3 million per cell line, an annual liseriee of $30,000, and development and
regulatory milestones up to as much as an aggref&®1 million per cell line licensed, and on@tterms to be agreed upon by Catalent and
us.

This agreement will remain in effect unlegther party terminates it in accordance withétsns. We may unilaterally terminate the
agreement or activities under any statement of watkred into pursuant to the agreement upon 9€wsiten notice to Catalent. Catalent may
unilaterally terminate the agreement upon 24 mowifitsen notice to us. Either party may termindite agreement upon written notice to the
other party upon the other party's insolvency erdther party's material breach of the agreemenitdf breach remains uncured for 30 days
following notice thereof.

Cell Line Sale Agreement with Catalent

In December 2011, we entered into a GPEele cell line sale agreement with Catalent punst@which we purchased a cell line
(the GPEX Cell Line) developed by Catalent underGhatalent Manufacturing Agreement for use in tl@uafacture of XmAb7195.

As consideration for the purchase and sfalke GPEXx Cell Line under the agreement, we paidhitial upfront fee of $125,000. In
addition, we are required to pay an annual feedialént and royalties based on a percentage cffes for products that are derived from or
utilize the GPEX Cell Line. Such percentage is thas 1.0%. We are also required to make paymerGsitalent based
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upon the achievement of certain developmental agdlatory milestones totaling up to approximatedyddmillion.

We have the unilateral right to termindite &greement upon 30 days written notice to Catdleaddition, either party may terminate the
agreement upon written notice to the other parthéevent of the other party's insolvency or ttieioparty's material breach of the agreeme
such breach remains uncured for 60 days followtgca thereof. Absent early termination, the agreetwvill remain in effect. If we terminate
the agreement without cause or if Catalent terramttte agreement for our material breach of theesmgent, our ownership rights in the GPEx®
Cell Line will automatically terminate, and titledreto will revert to Catalent.

Other Technology Licenses

In addition to the product development parships and technology license agreement descaib@ek, we also enter into non-exclusive
relationships whereby we license our intellectuapprty around a specific XmAb technology to a piageutical or biotechnology company to
use in one or more of their own products. By adogssur technology, our partners hope to improwepgharmacology of their antibodies and
create potential commercial differentiation foritigroduct candidates. Under these technology iesnwe generally grant rights to our licen
that are limited to the specific XmAb Fc domainattare required and also limited to a specific progor set of programs of the partner that are
outside of our core strategic areas. This apprafiotvs us to maintain control over the vast mayooit the rights to our platform while still
disseminating our technology for broad use. Thg-alnd-play nature of XmAb technology allows usttocture nearly all of these licenses
without any work commitment on our part; henceséhkicenses allow us to generate revenue to suppodwn internal programs with no
additional obligations on our part. The revenuegererate from these licenses comes in the foricaide fees, annual maintenance fees,
milestone payments and royalties.

Below is a table summarizing these techopl@enses:

Xencor Current
Licensee Year Technology Indication Milestones  Royalties Development Stage
2007 Cytotoxic Oncology Yes Yes Phase 1 trial
Bl (two candidates
Janssel 200¢ Xtend Autoimmune Yes Yes
R&D, LLC diseast preclinical
CSL Limited 200¢ Cytotoxic Oncology Yes Yes Phase :
201z Xtend Hematologica Yes Yes
CSL Limited disease: Preclinical
201: Fc optimizatior Autoimmune Yes Yes
Merck disease Preclinical

Intellectual Property

The foundation for XmAb technology and punduct candidates and partnering is the generatidrprotection of intellectual property for
novel antibody therapeutics. We combine proprietamputational methods for amino acid sequenceydesith laboratory generation and
testing of new antibody compositions. Our desigth @mgineering team prospectively assesses, wiimpadunsel, the competitive landscape
with the goal of building broad patent positionsl @avoiding third-party intellectual property.

As a pioneer in Fc domain engineering, ygesnatically scanned the structure of the Fc donmadiscover Fc variants. We have filed
patent applications relating to thousands of sfgeEif domain variants with experimental data orcgmeimprovements of immune function,
pharmacokinetics, structural stability and novalaural constructs. We have filed additional paggplications derived from these applications
as we discover new properties of the Fc varianiseamnew business
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opportunities arise. We continually seek to expiuedintellectual property coverage of our technglagd candidates, and invest in discovering
new Fc domain technologies and antibody produaticates.

As of December 31, 2013, our patent estatey worldwide basis, includes 176 issued pai@®®f which are in the United States) and
196 pending patent applications (83 of which artaénUnited States) which we own or for which weéha fully-paid exclusive license, with
claims directed to XmAb Fc domains, all of our @al and preclinical stage antibodies and our cdatmnal protein design methods, called the
PDA, protein design platform. Of these patents gaient applications, 85 issued patents (22 of waiehin the United States) and 122 pending
patent applications (56 of which are in the Unif#dtes) relate to our XmAb Fc domains, with cladinected to their incorporation into
antibodies, Fc domain engineering and compositidmsatter. These patents are expected to expiteeitunited States between 2023 and 2031.
Our three lead product candidates are coveredsigdsU.S. composition of matter patents relatingott the XmAb Fc domains and the
individual product candidates. The composition atter patents relating to our lead product candglate expected to expire in the United
States between 2027 and 2030, one of which reatémAb5574/MOR208, two relate to XmAb5871 and tetate to XmAb7195.

In addition to patent protection, we retytoade secret protection and know-how to expamgmprietary position around our technology
and other discoveries and inventions that we censidportant to our business. We seek to protéstnkellectual property in part by entering
into confidentiality agreements with our employess)sultants, scientific advisors, clinical invgatiors and other contractors and also by
requiring our employees, commercial contractorsaarthin consultants and investigators, to enterimvention assignment agreements that
grant us ownership of certain discoveries or inogrst made by them.

Further, we seek trademark protection éUinited States and in certain other jurisdictiohgre available and when we deem appropriate.
We have obtained registrations for the Xencor treah&, as well as certain other trademarks, whicluseein connection with our pharmaceut
research and development services and our clistegle products, including XmAb, PDA and ProteiniBe#\utomation. We currently have
registrations for Xencor and PDA in the United 8satAustralia, Canada, the European Community apan] for Protein Design Automation in
the United States, Australia, Canada and the Earog@mmunity, and for XmAb in the United Statesstalia and the European Community.

Manufacturing

We have adopted a manufacturing strategyofracting with third parties in accordance va@MP for the manufacture of drug substance
and product. Additional contract manufacturersiesed to fill, label, package and distribute invgtiional drug products. This allows us to
maintain a more flexible infrastructure while fomgsour expertise on developing our products. Xm&tband XmAb7195 are produced by
mammalian cell culture of a Chinese hamster ov@l®) cell line that expresses the antibody, folldyeg multiple purification and filtration
steps typical of those used for monoclonal antisedWe will ultimately depend on contract manufestsifor the manufacture of our products
for commercial sale, as well as for process devetyg. Contract manufacturers are subject to exterggivernmental regulation. We have
multiple potential sources for the manufacturingkafAb5871 and XmAb7195.

We are able to internally manufacture thardities of our product candidates required ftatiely short preclinical animal studies. We
believe that this allows us to accelerate the diesglopment process by not having to rely on thadies for all of our manufacturing needs.
However, we do rely and expect to rely on a nunabeontract manufacturers to produce sufficientrgitias of our product candidates for us
more lengthy preclinical research.
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Competition

We compete in an industry that is charadrby rapidly advancing technologies, intense metition and a strong emphasis on proprietary
products. Our competitors include pharmaceuticadanies, biotechnology companies, academic institsiand other research organizations.
We compete with these parties for promising tarfgtantibody-based therapeutics, new technologyjfidimizing antibodies and in recruiting
highly qualified personnel. Many competitors andepial competitors have substantially greaterrgie, research and product development
capabilities as well as greater financial, marlgetind sales and human resources than we do. Iticedanany specialized biotechnology firms
have formed collaborations with large, establisb@uipanies to support the research, development@nchercialization of products that may
competitive with ours. Accordingly, our competitonsly be more successful than we may be in devedppommercializing and achieving
widespread market acceptance. In addition, our etitops' products may be more effective or moreaifely marketed and sold than any
treatment we or our development partners may cogiadize and may render our product candidates ebsolr noncompetitive before we can
recover the expenses related to developing and eoaisizing any of our product candidates.

Competition in autoimmune disease drug ligreent is intense and includes multiple monocl@mibodies, other biologics and small
molecules approved for the treatment of rheumaddiaritis and autoimmune diseases, many of whiethamg developed or marketed by large
multinational pharmaceutical companies such asd@3eithKline plc, AbbVie Inc., Janssen Pharmacelgjdac., Genentech Inc. and
Amgen Inc. Benlysta is currently the only monoclomatibody that we are aware of that is approvedHe treatment of lupus, although we
believe that Rituxan is prescribed, off label, tis indication. Humira, Amgen's Enbrel (etanertefpanssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.'s Remicade
(infliximab) and Simponi (golimumab), Orencia aniiuRan, among others, are approved for the treatwfetheumatoid arthritis. In addition,
these and other pharmaceutical companies have roobantibodies or other biologics in clinical @éapment for the treatment of autoimmu
diseases.

Many companies have approved therapieseodeveloping drugs for the treatment of asthmeting multinational pharmaceutical
companies such as GlaxoSmithKline, Novartis AG AsttaZeneca plc. Monoclonal antibody drug developinias primarily focused on
allergic asthma. Xolair is currently the only molomal antibody that we are aware of that is appddee the treatment of severe asthma. In
addition, we are aware that Novartis and Genergach have an antibody targeting IgE in Phase 1ctin2al development for asthma. Other
monoclonal antibodies in development target cytegisuch as IL-13, IL-4, IL-5, IL-9, GNGSF or their receptors. Although these drugs fomn
differently from our products, if successfully déyeed, these drugs will compete in the asthma mavke are not aware of any companies
developing drugs that target #&lIb for the treatment of asthma.

Competition in blood cancer drug developtmigimtense, with more than 250 compounds in cdihirials by large multinational
pharmaceutical companies and Rituxan is just omeasfy monoclonal antibodies approved for the treatrof NHL or other blood cancers. In
addition, we are aware of a number of other congsawith development stage programs that may compgtieXmAb5574/MOR208 in the
future. We anticipate that we will face intense ameasing competition as new treatments entemtiet and advanced technologies become
available.

Regulatory Overview

Our business and operations are subjecvariety of U.S. federal, state and local andi§mreupranational, national, provincial and
municipal laws, regulations and trade practice® FBA and comparable regulatory authorities inestatd local jurisdictions and in other
countries impose substantial and burdensome reqaires upon companies involved in the clinical depeient,
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manufacture, marketing and distribution of drugd bimlogics. These agencies and other federag atad local entities regulate research and
development activities and the testing, manufactyuality control, safety, effectiveness, labeliatprage, recordkeeping, approval, advertising
and promotion and export and import of our prodiactdidate.

U.S. Government Regulation
U.S. Drug Development Process

In the United States, the FDA regulategidrand biologic products under the Federal Foodg@nd Cosmetic Act (FDCA) (21 U.S.C.
8301, et seq), its implementing regulations an@moldws, including, in the case of biologics, thil Health Service Act. Our antibody prod
candidates are subject to regulation by the FDA bi®logic. Biologics require the submission ofial8gics License Application (BLA), to the
FDA and approval of the BLA by the FDA before maie in the United States. The process of obtainggylatory approvals for commercial
sale and distribution and the subsequent compliasitteapplicable federal, state, local and forestatutes and regulations require the
expenditure of substantial time and financial reses. Failure to comply with the applicable U.&juirements at any time during the product
development process, approval process or aftepaplhmay subject an applicant to administrativ@udicial civil or criminal sanctions. These
sanctions could include the FDA's refusal to apeneending applications, license suspension or egi@t withdrawal of an approval,
imposition of a clinical hold on clinical trials,asning letters, product recalls, product seizui@s) or partial suspension of production or
distribution, injunctions, fines, refusals of gomerent contracts, restitution, disgorgement or @widl/or criminal penalties. The process required
by the FDA before a biologic may be marketed inlimi¢ed States generally involves the following:

. completion of preclinical laboratory tests, anirsidies and formulation studies performed in acoed with the FDA's curre
Good Laboratory Practices (GLP) regulations;

. submission to the FDA of an investigational newgdapplication (IND) which must become effectivedyefhuman clinical trial
in the United States may begin;

. performance of adequate and \-controlled human clinical trials in accordance whbk FDA's current good clinical practic
(GCP) regulations to establish the safety andadficof the product candidate for its intended use;

. submission to the FDA of a BL/
. satisfactory completion of an FDA inspection (i€tRDA deems it as a requirement) of the manufawyuacility or facilities

where the product is produced to assess compligitbghe FDA's cGMP regulations to assure thatfledities, methods and
controls are adequate to preserve the productiiiglestrength, quality and purity;

. potential audits by the FDA of the nonclinical astidical trial sites that generated the data inpgupof the BLA,
. review of the BLA by an external Advisory Committieethe FDA, whose recommendations are not bindimthe FDA, ant
. FDA review and approval of the BLA prior to any comrcial marketing or sal

Before testing any compounds with poterttiatapeutic value in humans, the product candielaters the preclinical testing stage.
Preclinical tests include laboratory evaluationpmfduct chemistry, stability and formulation, aslivas animal studies to assess the potential
toxicity and activity of the product candidate. Td@nduct of the preclinical tests must comply vigtleral regulations and requirements
including GLPs. The sponsor must submit the regiiltee preclinical tests, together with manufaictyinformation, analytical data, any
available clinical data or literature and a progbse
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clinical protocol, to the FDA as part of the INDhd IND automatically becomes effective 30 daysraéteeipt by the FDA, unless the FDA
raises concerns or questions about the condubgdflinical trial, including concerns that humasearch subjects will be exposed to
unreasonable health risks. In such a case, thesiidsor and the FDA must resolve any outstandingezas before the clinical trial can begin.
The FDA may also impose clinical holds on a prodictdidate at any time before or during clinicellrdue to safety concerns or non-
compliance, or for other reasons.

Clinical trials involve the administratiof the product candidate to human patients undestipervision of qualified investigators,
generally physicians not employed by or under timécal trial sponsor's control. Clinical trialseaconducted under protocols detailing, among
other things, the objectives of the clinical triddsing procedures, subject selection and exclugiteria and the parameters to be used to mc
subject safety and effectiveness. Each protocot brisubmitted to the FDA as part of the IND. Gatitrials must be conducted in accordance
with GCPs. Further, each clinical trial must beieaxed and approved by an IRB at or servicing eastitution at which the clinical trial will be
conducted. An IRB is charged with protecting thédfare and rights of clinical trial participants acdnsiders such items as whether the risks to
individuals participating in the clinical trialseaminimized and are reasonable in relation to gaied benefits. The IRB also approves the form
and content of the informed consent that must dpeesi by each clinical trial subject or his or eggdl representative and must monitor the
clinical trial until completed. Human clinical tisaare typically conducted in three sequential pedakat may overlap or be combined:

. Phase 1 The product candidate is initially introducedbirat limited population of healthy human subjectd tasted for safet)
dosage tolerance, absorption, metabolism, distabwtnd excretion. In the case of some productsdare diseases, or when the
product may be too inherently toxic to ethicallyranister to healthy volunteers, the initial humasting is often conducted in
patients with the disease or condition for whiah pinoduct candidate is intended to gain an eadigation of its effectiveness.

. Phase 2 The product candidate is evaluated in a limitetigmt population (but larger than in Phase 1j&mtify possible adver
effects and safety risks, to preliminarily evalutite efficacy of the product for specific targetedications and to assess dosage
tolerance, optimal dosage and dosing schedule.

. Phase 3 Clinical trials are undertaken to further evadudbsage and provide substantial evidence of aligfficacy and safet
in an expanded patient population (such as seharaired to several thousand) at geographicallyedssal clinical trial sites.
Phase 3 clinical trials are typically conducted whdase 2 clinical trials demonstrate that a dasge of the product candidate is
effective and has an acceptable safety profiles&heals typically have at least 2 groups of pasievho, in a blinded fashion,
receive either the product or a placebo. Phasmigall trials are intended to establish the oveiak/benefit ratio of the product
and provide an adequate basis for product labeGmgerally, two adequate and well-controlled Pt3asknical trials are required
by the FDA for approval of a BLA.

Post-approval studies, sometimes refemes tPhase 4 clinical trials, may be conducted afiigal marketing approval. These studies are
used to gain additional experience from the treatroépatients in the intended therapeutic indarato further assess the biologic's safety and
effectiveness after BLA approval. Phase 4 clinidals can be initiated by the drug sponsor or esralition of BLA approval by the FDA.

Annual progress reports detailing the rtssofl the clinical trials must be submitted to Fi2A and written IND safety reports must be
promptly submitted to the FDA and the investigaforsserious and unexpected adverse events oriraling from tests in laboratory animals
that suggests a significant risk for human subjects
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Concurrent with clinical trials, companiesially complete additional animal studies and ralssi develop additional information about the
chemistry and physical characteristics of the lgm@nd finalize a process for manufacturing thedpct in commercial quantities in accordance
with cGMP requirements. The manufacturing processtrbe capable of consistently producing qualitgtes of the product candidate and,
among other things, must develop methods for tgshia identity, strength, quality and purity of fiveal biologic product. Additionally,
appropriate packaging must be selected and testedtability studies must be conducted to demotesthet the product candidate does not
undergo unacceptable deterioration over its shelf |

U.S. Review and Approval Processes

The results of product development, précdinstudies and clinical trials, along with deptinns of the manufacturing process, analytical
tests, proposed labeling and other relevant inftionare submitted to the FDA in the form of a Bi&guesting approval to market the product
for one or more specified indications. The subroissif a BLA is subject to the payment of substantier fees.

Once the FDA receives a BLA, it has 60 dayview the BLA to determine if it is substafifizcomplete and the data is readable, befa
accepts the BLA for filing. Once the submissioadsepted for filing, the FDA begins an in-depthiegwof the BLA. Under the goals and
policies agreed to by the FDA under the Prescripboug User Fee Act (PDUFA), the FDA has 12 moffitbsn submission in which to comple
its initial review of a standard BLA and make aidiem on the application and eight months from sigisian for a priority BLA, and such
deadline is referred to as the PDUFA date. The EDés not always meet its PDUFA dates for eitherdgted or priority BLAS. The review
process and the PDUFA date may be extended by thwaéhs if the FDA requests or the BLA sponsor otlige provides additional informatit
or clarification regarding information already pided in the submission within the last three motttgfore the PDUFA date.

After the BLA submission is accepted fdinfj, the FDA reviews the BLA to determine, amonbes things, whether the proposed product
is safe and effective for its intended use, andtidrehe product is being manufactured in accordavith cGMP to assure and preserve the
product's identity, strength, quality and puritheTFDA may refer applications for novel drug orlbgical products or drug or biological
products which present difficult questions of safat efficacy to an advisory committee, typicallpanel that includes clinicians and other
experts, for review, evaluation and a recommenda®to whether the application should be apprevedunder what conditions. The FDA is
not bound by the recommendations of an advisorynaiti®e, but it considers such recommendations elyef/hen making decisions. During
the approval process, the FDA also will determimetier a risk evaluation and mitigation strategg (#5) is necessary to assure the safe use o
the product. If the FDA concludes a REMS is neettegl sponsor of the BLA must submit a proposed REM&SFDA will not approve the BLA
without an approved REMS, if required. A REMS cahstantially increase the costs of obtaining apgkov

Before approving a BLA, the FDA can inspibet facilities at which the product is manufacturéhe FDA will not approve the BLA unless
it determines that the manufacturing processedauilities are in compliance with cGMP requiremeaitsl adequate to assure consistent
production of the product within required specificas. Additionally, before approving a BLA, the RDvill typically inspect one or more
clinical sites to assure that the clinical studiese conducted in compliance with GCP requireméhtee FDA determines that the application,
manufacturing process or manufacturing facilities rzot acceptable, it will outline the deficiencieshe submission and often will request
additional clinical testing or information beford&A can be approved.

The FDA will issue a complete responsestdftthe agency decides not to approve the BLAe @bmplete response letter describes all ¢
specific deficiencies in the BLA identified by tR®A. The deficiencies identified may be minor, &xample, requiring labeling changes, or
major, for
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example, requiring additional clinical trials. Atidnally, the complete response letter may incligtmmmended actions that the applicant might
take to place the application in a condition foprgval. If a complete response letter is issuegl afpplicant may either resubmit the BLA,
addressing all of the deficiencies identified im thtter, or withdraw the application.

If a product receives regulatory approttad, approval may be significantly limited to specdiseases and dosages or the indications for us
may otherwise be limited, which could restrict tmenmercial value of the product. Further, the FD&ymequire that certain contraindications,
warnings or precautions be included in the prothlmling. In addition, the FDA may require post keding studies, sometimes referred to as
Phase 4 testing, which involves clinical trialsigaed to further assess drug safety and effectsseaad may require testing and surveillance
programs to monitor the safety of approved prodtietshave been commercialized. After approvataieichanges to the approved biologic,
such as adding new indications, manufacturing chsuog additional labeling claims, are subject tohier FDA review and approval. Depending
on the nature of the change proposed, a BLA supgi¢must be filed and approved before the changetmanplemented. For many proposed
post-approval changes to a BLA, the FDA has ugBtddays to review the application. As with new BL & review process is often
significantly extended by the FDA requests for &iddal information or clarification.

Post-Approval Requirements

Any biologic products for which we or owllaborators receive FDA approvals are subjecbittinuing regulation by the FDA, including,
among other things, record-keeping requiremenggyrting of adverse experiences with the produaliping the FDA with updated safety and
efficacy information, product sampling and disttiba requirements, complying with certain electmrécords and signature requirements and
complying with FDA promotion and advertising reguirents, which include, among others, restrictiondicect-to-consumer advertising,
promoting biologics for uses or in patient popuas that are not described in the product's apprtakeling (known as "off-label use"),
industry-sponsored scientific and educational &t and promotional activities involving the imet. The FDA closely regulates the post-
approval marketing and promotion of biologics, aftdough physicians may prescribe legally availabiegs for off-label uses, manufacturers
may not market or promote such off-label usesuailo comply with these or other FDA requiremerats subject a manufacturer to possible
legal or regulatory action, such as warning leftsuspension of manufacturing, seizure of prodogtnctive action, mandated corrective
advertising or communications with healthcare psignals, possible civil or criminal penalties they negative consequences, including
adverse publicity.

We will rely, and expect to continue toyredn third-parties for the production of cliniGaidd commercial quantities of our products. Our
collaborators may also utilize third-parties fonsoor all of a product we are developing with saclaborator. Manufacturers are required to
comply with applicable FDA manufacturing requirersecontained in the FDA's cGMP regulations. cGMgulations require among other
things, quality control and quality assurance al agethe corresponding maintenance of recordddacdmentation. Drug manufacturers and
other entities involved in the manufacture andritistion of approved biologics are required to ségi their establishments with the FDA and
certain state agencies and are subject to perliisiiections by the FDA and certain state agenoiesdmpliance with cGMP and other laws.
Accordingly, manufacturers must continue to expme, money and effort in the area of productiod gnality control to maintain cGMP
compliance.

U.S. Patent Term Restoration and Marketing Excltysiv

Depending upon the timing, duration anccjos of the FDA approval of our biologic prodwzindidate, some of our U.S. patents may be
eligible for limited patent term extension undeg rug
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Price Competition and Patent Term Restoration Ad984, commonly referred to as the Hatch-WaxmareAdments. The Hatch-Waxman
Amendments permit a patent restoration term obuive years as compensation for patent term loshd product development and the FDA
regulatory review process. However, patent terrforaion cannot extend the remaining term of argdieyond a total of 14 years from the
product's approval date. The patent term restorgtéiod is generally one-half the time betweenetfiective date of an IND and the submission
date of a BLA plus the time between the submisdate of a BLA and the approval of that applicatiOnly one patent applicable to an apprc
product is eligible for the extension and the aggilon for the extension must be submitted pridhtexpiration of the patent. The U.S. Patent
and Trademark Office, in consultation with the FD&yiews and approves the application for any gatgm extension or restoration. In the
future, we may intend to apply for restoration afent term for one of our currently owned or licmhpatents to add patent life beyond its
current expiration date, depending on the expdetsgth of the clinical trials and other factorsahxed in the filing of the relevant BLA.

Market exclusivity provisions under the F®€an also delay the submission or the approvakdfin applications of other companies
seeking to reference another company's BLA. Spedii, the Biologics Price Competition and InnoweatiAct (BPCIA) established an
abbreviated pathway for the approval of biosimélad interchangeable biological products. The nebwealiated regulatory pathway establishes
legal authority for the FDA to review and approvesimilar biologics, including the possible desitioa of a biosimilar as "interchangeable”
based on their similarity to existing brand prodluitder the BPCIA, an application for a biosimjmoduct cannot be approved by the FDA L
12 years after the original branded product waseaa under a BLA. However, an application may llensitted after four years if it contains a
certification of patent invalidity or non-infringeant to one of the patents listed with the FDA by itmovator BLA holder. The BPCIA is
complex and is only beginning to be interpreted iamalemented by the FDA. As a result, its ultimiagact, implementation and meaning is
subject to uncertainty.

U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

The U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Actwtach we are subject, prohibits corporations amividuals from engaging in certain activities to
obtain or retain business or to influence a pergorking in an official capacity. It is illegal toay, offer to pay or authorize the payment of
anything of value to any foreign government officgovernment staff member, political party or fioll candidate in an attempt to obtain or
retain business or to otherwise influence a pevgaking in an official capacity.

Pharmaceutical Coverage, Pricing and Reimbursement

Significant uncertainty exists as to theezage and reimbursement status of any producidatedfor which we obtain regulatory approval.
In the United States and markets in other counts@es of any products for which we receive regweapproval for commercial sale will
depend in part on the availability of coverage addquate reimbursement from third-party payorstdFparty payors include government payor
programs at the federal and state levels, incluMedicare and Medicaid, managed care providersatgihealth insurers and other
organizations. The process for determining wheghgayor will provide coverage for a drug producyrba separate from the process for setting
the price or reimbursement rate that the payorpal for the drug product. Thingarty payors may limit coverage to specific drugdurcts on a
approved list or formulary, which might not includk of the FDA-approved drug products for a patte indication. Third-party payors are
increasingly challenging the price and examinirgyrtiedical necessity and cost-effectiveness of rmedroducts and services, in addition to
their safety and efficacy. We may need to condypeasive pharmacoeconomic studies in order to dstrade the medical necessity and cost-
effectiveness of our products, in addition to thets required to obtain the FDA approvals. Our povdandidates may
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not be considered medically necessary or effstctive. A payor's decision to provide coveraged drug product does not imply that an adec
reimbursement rate will be approved. Adequate thady reimbursement may not be available to enabl® maintain price levels sufficient to
realize an appropriate return on our investmeptdaauct development.

The cost of pharmaceuticals continues teegee substantial governmental and tipiagty payor interest. We expect that the pharmézzeh
industry will experience pricing pressures duehttrend toward managed healthcare, the increaslngnce of managed care organizations
additional legislative proposals. Third-party payare increasingly challenging the prices chargedniedical products and services and
examining the medical necessity and cost-effecégerof medical products and services, in addibdheir safety and efficacy. If these third-
party payors do not consider our products to béeffsctive compared to other available therapiesy may not cover our products after
approval as a benefit under their plans or, if thieythe level of payment may not be sufficiengilfow us to sell our products at a profit. The
U.S. government, state legislatures and foreigregowents have shown significant interest in impleting cost containment programs to limit
the growth of government-paid healthcare costdudieg price controls, restrictions on reimbursetraard requirements for substitution of
generic products for branded prescription drugopiion of such controls and measures, and tighgeofimestrictive policies in jurisdictions
with existing controls and measures, could limgrmpants for pharmaceuticals such as the productidates that we are developing and could
adversely affect our net revenue and results.

Different pricing and reimbursement schemradst in other countries. In the European Comnyigibvernments influence the price of
pharmaceutical products through their pricing agichbursement rules and control of national heafthegistems that fund a large part of the
of those products to consumers. Some jurisdictopesate positive and negative list systems undé&hwiroducts may only be marketed once a
reimbursement price has been agreed. To obtairbtegament or pricing approval, some of these camsitnay require the completion of
clinical trials that compare the cost-effectivenefa particular product candidate to currentlyikmde therapies. Other member states allow
companies to fix their own prices for medicines, tmonitor and control company profits. The downwgaressure on healthcare costs in general,
and particularly prescription drugs, has becomy irgense. As a result, increasingly high barramesbeing erected to the entry of new products.
In addition, in some countries, cross-border imgpénam low-priced markets exert a commercial pressm pricing within a country. There can
be no assurance that any country that has prideat®r reimbursement limitations for drug produaill allow favorable reimbursement and
pricing arrangements for any of our products.

Healthcare Reform

In the United States and foreign jurisdiog, there have been and continue to be a numbegisfative and regulatory proposals to change
the healthcare system in ways that could affeciability to sell our product candidates profitalbyce they are approved for sale. Among pc
makers and payors in the United States and elsewti@re is significant interest in promoting chesiih healthcare systems with the stated
goals of containing healthcare costs, improvindiguand/or expanding access. In the United Stdtespharmaceutical industry has been a
particular focus of these efforts and has beerifgigntly affected by major legislative initiatives

In March 2010, the Patient Protection affidable Health Care Act, as amended by the He2dtle and Education Affordability
Reconciliation Act (collectively, PPACA) was enatitevhich includes measures to significantly chathgeway healthcare is financed by both
governmental and private
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insurers. Among the provisions of PPACA of impodaro the pharmaceutical and biotechnology indestare the following:

. an annual, nondeductible fee on any entity thatufamures or imports certain branded prescriptiaysl and biologic agent
apportioned among these entities according to thaiket share in certain government healthcareranog, that began in 2011;

. an increase in the rebates a manufacturer musimsr the Medicaid Drug Rebate Program to 23.1%1884 of the averag
manufacturer price for branded and generic driggpectively;

. a new Medicare Part D coverage gap discount prograwhich manufacturers must agree to offer 509at-of-sale discounts t
negotiated prices of applicable brand drugs tdldédoeneficiaries during their coverage gap perasa condition for the
manufacturer's outpatient drugs to be covered ukgelicare Part D;

. extension of manufacturers' Medicaid rebate ligbith covered drugs dispensed to individuals wheoegnrolled in Medicai
managed care organizations;

. expansion of eligibility criteria for Medicaid progms by, among other things, allowing states terdifedicaid coverage
additional individuals and by adding new mandatgigibility categories for certain individuals withcome at or below 133% of
the Federal Poverty Level beginning in 2014, thedtentially increasing manufacturers' Medicaioate liability;

. expansion of the entities eligible for discountslemthe Public Health Service pharmaceutical pgigirogram:

. new requirements under the federal Open Paymeogsam, created under Section 6002 of PPACA arichiigementing
regulations, that manufacturers of drugs, devibiedogics and medical supplies for which paymergailable under Medicare,
Medicaid or the Children's Health Insurance Proggaith certain exceptions) report annually to th&lUDepartment of Health
and Human Services (HHS) information related to/fpants or other transfers of value” made or distad to physicians (defin
to include doctors, dentists, optometrists, pouitstrand chiropractors) and teaching hospitalstladapplicable manufacturers
and applicable group purchasing organizations teporually to HHS ownership and investment intarésid by physicians (as
defined above) and their immediate family membeith data collection required beginning August @13, reporting to the
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) tieefiby March 31, 2014 and by the 90th day of eadisequent calendar
year, and disclosure of such information to be Mad€EMS on a publicly available website beginningseptember 2014;

. a new requirement to annually report drug samplasrhanufacturers and distributors provide to ptiges, effective April 1
2012;
. expansion of healthcare fraud and abuse laws,dimduthe False Claims Act and the /-Kickback Statute, new governme

investigative powers, and enhanced penalties focompliance;
. a licensure framework for follc-on biologic products

. a new Patie-Centered Outcomes Research Institute to oversemtjfigl priorities in, and conduct comparative atii
effectiveness research, along with funding for sedearch;

. creation of the Independent Payment Advisory Bednath, beginning in 2014, will have authority tcoenmend certain chang

to the Medicare program that could result in redys@yments for prescription drugs and those recamatens could have the
effect of law even if Congress does not act orrélsemmendations; and
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. establishment of a Center for Medicare Innovatib@MS to test innovative payment and service defiveodels to lowe
Medicare and Medicaid spending, potentially inchgdprescription drug spending that began on Jariya2911.

In addition, other legislative changes hbagen proposed and adopted since PPACA was enéctédgust 2011, the President signed into
law the Budget Control Act of 2011, which, amonpestthings, created the Joint Select Committee eficd Reduction to recommend propos
in spending reductions to Congress. The Joint E€lemmittee on Deficit Reduction did not achiewetérgeted deficit reduction of at least $1.2
trillion for the years 2013 through 2021, triggeritne legislation's automatic reductions to sevgogkernment programs. These reductions
include aggregate reductions to Medicare paymentsdviders of up to 2% per fiscal year, startin@013. Under the Budget Control Act of
2011, as amended, federal budget "sequestratiaaihee effective in March 2013 and automatically oedlpayments under various governn
programs, including for example certain Medicamevjter and supplier reimbursement payments. Seqiest may have a material adverse
effect on our customers and accordingly, our fimgraperations. In January 2013, President Obagreediinto law the American Taxpayer
Relief Act of 2012, which, among other things, reelll Medicare payments to several types of providedsincreased the statute of limitations
period for the government to recover overpaymenfwaviders from three to five years. These newslavay result in additional reductions in
Medicare and other healthcare funding, which ctalde a material adverse effect on our customersermtdingly, our financial operations.

Other Healthcare Laws and Compliance Requirements

In the United States, the research, maiwfag, distribution, sale and promotion of druggucts and medical devices are potentially
subject to regulation by various federal, state landl authorities in addition to the FDA, includi€MS, other divisions of HHS (e.g., the Off
of Inspector General), the U.S. Department of dastate Attorneys General, and other state aradl gmvernment agencies. For example, sales,
marketing and scientific/educational grant progranast comply with fraud and abuse laws such ageitheral Anti-Kickback Statute, as
amended, the federal False Claims Act, as ameadedsimilar state laws. Pricing and rebate prognaiust comply with the Medicaid Drug
Rebate Program requirements of the Omnibus Budgebitiliation Act of 1990, as amended, and the MeteHealth Care Act of 1992, as
amended. If products are made available to authdtisers of the Federal Supply Schedule of the t@e8ervices Administration, additional
laws and requirements apply. All of these actigitiee also potentially subject to federal and statsumer protection and unfair competition
laws.

The federal Anti-Kickback Statute prohitatsy person, including a prescription drug manuifiast(or a party acting on its behalf), from
knowingly and willfully soliciting, receiving, offiéng or providing remuneration, directly or inditlg to induce or reward either the referral of
an individual, or the furnishing, recommending maaging for a good or service, for which paymeatyrbe made under a federal healthcare
program such as the Medicare and Medicaid progra@his.statute has been interpreted to apply togeaents between pharmaceutical
manufacturers on one hand and prescribers, punshaseé formulary managers on the other. Severatsbave interpreted the statute's intent
requirement to mean that if any one purpose offeangement involving remuneration is to induce mrefls of federal healthcare covered
business, the statute has been violated. The temmuheration” is not defined in the federal Antekback Statute and has been broadly
interpreted to include anything of value, includiog example, gifts, discounts, the furnishing gfglies or equipment, credit arrangements,
payments of cash, waivers of payments, ownersigpéaats and providing anything at less than itsrferket value. Although there are a number
of statutory exemptions and regulatory safe harpoygecting certain business arrangements fromeprd®n, the exemptions and safe harbors
are drawn narrowly, and practices that involve neemation intended to induce prescribing, purchasmgcommending may be subject to
scrutiny if
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they do not qualify for an exemption or safe harl@ur practices may not in all cases meet all efdtiteria for safe harbor protection from
federal Anti-Kickback Statute liability. The reachthe Anti-Kickback Statute was broadened by #wently enacted PPACA, which, among
other things, amends the intent requirement ofaétleral Anti-Kickback Statute such that a persoerdity no longer needs to have actual
knowledge of this statute or specific intent tolaie it in order to have committed a violation aldition, PPACA provides that the government
may assert that a claim including items or serviesslting from a violation of the federal Anti-Kisack Statute constitutes a false or fraudulent
claim for purposes of the federal False Claims @8igcussed below) or the civil monetary penaltiasuse, which imposes fines against any
person who is determined to have presented or daadee presented claims to a federal healthcargrgm that the person knows or should
know is for an item or service that was not prodids claimed or is false or fraudulent. Additiopathany states have adopted laws similar to
the federal Anti-Kickback Statute, and some of ¢hetmte prohibitions apply to referral of patidiotshealthcare items or services reimbursed by
any third-party payor, not only the Medicare anddMaid programs in at least some cases, and doomtdin safe harbors.

The federal False Claims Act imposes ligbdn any person or entity that, among other thjrkgnowingly presents or causes to be
presented, a false or fraudulent claim for paynhbgrd federal healthcare program. The qui tam pianisof the False Claims Act allow a privi
individual to bring civil actions on behalf of tiiederal government alleging that the defendantshmitted a false claim to the federal
government, and to share in any monetary recowemgcent years, the number of suits brought byapei individuals has increased dramatic:

In addition, various states have enacted falsenslé&ws analogous to the False Claims Act. Marthede state laws apply where a claim is
submitted to any third-party payor and not merelgderal healthcare program. There are many paldrdses for liability under the False
Claims Act. Liability arises, primarily, when antiiy knowingly submits, or causes another to supanftalse claim for reimbursement to the
federal government. The False Claims Act has beed to assert liability on the basis of inadequate, kickbacks and other improper referrals,
improperly reported government pricing metrics sastBest Price or Average Manufacturer Price, ipgraise of Medicare numbers when
detailing the provider of services, improper proimobf offlabel uses (i.e., uses not expressly approved iR drug's label) and allegatic

as to misrepresentations with respect to the sesviendered. Our future activities relating toréyorting of discount and rebate information and
other information affecting federal, state anddparty reimbursement of our products, and the aatemarketing of our products and our
service arrangements or data purchases, amongautiéties, may be subject to scrutiny under tHawses. We are unable to predict whether we
would be subject to actions under the False Cl&inotor a similar state law, or the impact of suctians. However, the cost of defending such
claims, as well as any sanctions imposed, coulémely affect our financial performance. Also, Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) created severaw federal crimes, including healthcare fraud, fatgk statements relating to healthcare
matters. The healthcare fraud statute prohibitsvikmgly and willfully executing a scheme to defraany healthcare benefit program, including
private third-party payors. The false statemeraigt prohibits knowingly and willfully falsifying;oncealing or covering up a material fact or
making any materially false, fictitious or fraudundestatement in connection with the delivery opayment for healthcare benefits, items or
services.

In addition, we may be subject to, or oarketing activities may be limited by, data privaad security regulation by both the federal
government and the states in which we conduct osinkss. For example, HIPAA and its implementirgulations established uniform federal
standards for certain "covered entities" (healthgaoviders, health plans and healthcare clearumggs) governing the conduct of certain
electronic healthcare transactions and protectingsécurity and privacy of protected health infdroma The American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009, commonly referred tohesdconomic stimulus package, included expansi¢tiBAA's privacy and security
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standards called the Health Information Technolmgy¥Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH) whitlecame effective on February 17,
2010. Among other things, HITECH makes HIPAA's pdy and security standards directly applicablebtessihess associates"—independent
contractors or agents of covered entities thatereaceive, maintain, or transmit protected heafibrmation in connection with providing a
service for or on behalf of a covered entity. HITHE@Iso increased the civil and criminal penaltlest thay be imposed against covered entities,
business associates and possibly other persongaaedstate attorneys general new authority tafilé actions for damages or injunctions in
federal courts to enforce the federal HIPAA lawd aaek attorney's fees and costs associated wihipg federal civil actions.

There are also an increasing number of $gainshine" laws that require manufacturers toemeforts to states on pricing and marketing
information. Several states have enacted legislagquiring pharmaceutical companies to, amongrdttiegs, establish marketing compliance
programs, file periodic reports with the state, mpkriodic public disclosures on sales, markefniging, clinical trials and other activities
and/or register their sales representatives arfulgptimg or limiting certain other sales and markgtpractices. In addition, beginning in 2013, a
similar federal requirement will require manufaeisrto track and report to the federal governmeritin payments and other transfers of value
made to physicians and other healthcare profedsiand teaching hospitals and ownership or investiméerests held by physicians and their
immediate family members. The government, in twill,make reported information available to the cibThese laws may adversely affect our
sales, marketing and other activities by impositigriaistrative and compliance burdens on us. If aiktd track and report as required by these
laws or otherwise comply with these laws, we cdaddsubject to the penalty provisions of the pentirstate and federal authorities.

Because of the breadth of these laws amddrowness of available statutory and regulatggmptions, it is possible that some of our
business activities could be subject to challemgietuone or more of such laws. If our operatioesfaund to be in violation of any of the fede
and state laws described above or any other govarairegulations that apply to us, we may be stilbgepenalties, including criminal and
significant civil monetary penalties, damages, inenprisonment, exclusion from participation inngmmment healthcare programs, injunctions,
recall or seizure of products, total or partialgmsion of production, denial or withdrawal of pnarketing product approvals, private "qui tam"
actions brought by individual whistleblowers in th@me of the government or refusal to allow usit@reinto supply contracts, including
government contracts, and the curtailment or restring of our operations, any of which could adety affect our ability to operate our
business and our results of operations. To thene#ttat any of our products are sold in a foreigardry, we may be subject to similar foreign
laws and regulations, which may include, for insigrapplicable post-marketing requirements, inclgdiafety surveillance, arftaud and abus
laws and implementation of corporate compliancg@ms and reporting of payments or transfers afeved healthcare professionals.

Europe / Rest of World Government Regulation

In addition to regulations in the Unite@t®t, we, and our collaborators, will be subje t@riety of regulations in other jurisdictions
governing, among other things, clinical trials @my commercial sales, marketing and distributionwfproducts.

Whether or not we, or our collaboratorgagbFDA approval for a product, we must obtain ibguisite approvals from regulatory
authorities in foreign countries prior to the cormoement of clinical trials or marketing of the puatlin those countries. The requirements and
process governing the conduct of clinical trialmduct licensing, pricing and reimbursement vaonfrcountry to country. In addition, we and
our collaborators may be subject to foreign laws egulations and other compliance requirementdding, without limitation, anti-kickback
laws, false claims laws and other fraud and alaws,las well as laws and regulations requiringsparency of pricing and marketing
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information and governing the privacy and secuwithealth information, such as the European Unibirsctive®°/ 46on the Protection of
Individuals with regard to the Processing of Peat@ata.

If we, or our collaborators, fail to compi§th applicable foreign regulatory requirementsg, may be subject to, among other things, fines,
suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approvaledpct recalls, seizure of products, operatingietgins and criminal prosecution.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we had 30 empky2@ of whom were full-time, 14 of whom hold PhdpM.D. degrees, 21 of whom were
engaged in research and development activitie®afdvhom were engaged in business developmemtde information systems, facilities,
human resources or administrative support. NormioEmployees are represented by any collectivgali@ng unit. We believe that we maint:
good relations with our employees.

About Xencor

We were incorporated in California in Augi897 under the name Xencor. In September 2004eimeorporated the state of Delaware
under the name Xencor, Inc. Our principal officesslacated at 111 West Lemon Avenue, Monrovia, @A1%, and our telephone number
(626) 305-5900. Our website address is www.xenoor.ur website and the information contained orthat can be accessed through, the
website will not be deemed to be incorporated ligremce in, and are not considered part of, thisuahReport on Form 10-K. Our Annual
Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on FornQl@urrent Reports on Form 8-K and amendmentsporte filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchakmef 1934, as amended, are available free ofgshaf the Investor Relations portion of our
web site at www.xencor.com as soon as reasonaatyipal after we electronically file such materath, or furnish it to, the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC).

We have a single operating segment andatiely all of our operating assets are locatethe United States. For information regarding
our revenue and research and development experdhe flast three fiscal years, see Item 7, 'Mam&ge's Discussion and Analysis of Finar
Conditions and Results of Operations."
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

Except for the historical information contained &ieror incorporated by reference, this Annual Reéaod the information incorporated
reference contains forward-looking statements thatlve risks and uncertainties. These statemaatsde projections about our accounting
and finances, plans and objectives for the futfueire operating and economic performance and ostti@iements regarding future performar
These statements are not guarantees of future npeafice or events. Our actual results may differerially from those discussed here. Factors
that could cause or contribute to differences inactual results include those discussed in thiofahg section, as well as those discussed in
Part Il, Item 7 entitled "Management's Discussiom dnalysis of Financial Condition and Results pe€ations" and elsewhere throughout t
Annual Report and in any other documents incorpatdty reference into this Annual Report. You shoaftsider carefully the following ris
factors, together with all of the other informatiotiuded or incorporated in this Annual Report.dBaof these risk factors, either alone or tal
together, could adversely affect our business, atp®y results and financial condition, as well atvarsely affect the value of an investment in
our common stock. There may be additional risksweado not presently know of or that we curreb#jieve are immaterial which could also
impair our business and financial position.

Risks Relating to Our Business and to the Discoverpevelopment and Regulatory Approval of Our Produt Candidates

We have incurred significant losses since our inception and anticipate that we will continue to incur significant losses for the foreseeable
future.

We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutioatgany. To date, we have financed our operationsapity through equity and debt financings
and our research and licensing agreements andmaweed significant operating losses since ouejntion in 1997. Our net loss for the year
ended December 31, 2013 was $60.3 million (inclgdir$48.6 million loss on settlement of convertiiges) and a loss of $8.6 million and
$11.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2041?2011, respectively. As of December 31, 20Ehad an accumulated deficit of
$227.6 million. Such losses are expected to ineréathe future as we execute our plan to contowaliscovery, research and development
activities, including the ongoing and planned céaidevelopment of our antibody product candidaed,incur the additional costs of operating
as a public company. We are unable to predicttteneof any future losses or when we will becondifable, if ever. Even if we do achieve
profitability, we may not be able to sustain orrease profitability on an ongoing basis which woadtyersely affect our business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations.

Biopharmaceutical product development is a highly speculative undertaking and involves a substantial degree of uncertainty. We have never
generated any revenue from product sales and may never be profitable.

We have devoted substantially all of onaficial resources and efforts to developing oupiietary XmAb technology platform, identifyil
potential product candidates and conducting preeelirstudies and clinical trials. We and our parsreze still in the early stages of developing
our product candidates, and we have not completedidpment of any products. Our revenue to datdeas primarily revenue from the licel
of our proprietary XmAb technology platform for tdevelopment of product candidates by others agme& from our partners. Our ability to
generate revenue and achieve profitability dep@ntisge part on our ability, alone or with partsieio achieve milestones and to successfully
complete the development of, obtain the necessamylatory approvals for, and commercialize, prodactdidates. We do not anticipate
generating revenues from sales of
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products for the foreseeable future. Our abilitgémerate future revenues from product sales degezalily on our and our partners' success in:

. completing clinical trials through all phases dhidal development of our current product candida¥mAb5871 ant
XmAb7195, as well as the product candidates treabamg developed by our partners and licensees;

. seeking and obtaining marketing approvals for pcodandidates that successfully complete clinicals;

. launching and commercializing product candidatesvtcich we obtain marketing approval, with a partoe if launchec
independently, successfully establishing a saleefanarketing and distribution infrastructure;

. identifying and developing new Xmsengineered therapeutic antibody candide
. establishing and maintaining supply and manufaegurelationships with third partie

. obtaining additional licensing and partnering oppoities, similar to our partnership with MorphoSgs XmAb5574/MOR208
with leading pharmaceutical and biotechnology comgs

. achieving the milestones set forth in our agreemetith our partners

. conducting further research into the function apgliaation of antibody Fc domains in order to exghéime scope of ot
proprietary XmAb technology platform;

. maintaining, protecting, expanding and enforcingiotellectual property; an

. attracting, hiring and retaining qualified persolni

Because of the numerous risks and uncégaiassociated with biologic product developmemtare unable to predict the timing or amc
of increased expenses and when we will be ableti@ee or maintain profitability, if ever. In adidit, our expenses could increase beyond
expectations if we are required by the U.S. Foatiarug Administration (FDA), or foreign regulatoagencies, to perform studies and trials in
addition to those that we currently anticipateif tihere are any delays in our or our partners detig clinical trials or the development of any
of our product candidates. If one or more of thedpct candidates that we independently developpscaed for commercial sale, we anticipate
incurring significant costs associated with comriaizing such product candidates. Even if we or pantners are able to generate revenues
the sale of any approved products, we may not bequuofitable and may need to obtain additional fagdo continue operations, which may
not be available to us on favorable terms, if Btfalen if we do achieve profitability, we may rix# able to sustain or increase profitability on a
quarterly or annual basis. Our failure to becontr@main profitable would depress the value ofammpany and could impair our ability to
raise capital, expand our business, maintain a@areh and development efforts, diversify our pebdfferings or even continue our operations.
A decline in the value of our company could alsosgayou to lose all or part of your investment.

We will require additional financing and may be unable to raise sufficient capital, which could lead usto delay, reduce or abandon research
and development programs or commercialization.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $78.0 onilln cash and cash equivalents. Our revenue éoyelr ended December 31, 2013 was
$10.2 million. We used $5.5 million of cash in agi@ng activities during the year ended Decembe813. Our operations have used
substantial amounts of cash since inception. Gsgareh and development expenses were $17.0 nfibidhe year ended December 31, 2013,
and $12.7 million for each year ended DecembeRB12 and 2011, respectively. We expect our expengesrease in connection with our
ongoing development activities, including the couétion of our ongoing Phase 2a clinical trial @Xb5871 in patients with rheumatoid
arthritis, the initiation
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of additional clinical trials of XmAb5871, the sulssion of an investigational new drug applicatith¥) to the FDA for XmAb7195 to be
followed by our first clinical trial of XmAb7195 ah continued development of our bi-specific drugdidates. Identifying potential product
candidates and conducting preclinical testing dimitel trials are time-consuming, expensive andaitain processes that take years to
complete, and we or our partners may never gengrateecessary data or results required to obtgiulatory approval and achieve product
sales. In addition, our product candidates, if appd, may not achieve commercial success.

Our commercial revenues, if any, will beided from sales of products that we do not expetie commercially available for many years,
if at all. If we obtain regulatory approval for aoffour product candidates, we expect to incuriigant commercialization expenses related to
product manufacturing, marketing, sales and digtigim. Accordingly, we will need to obtain subsfahadditional funding in connection with
our continuing operations. If we are unable togaiapital when needed or on attractive terms, wiéddoe forced to delay, reduce or eliminate
our research and development programs or any foturenercialization efforts.

We believe our existing cash, together withrest thereon, will be sufficient to fund oyresations through the end of 2016. However,
changing circumstances or inaccurate estimates Ingyay cause us to use capital significantly fabtn we currently anticipate, and we may
need to spend more money than currently expecteslise of circumstances beyond our control. For plgrour planned clinical trials for
XmAb5871 may encounter technical, enroliment oepthsues that could cause our development costsrease more than we expect. We do
not have sufficient cash to complete the cliniaalelopment of any of our product candidates antregjuire additional funding in order to
complete the development activities required fgutatory approval of either XmAb5871 or XmAb7195amy future product candidates that we
develop independently. Because successful develapofi@ur product candidates is uncertain, we aable to estimate the actual funds we will
require to complete research and development amdneocialize our product candidates. Adequate amiditifinancing may not be available to
us on acceptable terms, or at all. In additionnvesy seek additional capital due to favorable macketitions or strategic considerations; eve
we believe we have sufficient funds for our currenfuture operating plans. If we are unable tegaiapital when needed or on attractive terms,
we could be forced to delay, reduce or eliminateresearch and development programs or any fuamerercialization efforts.

The development and commercialization of biologic productsis subject to extensive regulation, and we may not obtain regulatory approvals
for any of our product candidates.

The clinical development, manufacturindgpeing, packaging, storage, recordkeeping, adwegtipromotion, export, import, marketing and
distribution and other possible activities relattogKmAb5871, XmAb7195 and XmAb5574/MOR208, ourremt lead antibody product
candidates, as well as any other antibody procuadidate that we may develop in the future, argestito extensive regulation in the United
States as biologics. Biologics require the submissi a Biologics License Application (BLA) to tiR@®A and we are not permitted to market
any product candidate in the United States untibi&in approval from the FDA of a BLA for that prect. A BLA must be supported by
extensive clinical and preclinical data, as weleatensive information regarding chemistry, mantufideg and controls (CMC) sufficient to
demonstrate the safety, purity, potency and effengss of the applicable product candidate todtisfaction of the FDA.

Regulatory approval of a BLA is not guaesed, and the approval process is an expensiverargdtain process that may take several years.
The FDA and foreign regulatory entities also havessantial discretion in the approval process. tmaber and types of preclinical studies and
clinical trials that will be required for BLA appral varies depending on the product candidatedigease or the condition that the product
candidate is designed to target and the regulatippicable to any particular product candidatesfite the time and expense associated with
preclinical studies and
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clinical trials, failure can occur at any staged] are could encounter problems that require usgeator perform additional preclinical studies or
clinical trials or generate additional CMC dataeT#DA and similar foreign authorities could deliyit or deny approval of a product candid
for many reasons, including because they:

. may not deem our product candidate to be adequsdédyand effective

. may not find the data from our preclinical studiesl clinical trials or CMC data to be sufficientstigpport a claim of safety a
efficacy;

. may not approve the manufacturing processes ditiesiassociated with our product candidi

. may conclude that we have not sufficiently demaistt lon+term stability of the formulation of the drug praddor which we

are seeking marketing approval;
. may change approval policies or adopt new reguiatior

. may not accept a submission due to, among othsomeathe content or formatting of the submiss

Generally, public concern regarding thesabf drug and biologic products could delay oritiour ability to obtain regulatory approval,
result in the inclusion of unfavorable informationour labeling, or require us to undertake othwivdies that may entail additional costs.

We have not submitted an application fgerapal or obtained FDA approval for any productisTlack of experience may impede our
ability to obtain FDA approval in a timely mann#rat all, for our product candidates.

To market any biologics outside of the BdiStates, we and current or future collaboratarstimomply with numerous and varying
regulatory and compliance related requirementgiwracountries. Approval procedures vary among tt@sand can involve additional product
testing and additional administrative review pesiddcluding obtaining reimbursement and pricingrapal in select markets. The time required
to obtain approval in other countries might diffierm that required to obtain FDA approval. The dagpry approval process in other countries
may include all of the risks associated with FDAmyal as well as additional, presently unanti@gatisks. Regulatory approval in one coul
does not ensure regulatory approval in anotheralfatiure or delay in obtaining regulatory appilaweone country may negatively impact the
regulatory process in others, including the risk thur product candidates may not be approvedlfordications requested and that such
approval may be subject to limitations on the iatkd uses for which the drug may be marketed. @estauntries have a very difficult
reimbursement environment and we may not obtambersement or pricing approval, if required, incuntries where we expect to market a
product, or we may obtain reimbursement approvallavel that would make marketing a product iriarrcountries not viable.

If we experience delays in obtaining appiar if we fail to obtain approval of our produandidates, the commercial prospects for our
product candidates may be harmed and our abiligeterate revenues will be materially impaired Wwhiould adversely affect our business,
prospects, financial condition and results of opena.
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Even if we receive regulatory approval for any of our product candidates, we will be subject to ongoing regulatory obligations and continued
regulatory review, which may result in significant additional expense. Additionally, our product candidates, if approved, could be subject to
labeling and other restrictions and market withdrawal and we may be subject to penalties if we fail to comply with regulatory requirements or
experience unanticipated problems with our products.

Any regulatory approvals that we or ourtpars receive for our product candidates may assulbject to limitations on the approved
indicated uses for which the product may be matdketdo the conditions of approval, or contain liegments for potentially costly post-
marketing testing, including Phase 4 clinical sjand surveillance to monitor the safety and affjcof the product candidate. In addition, if the
FDA or a comparable foreign regulatory authoritprgves any of our product candidates, the manufiagtyprocesses, labeling, packaging,
distribution, adverse event reporting, storageedising, promotion, import, export and recordkagpfior the product will be subject to extens
and ongoing regulatory requirements. These reqe@ngsrinclude submissions of safety and other p@sketing information and reports,
registration, as well as continued compliance withrent good manufacturing practices (cGMPs), amteat good clinical practices (cGCPs),
for any clinical trials that we conduct post-apmb\ater discovery of previously unknown problewith a product, including adverse events of
unanticipated severity or frequency, undesiralde siffects caused by the product, problems encahbey our third-party manufacturers or
manufacturing processes, or failure to comply wétfpulatory requirements, either before or aftedpod approval, may result in, among other
things:

. restrictions on the marketing or manufacturinghaf product

. requirements to include additional warnings onlétel;

. requirements to create a medication guide outlitiegrisks to patient:

. withdrawal of the product from the mark

. voluntary or mandatory product reca

. requirements to change the way the product is adtaned or for us to conduct additional clinicéls;

. fines, warning letters or holds on clinical trie

. refusal by the FDA to approve pending applicationsupplements to approved applications filed bgrsur strategic partners,

suspension or revocation of product license apgspva

. product seizure or detention, or refusal to peth@timport or export of product
. injunctions or the imposition of civil or crimingknalties; an
. harm to our reputatiol

Additionally if any of our product candigstreceives marketing approval, the FDA could mequs to adopt a Risk Evaluation and
Mitigation Strategy (REMS) to ensure that the biseff the therapy outweigh its risks, which maglirde, among other things, a medication
guide outlining the risks for distribution to patie and a communication plan to health care piaicéts.

Any of these events could prevent us frafmeving or maintaining market acceptance of tlegpct or the particular product candidate at
issue and could significantly harm our businesssjpects, financial condition and results of operei

The FDA's policies may change and additigoaernment regulations may be enacted that qogdent, limit or delay regulatory approval
of our product candidates. We cannot predict tkediiood, nature or extent of government regulati@at may arise from future legislation or
administrative
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action, either in the United States or abroad.dfase slow or unable to adapt to changes in egistiquirements or the adoption of new
requirements or policies, or if we are not ablenmintain regulatory compliance, we may lose anyketing approval that we may have obtained
and we may not achieve or sustain profitabilityjekhwould adversely affect our business, prospdiciancial condition and results of
operations.

If we experience delays or difficultiesin the enrollment of patientsin clinical trials, our receipt of necessary regulatory approvals could be
delayed or prevented.

We may not be able to initiate or contielieical trials for our product candidates if weamable to locate and enroll a sufficient numif
eligible patients to participate in these trialseuired by the FDA or similar regulatory authiestoutside the United States. In addition, some
of our competitors have ongoing clinical trials fsoduct candidates that treat the same indicatisraur product candidates, and patients who
would otherwise be eligible for our clinical trialsay instead enroll in clinical trials of our contip@rs' product candidates.

Patient enroliment is affected by othetdesincluding:

. the severity of the disease under investiga

. the patient eligibility criteria for the study iugstion;

. the perceived risks and benefits of the productliclte under stud

. our payments for conducting clinical tria

. the patient referral practices of physicia

. the ability to monitor patients adequately durimgl after treatment; ar

. the proximity and availability of clinical trial teis for prospective patien

For example, in our Phase la clinical wflaKkmAb5871, which we completed in December 2a?ays in patient enroliment that were
outside our control caused several weeks of délaywe did not predict at the outset of that clhicial. Our inability to enroll a sufficient
number of patients for any of our clinical triatsutd result in significant delays and could requissto abandon one or more clinical trials
altogether. Enrollment delays in our clinical tsiahay result in increased development costs fopmduct candidates and in delays to
commercially launching our product candidatespifraved, which would cause the value of our comgardecline and limit our ability to
obtain additional financing.

The manufacture of biopharmaceutical products, including XmAb-engineered antibodies, is complex and manufacturers often encounter
difficultiesin production. If we or any of our third-party manufacturers encounter any loss of our master cell banks or if any of our third-
party manufacturers encounter other difficulties, or otherwise fail to comply with their contractual obligations, our ability to provide product
candidates for clinical trials or our productsto patients, once approved, the development or commercialization of our product candidates could
be delayed or stopped.

The manufacture of biopharmaceutical préslisccomplex and requires significant expertisg eapital investment, including the
development of advanced manufacturing techniquégeacess controls. We and our contract manufastuneist comply with cGMP
regulations and guidelines. Manufacturers of biopteereutical products often encounter difficultieproduction, particularly in scaling up and
validating initial production and contamination.€Be problems include difficulties with productiarsts and yields, quality control, including
stability of the product, quality assurance testmgerator error, shortages of qualified persoraeelyell as compliance with strictly enforced
federal, state and foreign regulations. Furthermibraicrobial, viral or other contaminations arieabvered in our products or in the
manufacturing facilities in which our products amade, such manufacturing facilities may need tolbged for an extended period of time to
investigate and remedy the contamination.
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All of our XmAb engineered antibodies aramafactured by starting with cells which are stdred cell bank. We have one master cell t
for each antibody manufactured in accordance WNP and multiple working cell banks and believewauld have adequate backup should
any cell bank be lost in a catastrophic event. Hawét is possible that we could lose multiplel banks and have our manufacturing severely
impacted by the need to replace the cell banks.

We cannot assure you that any stabilitgtber issues relating to the manufacture of anyuofproduct candidates or products will not oc
in the future. Additionally, our manufacturer magperience manufacturing difficulties due to reseutonstraints or as a result of labor disputes
or unstable political environments. If our manuteets were to encounter any of these difficultistherwise fail to comply with their
contractual obligations, our ability to provide gmpduct candidates to patients in clinical treasl products to patients, once approved, wou
jeopardized. Any delay or interruption in the sypi clinical trial supplies could delay the compde of clinical trials, increase the co:
associated with maintaining clinical trial prograaml, depending upon the period of delay, requsr®iwcommence new clinical trials at
additional expense or terminate clinical trials pbetely. Any adverse developments affecting clihatracommercial manufacturing of our
product candidates or products may result in shigrdelays, inventory shortages, lot failures, paiduthdrawals or recalls, or other
interruptions in the supply of our product candigabr products. We may also have to take inventoitg-offs and incur other charges and
expenses for product candidates or products tiidbfaeet specifications, undertake costly remgalieefforts or seek more costly
manufacturing alternatives. Accordingly, failuresddficulties faced at any level of our supply @haould materially adversely affect our
business and delay or impede the development antheccialization of any of our product candidatepmducts and could have a material
adverse effect on our business, prospects, finbommlition and results of operations.

Adverse side effects or other safety risks associated with our product candidates could delay or preclude approval, cause us to suspend or
discontinue clinical trials, abandon product candidates, limit the commercial profile of an approved label, or result in significant negative
consequences following marketing approval, if any.

Undesirable side effects caused by ourymbdandidates could result in the delay, susparsigermination of clinical trials by us, our
collaborators, the FDA or other regulatory authesifor a number of reasons. If we elect or areired to delay, suspend or terminate any
clinical trial of any product candidates that weelep, the commercial prospects of such produadtliciates will be harmed and our ability to
generate product revenues from any of these pradunctidates will be delayed or eliminated. Seradgerse events observed in clinical trials
could hinder or prevent market acceptance of thdyt candidate at issue. Any of these occurremagsharm our business, prospects, finar
condition and results of operations significantly.

In our Phase 1a clinical trial of XmAb587dr, example, some subjects reported mild to segastrointestinal symptoms including nausea,
vomiting, abdominal pain, abdominal discomfort,gggsitric discomfort (upper stomach pain) and diaride of December 31, 2013, one patient
in our ongoing Phase 1b clinical trial of XmAb5871 experieti@n infusion related reaction with hypotensiod aimer adverse events that h
been reported by investigators include nausea,timgnfever-increased temperature, headache amtthitcs. If these or other side effects cause
excessive discomfort, safety risks or reductioadoeptable dosage, then the development and comaligziton of XmAb5871 could suffer
significant negative consequences. We cannot gré@idditional types of adverse events or morésesradverse events will be observed in
future clinical trials of XmAb5871, XmAb7195 or afiyture product candidate.

In addition, we observed detectable legéisnmunogenicity, or the creation by the immunsteyn of anti-XmAb5871 antibodies, in 44%
of subjects receiving XmAb5871 in the Phase ldadirtrial. While a common occurrence for antibddgrapies, immunogenicity to XmAb58
or any of our
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other product candidates could neutralize the prearc effects of XmAb5871 or such other candidatedf/or alter their pharmacokinetics, wt
could have a material adverse effect on the effen#ss of our product candidates and on our akbdippmmercialize them.

We may not be successful in our effortsto use and expand our XmAb technology platform to build a pipeline of product candidates and
develop marketable products.

We are using our proprietary XmAb technglptatform to develop engineered antibodies, withrdtial focus on three properties: immune
inhibition, cytotoxicity and extended half-life. iBhplatform has led to our three lead product cdeteis, XmAb5871, XmAb7195 and
XmAb5574/MOR208 as well as the other programs titidize our technology and that are being develdpgdur partners and licensees. While
we believe our preclinical and clinical data toejabgether with our established partnershipsyhtdated our platform to a degree, we are at a
very early stage of development and our platforsii@ yet, and may never lead to, approved or neletherapeutic antibody products. Even
if we are successful in continuing to build ourgdipe, the potential product candidates that watiflemay not be suitable for clinical
development, including as a result of their harnsfde effects, limited efficacy or other charadtics that indicate that they are unlikely to be
products that will receive marketing approval andieve market acceptance. If we do not successfieNyelop and commercialize product
candidates based upon our technological approazimay not be able to obtain product or partnenghipnues in future periods, which would
adversely affect our business, prospects, finagoiatlition and results of operations.

We face significant competition from other biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies and our operating results will suffer if we fail to
compete effectively.

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical inmiestare intensely competitive. We have competibotd in the United States and
internationally, including major multinational phaaceutical companies, biotechnology companies . eusities and other research institutions.
Many of our competitors have substantially grefitemcial, technical and other resources, sucl@efl research and development staff and
experienced marketing and manufacturing organizatémd well-established sales forces. Competitiay imcrease further as a result of
advances in the commercial applicability of teclogads and greater availability of capital for intveent in these industries. Our competitors
succeed in developing, acquiring or licensing omeriusive basis drug products that are more éffear less costly than any product candidate
that we are currently developing or that we mayettgy.

We face intense competition in autoimmuiseake drug development from multiple monoclonébadies, other biologics and small
molecules approved for the treatment of rheumaddiatitis and autoimmune diseases many of whiclbaireg developed or marketed by large
multinational pharmaceutical companies such asd@3eithKline plc, AbbVie Inc., Janssen Pharmacelgjdac., Roche/Genentech Inc. and
Amgen Inc. GlaxoSmithKline's Benlysta (belimumabgurrently the only monoclonal antibody that we aware of that is approved for the
treatment of lupus although we believe that Biolglat/Genentech's Rituxan (rituximab) is prescrilmgtilabel, for this indication. Pfizer's
Xeljanz (tofacitinib), AbbVie's Humira (adalimuma#ymgen's Enbrel (etanercept), Janssen Pharmaaisuticc.'s Remicade (infliximab) and
Simponi (golimumab), Bristol-Myers Squibb's Oren@aatacept) and Rituxan, among others, are appfovehe treatment of rheumatoid
arthritis. In addition, these and other pharmacalitompanies have monoclonal antibodies or otlwdodics in clinical development for the
treatment of autoimmune diseases.

Many companies have approved therapieseodeveloping drugs for the treatment of asthmedting multinational pharmaceutical
companies such as GlaxoSmithKline, Roche/Genentmbartis AG and AstraZeneca plc. Monoclonal ardipdrug development has primar
focused on allergic asthma. Xolair is currently oméy monoclonal antibody that we are aware of ihafpproved
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for the treatment of severe asthma. In additionyaxtis and Genentech each have an antibody tagglefihin Phase 1 or 2 clinical development
for asthma.

Competition in blood cancer drug developtigimtense, with more than 250 compounds in cdihirials by large multinational
pharmaceutical companies and Rituxan is just omeasfy monoclonal antibodies approved for the treatrof non-Hodgkin lymphomas or
other blood cancers.

Our ability to compete successfully willpgad largely on our ability to leverage our expseeein drug discovery and development to:

. discover and develop products that are superiothter products in the mark

. attract qualified scientific, product development @ommercial personne

. obtain and maintain patent and/or other propriepaogection for our products and technolog

. obtain required regulatory approvals; ¢

. successfully collaborate with pharmaceutical congmim the discovery, development and commercitidinaf new products

The availability and price of our compatitgoroducts could limit the demand, and the prieeare able to charge, for any of our product
candidates, if approved. We will not achieve owibess plan if acceptance is inhibited by price petition or the reluctance of physicians to
switch from existing drug products to our produoctsif physicians switch to other new drug prodwmtghoose to reserve our products for use in
limited circumstances.

Established biopharmaceutical companies imagst heavily to accelerate discovery and devataqt of products that could make our
product candidates less competitive. In additioy, @ew product that competes with an approved miochust demonstrate compelling
advantages in efficacy, convenience, tolerabilitgt aafety in order to overcome price competitiod tinbe commercially successful.
Accordingly, our competitors may succeed in obtairpatent protection, receiving FDA approval ocdigering, developing and
commercializing medicines before we do, which wdudgte a material adverse impact on our businessvieot be able to successfully
commercialize our product candidates without ei&hllg sales and marketing capabilities internaflyhrough collaborators.

Risks Relating to Our Dependence on Third Parties

Our existing partnerships are important to our business, and future partnerships may also be important to us. If we are unable to maintain
any of these partnerships, or if these partnerships are not successful, our business could be adversely affected.

Because developing biologics products, oetidg clinical trials, obtaining regulatory appabvestablishing manufacturing capabilities and
marketing approved products are expensive, we éatered into partnerships, and may seek to erteanditional partnerships, with compar
that have more resources and experience thandisy@amay become dependent upon the establishmérsuacessful implementation of
partnership agreements.

Our partnership and license agreementsdecthose we have announced with Amgen, Morphd®&yahringer Ingelheim and others. These
partnerships and license agreements also havedpabus with important funding for our developmerdgrams, and we expect to receive
additional funding under these partnerships infaiiere. Our existing partnerships, and any futwagnerships we enter into, may pose a number
of risks, including the following:

. collaborators have significant discretion in det@ing the efforts and resources that they will gplthese partnership
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collaborators may not perform their obligationseapected

collaborators may not pursue development and cogialization of any product candidates that achieggilatory approval ¢
may elect not to continue or renew developmenbarroercialization programs based on clinical truits, changes in the
collaborators' strategic focus or available fundimgexternal factors, such as an acquisition, dhagrt resources or create
competing priorities;

collaborators may delay clinical trials, providsurfficient funding for a clinical trial program,oft a clinical trial or abandon
product candidate, repeat or conduct new clinigalistor require a new formulation of a productdidate for clinical testing;

collaborators could independently develop, or dgvelith third parties, products that compete diyeat indirectly with our
products or product candidates if the collaborabelgeve that competitive products are more likelpe successfully developec
can be commercialized under terms that are moneoaaically attractive than ours, which may causéatalrators to cease to
devote resources to the commercialization of oadpet candidates;

a collaborator with marketing and distribution righo one or more of our product candidates thiaieae regulatory approval m
not commit sufficient resources to the marketing distribution of such product or products;

disagreements with collaborators, including disagrents over proprietary rights, contract intergieteor the preferred course
development, might cause delays or terminatiomefrésearch, development or commercialization adyet candidates, might
lead to additional responsibilities for us withpest to product candidates, or might result igdition or arbitration, any of which
would be time-consuming and expensive;

while we have generally retained the right to meimtind defend our intellectual property underagnreements wit
collaborators, certain collaborators may not priyperaintain or defend certain of our intellectuaberty rights or may use our
proprietary information in such a way as to invitigation that could jeopardize or invalidate dntellectual property or
proprietary information;

collaborators may infringe the intellectual progerghts of third parties, which may expose ustigdtion and potential liability
collaborators may learn about our technology ardthis knowledge to compete with us in the fut

results of collaborators' preclinical or clinicalidies could produce results that harm or impdieoproducts using our Xm#
technology platform;

there may be conflicts between different collabansthat could negatively affect those partnerships potentially others; ar

the number and type of our partnerships could agerffect our attractiveness to future collabarsbr acquirers

If our partnerships and license agreeméatsot result in the successful development anchearcialization of products or if one of our
collaborators terminates its agreement with u# the case of Amgen, elects not to exercise it®opunder our agreement, we may not receive
any future research and development funding orstailee or royalty payments under the arrangemewnte iflo not receive the funding we expect
under these arrangements, our continued developrshent product candidates could be delayed anchase need additional resources to
develop additional product candidates. All of tisks relating to product development, regulatorgrapal and commercialization described in
this Annual Report also apply to the activitieoaf collaborators and
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there can be no assurance that our partnershipgcande agreements will produce positive resulsugcessful products on a timely basis or at
all.

Our partnership agreements generally grantollaborators exclusive rights under certaiowf intellectual property, and may therefore
preclude us from entering into partnerships witieos relating to the same or similar compoundscatiobns or diseases. In addition, partnership
agreements may place restrictions or additionaggabbns on our ability to license additional corapds in different indications, diseases or
geographical locations. If we fail to comply withlireach any provision of a partnership agreengeat|laborator may have the right to
terminate, in whole or in part, such agreemenbaeek damages. Many of our collaborators also theveght to terminate the partnership
agreement for convenience. If a partnership agraemeéerminated, in whole or in part, we may bahle to continue the development and
commercialization of the applicable product canttidaand even if we are able to do so, such efffioats be delayed and result in additional
costs.

There is no assurance that a collaborahar iz acquired by a third party would not attengpthange certain contract provisions that could
negatively affect our partnership. The acquiringhpany may also not accept the terms or assignnientr@ontracts and may seek to terminate
the agreements. Any one of our partners could breagenants, restrictions and/or sub-license ageaeprovisions leading us into disputes and
potential breaches of our agreements with othenges.

We may in the future determine to partnghadditional pharmaceutical and biotechnology panies for development and potential
commercialization of therapeutic products. We fsigmificant competition in seeking appropriate abtirators. Our ability to reach a definitive
agreement for a partnership will depend, amongrdttiegs, upon our assessment of the collaboratestsurces and expertise, the terms and
conditions of the proposed partnership and theqgwseg collaborator's evaluation of a number of factid we elect to fund and undertake
development or commercialization activities on own, we may need to obtain additional expertiseaattitional capital, which may not be
available to us on acceptable terms or at all.dffail to enter into partnerships and do not haficsent funds or expertise to undertake the
necessary development and commercialization deiyitve may not be able to further develop our pcodandidates or bring them to market or
continue to develop our product platform and owsibess, prospects, financial condition and resifltperations may be materially and
adversely affected.

We rely upon third-party contractors and service providers for the execution of most aspects of our development programs. Failure of these
collaboratorsto provide services of a suitable quality and within acceptable timeframes may cause the delay or failure of our development
programs.

We outsource certain functions, tests amdiges to contract research organizations (CR@eadlical institutions and collaborators as we
outsourcing manufacturing to collaborators andéstiact manufacturers, and we rely on third paftesgjuality assurance, clinical monitoring,
clinical data management and regulatory expefigealso have engaged, and may in the future enga@RO to run all aspects of a clinical
trial on our behalf. There is no assurance that suividuals or organizations will be able to pise/the functions, tests, biologic supply or
services as agreed upon or in a quality fashionnandould suffer significant delays in the devel@mtnof our products or processes.

In some cases there may be only one opfewiders of such services, including clinical datanagement or manufacturing services. In
addition, the cost of such services could be sicaritly increased over time. We rely on third pegtand collaborators as mentioned above to
enroll qualified patients and conduct, supervisg monitor our clinical trials. Our reliance on thahird parties and collaborators for clinical
development activities reduces our control ovesehactivities. Our reliance on these parties, heweloes not relieve us of our regulatory
responsibilities, including ensuring that our dlitrials are conducted in accordance with GCRIlegipns and the investigational plan and
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protocols contained in the regulatory agency apfiics. In addition, these third parties may nohplete activities on schedule or may not
manufacture under GMP conditions. Preclinical arical studies may not be performed or completealceordance with Good Laboratory
Practices (GLP) regulatory requirements or out thésign. If these third parties or collaboratoosndt successfully carry out their contractual
duties or meet expected deadlines, obtaining remylapproval for manufacturing and commercializatdf our product candidates may be
delayed or prevented. We rely substantially ordtpiarty data managers for our clinical trial ddtaere is no assurance that these third parties
will not make errors in the design, managemenetantion of our data or data systems. There issaorance these third parties will pass FD/
regulatory audits, which could delay or prohibjutatory approval.

Werely on third parties to manufacture supplies of our preclinical and clinical product candidates. The development of such candidates could
be stopped or delayed if any such third party fails to provide us with sufficient quantities of product or failsto do so at acceptable quality levels
or pricesor failsto maintain or achieve satisfactory regulatory compliance.

We do not currently have nor do we plaadquire the infrastructure or capability internalymanufacture our clinical drug supplies for
in the conduct of our clinical trials, and we lablke resources and the capability to manufacturechimigal candidates on a clinical scale. Inste
we rely on our third-party manufacturing partn€atalent Pharma Solutions LLC (Catalent) and CduriRica, LLC (Cook) for the production
of XmADb5871 and XmAb7195, respectively, and CooH tird parties for fill and testing services, prast to agreements with each. Either
Catalent or Cook may not perform as agreed, maynbble to comply with cGMP requirements and withA-Btate and foreign regulatory
requirements or may terminate its agreement with us

In addition, manufacturers are subjectrtgaing periodic unannounced inspection by the FD& @ther governmental authorities to ensure
strict compliance with government regulations. Vdendt control the manufacturing processes of eitaalent or Cook and are currently
completely dependent on each of Catalent and Garothé production of XmAb5871 and XmAb7195 in adzorce with cGMP, which include,
among other things, quality control, quality assgeand the maintenance of records and documentétiwe were to experience an unexpected
loss of supply, we could experience delays in dammed clinical trials, as Catalent or Cook wouded to manufacture additional clinical drug
supply and would need sufficient lead time to scied manufacturing slot. While there are otheeptial suppliers of clinical supplies of our
biologics, the long transition periods necessargwitch manufacturers for either XmAb5871 and XmA®F would significantly delay our
clinical trials and the commercialization of suabgucts, if approved.

We intend to rely on third parties to manufacture commercial supplies of our product candidates, if and when approved. If we are unableto
obtain a license agreement from Catalent for the manufacture of XmAb5871, if we are unable to enter into commercial supply agreements
with third-party suppliers or if any such third-party supplier failsto provide uswith sufficient quantities or fails to comply with regulatory
requirements, commercialization of such products could be delayed or stopped.

We do not currently have nor do we plaadquire the infrastructure or capability internalymanufacture our products on a commercial
scale. Although we have entered into agreementh&manufacture of clinical supplies of XmAb58THamAb7195, we have not entered i
a commercial supply agreement with either Catadei@ook and neither has demonstrated that it wiltdpable of manufacturing XmAb5871
and XmAb7195 on a large commercial scale. We ntightnable to identify manufacturers for commersigdply on acceptable terms or at all.
Moreover, our existing license with Catalent to aegain technology and know-how in the productibour XmAb5871 product candidate only
applies for so long as manufacturing services eveigled by Catalent. We expect to move manufaofuservices to another contract
manufacturing organization or to Amgen if they
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exercise their option for XmAb5871, to support {atage clinical trials for XmAb5871 as well as coarmal supplies which would require
negotiation of a license from Catalent. We expedid able to finalize such a license agreement @attalent for XmAb5871 in due course.
However, we can provide no assurances as to wiamaslicense agreement will be executed or if it bé executed at all. If we, or our
collaborator Amgen, are not able to secure a comiaidicense from Catalent, or not able to obtagommercial license on acceptable terms
may be required to change the manufacturing prdoesémAb5871. A change to the manufacturing predes XmAb5871 would cause us to
incur significant costs and to devote significaffitres to implement such a change. Additionally tate-stage clinical development and
commercialization of XmAb5871 by us or our colladors may be delayed as a result, which would rigdlieand adversely affect our busine

If our third-party manufacturers cannoteassfully manufacture material that conforms tospecifications and the applicable regulatory
authorities' strict regulatory requirements, orsp@gulatory inspection, they will not be able @swe or maintain regulatory approval for the
manufacturing facilities. In addition, we have rmmtrol over the ability of any third-party manufactr to maintain adequate quality control,
quality assurance and qualified personnel. Thditiasiused by our third-party manufacturers to ofanture XmAb5871 and XmAb7195 and
any other potential product candidates that we deaglop in the future must be approved by the apple regulatory authorities, including the
FDA, pursuant to inspections that will be conducéidr we submit our BLA to the FDA. In additionarufacturers are subject to ongoing
periodic unannounced inspection by the FDA andragbgernmental authorities to ensure strict conmgiawith government regulations. If the
FDA or any other applicable regulatory authoritiesnot approve these facilities for the manufactdreur products or if they withdraw any si
approval in the future, or if our suppliers or tharty manufacturer decide they no longer waisujaply our biologics or manufacture our
products, we may need to find alternative manufamjufacilities, which would significantly impactuo ability to market our products and our
business, prospects, financial condition and resflbperations may be materially and adversekycté.

Risks Relating to Our Intellectual Property

If we are unable to obtain, maintain and enforce intellectual property protection covering our products, others may be able to make, use or sell
products substantially the same as ours, which could adversely affect our ability to compete in the market.

Our commercial success depends, in pamuombility to obtain, maintain and enforce paseittade secrets, trademarks and other
intellectual property rights and to operate withbaving third parties infringe, misappropriate wcemvent the rights that we own or license. If
we are unable to obtain, maintain and enforcel@delal property protection covering our produotbers may be able to make, use or sell
products that are substantially the same as odh®utiincurring the sizeable development and lizensosts that we have incurred, which wc
adversely affect our ability to compete in the nearlds of December 31, 2013, we held 22 issued patnts and 56 pending U.S. patent
applications related to our XmAb technology platfioiVe have also filed and are actively pursuingtamtul patent applications in the United
States, Canada, Japan, Europe and other major thaitteer directly or via the Patent Cooperatioaafy. Our ability to stop third parties from
making, using, selling, offering to sell or impadiour product candidates is dependent upon tlemetd which we have rights under valid and
enforceable patents or trade secrets that covee thetivities. However, the patent positions opharmaceutical companies, including ours, can
be highly uncertain and involve complex legal aactdal questions for which important legal prinegoremain unresolved. No consistent policy
regarding the breadth of claims allowed in paténtbese fields has emerged to date in the UnitateS The U.S. patent laws have recently
changed, there have been changes regarding homt fmtes are interpreted, and the U.S. Patent aadénark Office (the PTO) has also
implemented changes to the patent system. Sonesé ithanges are currently being
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litigated, and we cannot accurately determine titeame of any such proceedings or predict futueages in the interpretation of patent law.
changes to patent laws which might be enacteddmtoThose changes may materially affect our patemir ability to obtain patents or the
patents and applications of our collaborators aehsors. The patent situation in the biopharmacauhdustry outside the United States is €
more uncertain. Therefore, there is no assuraratetir pending patent applications will resulthie tssuance of patents or that we will develop
additional proprietary products which are patergaMoreover, patents issued or to be issued toaysnot provide us with any competitive
advantage. Our patent position is subject to nuogeaalditional risks, including the following:

. we may fail to seek patent protection for invensidinat are important to our succe
. our pending patent applications may not resulssuéd patent:
. we cannot be certain that we are the first to ihte® inventions covered by pending patent apptinator that we were the first

file such applications and, if we are not, we maysbbject to priority disputes;
. we may be required to disclaim part or all of thert of certain patents or all of the term of certaatent application:

. we may file patent applications but have claimsrigied or we may not be able to supply sufficiéata to support our claims ai
as a result, may not obtain the original claimsrddsor we may receive restricted claims. Alteweli, it is possible that we may
not receive any patent protection from an applicgti

. we could inadvertently abandon a patent or patgpliGation, resulting in the loss of protectionceftain intellectual proper
rights in a certain country. We, our collaborator®ur patent counsel may take action resulting pratent or patent application
becoming abandoned which may not be able to bstegéd or if reinstated, may suffer patent ternusidjents;

. the claims of our issued patents or patent appicatwhen issued may not cover our product canek

. no assurance can be given that our patents woulédlared by a court to be valid or enforceablthat a competitor's technolo
or product would be found by a court to infringe patents. Our patents or patent applications neaghlallenged by third parties
in patent litigation or in proceedings before tA&OPor its foreign counterparts, and may ultimatedydeclared invalid or
unenforceable, or narrowed in scope;

. there may be prior art of which we are not awaeg thay affect the validity or enforceability of atpnt claim. There also may
prior art of which we are aware, but which we dolelieve affects the validity or enforceabilityatlaim, which may,
nonetheless, ultimately be found to affect thediglior enforceability of a claim;

. third parties may develop products which have #reesor similar effect as our products without imfing our patents. Such thi
parties may also intentionally circumvent our ptgdry means of alternate designs or processeke@piplications or be granted
patents that would block or hurt our efforts;

. there may be dominating patents relevant to ouwlyrbcandidates of which we are not aw.

. our patent counsel, lawyers or advisors may hawvengiis, or may in the future give us incorrect eghdr counsel. Opinions fro
such patent counsel or lawyers may not be corretiay be based on incomplete facts;
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. obtaining regulatory approval for biopharmaceutmalducts is a lengthy and complex process, ardrasult, any paten
covering our product candidates may expire befarshortly after such product candidates are agatr@nd commercialized;

. the patent and patent enforcement laws of soméfojerisdictions do not protect intellectual profyeights to the same extent
laws in the United States, and many companies éawveuntered significant difficulties in protectiagd defending such rights in
foreign jurisdictions. If we encounter such diffiies or we are otherwise precluded from effectiy@iotecting our intellectual
property rights in foreign jurisdictions, our buses prospects could be substantially harmed; and

. we may not develop additional proprietary techni@sghat are patentab

Any of these factors could hurt our abitibygain full patent protection for our productedistered trademarks and trademark applicatic
the United States and other countries are sulgjesittilar risks as described above for patentspatent applications, in addition to the risks
described below.

Many of our product development partnerstgpeements are complex and may call for licensimgoss-licensing of potentially blocking
patents, know-how or intellectual property. Dughte potential overlap of data, know-how and intgli@l property rights there can be no
assurance that one of our collaborators will nepdie our right to use, license or distribute dataw-how or other intellectual property rights,
and this may potentially lead to disputes, liapitit termination of a program. There are no ass@®that our actions or the actions of our
collaborators would not lead to disputes or causs® wefault with other collaborators. For example,may become involved in disputes with
our collaborators relating to the ownership of lietstual property developed in the course of thengaiship. We also cannot be certain that a
collaborator will not challenge the validity or enéeability of the patents we license.

We cannot be certain that any country'smaand/or trademark office will not implement neves which could seriously affect how we
draft, file, prosecute and/or maintain patentsjéraarks and patent and trademark applications.affieat be certain that increasing costs for
drafting, filing, prosecuting and maintaining pdternrademarks and patent and trademark applicatidhnot restrict our ability to file for pate
protection. For example, we may elect not to seskrd protection in certain jurisdictions or forteén inventions in order to save costs. We |
be forced to abandon or return the rights to sfepétents due to a lack of financial resources.

We currently rely, and may in the futurlyren certain intellectual property rights licedseom third parties to protect our technology. In
particular, we have licensed and sublicensed ceirt&llectual property relating to our Xtend teotogy from a third party. Under our license,
we have no right to control patent prosecutiorhaf intellectual property or to enforce the pateatsl as such the licensed rights may not be
adequately maintained by the licensors. The teniim®f this or other licenses could also prevenfram commercializing product candidates
covered by the licensed intellectual property.

Furthermore, the research resulting inHeensed patents was developed in the coursesafarch funded by the U.S. government. As a
result, the U.S. government may have certain riflnbsirch-in rights") to intellectual property emled in our Xtend products. Government
rights in certain inventions developed under a gavent-funded program include a non-exclusive, mansferable, irrevocable worldwide
license to use inventions for any governmental gsep Circumstances that trigger march-in righthighe, for example, failure to take, within a
reasonable time, effective steps to achieve pdaigplication of the invention in a field of u$ailure to satisfy the health and safety needs of
the public and failure to meet requirements of jpulbe specified by federal regulations. Fedemalrkequires any licensor of an invention that
was partially funded by the
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federal government to obtain a covenant from amyusive licensee to manufacture products usingrention substantially in the United
States. The U.S. government also has the righteécand disclose, without limitation, scientificalatlating to licensed technology that was
developed in whole or in part at government expefise government funding agency can elect to exertiese march-in rights on their own
initiative or at the request of a third party.

We intend to file applications for tradekeggistrations in connection with our product ddatks in various jurisdictions, including the
United States. No assurance can be given thatfamyrdrademark applications will be registeredhia United States or elsewhere, or that the
use of any registered or unregistered trademarksaovifer a competitive advantage in the marketpl&urthermore, even if we are successful in
our trademark registrations, the FDA and regulatarthorities in other countries have their own pescfor drug nomenclature and their own
views concerning appropriate proprietary namesadiurance can be given that the FDA or any otlgetatory authority will approve of any of
our trademarks or will not request reconsideratibane of our trademarks at some time in the futire loss, abandonment, or cancellation of
any of our trademarks or trademark applicationdccnegatively affect the success of the productliichates to which they relate.

If we are not able to prevent disclosure of our trade secrets and other proprietary information, the value of our technology and products could
be significantly diminished.

We rely on trade secret protection to proterr interests in proprietary know-how and ingasses for which patents are difficult to obtain
or enforce. We may not be able to protect our temirets adequately. We have a policy of requisingconsultants, advisors and collaborators
to enter into confidentiality agreements and oupleyees to enter into invention, non-disclosure mo-compete agreements. However, no
assurance can be given that we have entered ipto@jate agreements with all parties that havedtagss to our trade secrets, know-how or
other proprietary information. There is also ncuaasce that such agreements will provide for a rimggdunl protection of our trade secrets, know-
how or other proprietary information in the evehainy unauthorized use or disclosure of informatkurthermore, we cannot provide assurance
that any of our employees, consultants, contrasigomel, or collaborators, either accidentallytwotugh willful misconduct, will not cause
serious damage to our programs and/or our strateggxample by disclosing important trade seciaisw-how or proprietary information to
our competitors. It is also possible that our tragerets, know-how or other proprietary informatimuld be obtained by third parties as a result
of breaches of our physical or electronic secwytstems. Any disclosure of confidential data it® public domain or to third parties could
allow our competitors to learn our trade secretsse the information in competition against usaddition, others may independently discover
our trade secrets and proprietary information. Aatjon to enforce our rights is likely to be timensuming and expensive, and may ultimately
be unsuccessful, or may result in a remedy thadisommercially valuable. These risks are acceetluia foreign countries where laws or law
enforcement practices may not protect proprietigiyts as fully as in the United States or Europasy Anauthorized disclosure of our trade
secrets or proprietary information could harm campetitive position.

We may be required to reduce the scope of our intellectual property due to third-party intellectual property claims.

Our competitors may have filed, and mathmfuture file, patent applications covering teabgy similar to ours. Any such patent
application may have priority over our patent aggdions, which could further require us to obtagits to issued patents covering such
technologies. If another party has filed a U.Sepaapplication on inventions similar to ours tblaims priority to an application filed prior to
March 16, 2013, we may have to participate in aerfarence proceeding declared by the PTO to déterpriority of invention in the United
States. The costs of these proceedings could be
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substantial, and it is possible that such effortsilel be unsuccessful if, unbeknownst to us, thergtlarty had independently arrived at the same
or similar invention prior to our own inventionsrédting in a loss of our U.S. patent position wigspect to such inventions. In addition, changes
enacted on March 15, 2013 to the U.S. patent lademuthe America Invents Act resulted in the Unidtes changing from a "first to invent"
country to a "first to file" country. As a resulte may lose the ability to obtain a patent if adhgarty files with the PTO first and could become
involved in proceedings before the PTO to resolgpudes related to inventorship. We may also bedon@ved in similar proceedings in other
jurisdictions.

Furthermore, recent changes in U.S. pd@@ntinder the America Invents Act allows for pasttiance challenges to U.S. patents, including
ex parte reexaminations, inter parte reviews arstigrant oppositions. There is significant uncertaiyto how the new laws will be applied
if our U.S. patents are challenged using such phaes, we may not prevail, possibly resulting ber@d or diminished claim scope or loss of
patent rights altogether. Similarly, some countnegably members of the European Union, also Ipast grant opposition proceedings that can
result in changes in scope and/or cancellatioratémt claims.

Our products could infringe patents and other property rights of others, which may result in costly litigation and, if we are not successful,
could cause usto pay substantial damages or limit our ability to commercialize our products, which could have a material adverse effect on
our business.

Our commercial success depends upon olityabind the ability of our collaborators, to désg manufacture, market and sell our product
candidates and use our proprietary technologidsowitinfringing the patents and other proprietagits of third parties. There is considerable
intellectual property litigation in the biotechngipand pharmaceutical industries. For example, w@ware of issued U.S. patents and patent
applications owned by Genentech that may relagatbclaim components of certain of our product @atds, including XmAb5871,
XmAb7195 and XmAb5574/MOR208 or their manufactiké believe that these patents and patent applitatidl expire in the United States
in 2020 and 2021, respectively, but it is possib# the terms could be extended, for example,raswdt of patent term restoration to comper
for regulatory delays. While we believe that ourreat development of these candidates currently fiaio the "safe harbor" of non-infringement
under 35 U.S.C. 8271(e)(1), this protection terr@aaipon commercialization. In addition, there lbamo assurance that our interpretation of
this statutory exemption would be upheld. Furtheenwhile we believe that claims in these patergse#her invalid or not infringed, we cannot
assure you that if we were sued for infringemerthege patents that we would prevail. In ordeutzsssfully challenge the validity of any
issued U.S. patent, we would need to overcomesuprgtion of validity. This burden is a high oneuiing us to present clear and convincing
evidence as to the invalidity of such claims. Thieneo assurance that a court would find thesenslao be invalid or not infringed.

In addition, as the biopharmaceutical indusxpands and more patents are issued, thengsg&ases that there may be patents issued t
parties that relate to our products and technotifgyhich we are not aware or that we must challéogmntinue our operations as currently
contemplated. Our products may infringe or maylleged to infringe these patents. Because somaipapplications in the United States may
be maintained in secrecy until the patents areetsdbecause patent applications in the United Statd many foreign jurisdictions are typically
not published until eighteen months after filingldrecause publications in the scientific literatoiten lag behind actual discoveries, we cannot
be certain that others have not filed patentsrtieat cover our technologies, our product candidatéleir use. Additionally, pending patent
applications which have been published can, subjegrtain limitations, be later amended in a neauthat could cover our technologies, our
products or the use of our products. We may bequanty to, or threatened with, future adversariatpedings or litigation regarding intellect
property rights with respect to our products amtht@logy. Third parties may assert infringemeninetaagainst us based on existing patents or
patents that may be granted in the future.
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If we are sued for patent infringement,waild need to demonstrate that our products or oakstkither do not infringe the patent claims of
the relevant patent or that the patent claimsraralid, and we may not be able to do this. Proumnglidity is difficult. For example, in the
United States, proving invalidity requires a shayviri clear and convincing evidence to overcomeptiesumption of validity enjoyed by issued
patents. Even if we are successful in these praoggdyve may incur substantial costs and divertagament's time and attention in pursuing
these proceedings, which could have a materialradweffect on us.

Any such claims are likely to be expensivelefend, and some of our competitors may betatdestain the costs of complex patent
litigation more effectively than we can becauseg thave substantially greater resources.

If we are found to infringe a third partingellectual property rights, we could be requitedbtain a license from such third party to
continue developing and marketing our productstandnology. We may also elect to enter into sulitease in order to settle litigation or in
order to resolve disputes prior to litigation. Hee we may not be able to obtain any requirechBecon commercially reasonable terms or at
all. Even if we were able to obtain a licensepitld be non-exclusive, thereby giving our compegitaccess to the same technologies licensed tc
us, and could require us to make substantial rpyelyments. We could also be forced, including dyrtorder, to cease commercializing the
infringing technology or product. In addition, weutd be found liable for monetary damages, inclgdieble damages and attorneys' fees if we
are found to have willfully infringed a patent. &ding of infringement could prevent us from comuiglizing our product candidates or force
to cease some of our business operations, whidd ceaterially harm our business. Claims that weehansappropriated the confidential
information or trade secrets of third parties ccudgte a similar negative impact on our business.

Our intellectual property may be infringed upon by a third party.

Third parties may infringe one or more of ssued patents or trademarks. We cannot pridighen or where a third party may infringe
one or more of our issued patents or trademarksotater infringement, we may be required to fizingement claims, which can be expen
and time consuming. There is no assurance thataudvbe successful in a court of law in provingt thahird party is infringing one or more of
our issued patents or trademarks. Any claims weriagainst perceived infringers could also proviblese parties to assert counterclaims
against us, alleging that we infringe their intefleal property. In addition, in a patent infringemhproceeding, a court may decide that a pate
ours is invalid or unenforceable, in whole or imtpeonstrue the patent's claims narrowly and/fuseto stop the other party from using the
technology at issue on the grounds that our patemtsot cover the technology in question, any oicwimay adversely affect our business. Even
if we are successful in proving in a court of ldatta third party is infringing one or more of @ssued patents or trademarks there can be no
assurance that we would be successful in haltieig ifringing activities, for example, through armanent injunction, or that we would be ft
or even partially financially compensated for amyrh to our business. We may be forced to enteraritense or other agreement with the
infringing third party at terms less profitableatherwise commercially acceptable to us than iflitense or agreement were negotiated under
conditions between those of a willing licensee amdlling licensor. We may not become aware ofiedtparty infringer within legal timeframes
for compensation or at all, thereby possibly logimg ability to be compensated for any harm tolmginess. Such a third party may be operating
in a foreign country where the infringer is difficto locate and/or the intellectual property laway be more difficult to enforce. Some third-
party infringers may be able to sustain the costomplex infringement litigation more effectivelyan we can because they have substantially
greater resources. Any inability to stop third-panfringement could result in loss in market shafeome of our products or even lead to a
delay, reduction and/or inhibition of the develomptenanufacture or sale of certain products by us.
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There is no assurance that a product producedaadbg a third-party infringer would meet our ohet regulatory standards or would be safe
for use. Such third-party infringer products cointdparably harm the reputation of our productsehg resulting in substantial loss in market
share and profits.

We may be subject to claims that our employees, consultants or independent contractors have wrongfully used or disclosed confidential
information of third parties.

We employ individuals who were previoustig@oyed at other biotechnology or pharmaceuticatganies. We may be subject to claims
that we or our employees, consultants or indepdrateriractors have inadvertently or otherwise usedisclosed confidential information of
employees' former employers or other third partfés.may also be subject to claims that former eggykor other third parties have an
ownership interest in our patents. Litigation maynecessary to defend against these claims. Thamduarantee of success in defending these
claims, and if we do not prevail, we could be reegito pay substantial damages and could losesrtghimportant intellectual property. Even if
we are successful, litigation could result in sabstl cost and be a distraction to our managemayahiother employees.

Risks Related to Employee Matters and Managing Grott and Other Risks Related to Our Business

We are subject to competition for our skilled personnel and may experience challengesin identifying and retaining key personnel that could
impair our ability to conduct and grow our operations effectively.

Our future success depends on our abditgtain our executive officers and to attractireand motivate qualified personnel. If we are not
successful in attracting and retaining highly diedi personnel, we may not be able to successfulpfement our business strategy. Althougt
have not experienced problems attracting and iiatalmghly qualified personnel in the recent past; industry has experienced a high rate of
turnover of management personnel in recent yearsablity to compete in the highly competitive taohnology and pharmaceuticals industries
depends upon our ability to attract and retain lgighalified management, scientific and medicakbpenel. We are highly dependent on our
current management team, whose services are ttditiae successful implementation of our prodwuctdidate development and regulatory
strategies. In order to induce valuable employee®htinue their employment with us, we have predidtock options that vest over time. The
value to employees of stock options that vest tiaes is significantly affected by movements in stock price that are beyond our control, and
may at any time be insufficient to counteract maogative offers from other companies.

Despite our efforts to retain valuable esgpkes, members of our management team may terntir@teemployment with us at any time,
with or without notice. Further, we do not maintéikey person” insurance for any of our executivestbher employees. The loss of the services
of any of our executive officers and our inabilityfind suitable replacements could harm our bissinBnancial condition, prospects and ability
to achieve the successful development or comméaiadn of our product candidates. Our successagpends on our ability to continue to
attract, retain and motivate highly skilled sciotand medical personnel at all levels.

We may experience growth in the numbenwfemployees and the scope of our operations, edlyen clinical development. This growth
will place a significant strain on our managemepgrations and financial resources, and we may difieulty managing this future potential
growth. Moreover, no assurance can be providedabhatill be able to attract new employees to adsisur growth. Many of the other biotech
and pharmaceutical companies and academic instisithat we compete against for qualified persohaeé greater financial and other
resources, different risk profiles and a longetdnisin the industry than we do. We also may emglogsultants or part-time and contract
employees. There can be no assurance that thagigliadls are retainable. While we
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have been able to attract and retain skilled apemenced personnel and consultants in the pastssirance can be given that we will be ab
do so in the future.

We may become subject to the risk of product liability claims.

We face an inherent risk of product lidipiks a result of the clinical testing of our prodcandidates and will face an even greater rigke
or our partners commercialize any products. Hurharapeutic products involve the risk of produdbility claims and associated adverse
publicity. Currently, the principal risks we facsate to patients in our clinical trials, who mayfer unintended consequences. Claims might be
made by patients, healthcare providers or pharni@eéaompanies or others. For example, we mayuled & any product we develop allegedly
causes injury or is found to be otherwise unsuitaliring clinical testing, manufacturing, marketorgsale. Any such product liability claims
may include allegations of defects in manufacturdefects in design, a failure to warn of dangeheient in the product, negligence, strict
liability and a breach of warranties. Claims coalsb be asserted under state consumer protectionfage cannot successfully defend ourse
against product liability claims, we may incur staindial liabilities or be required to limit comma@alization of our product candidates, if
approved. Even successful defense would requirgfisignt financial and management resources. Réggsaf the merits or eventual outcome,
liability claims may result in:

. decreased demand for our products due to negaiiveperception

. injury to our reputation

. withdrawal of clinical trial participants or diffidties in recruiting new trial participant
. initiation of investigations by regulator

. costs to defend or settle the related litigat

. a diversion of management's time and our resou

. substantial monetary awards to trial participamtgatients

. product recalls, withdrawals or labeling, marketongoromotional restriction:

. loss of revenues from product sales;

. the inability to commercialize any of our produahdidates, if approve:

We may not have or be able to obtain omtai sufficient and affordable insurance coverageover product liability claims, and without
sufficient coverage any claim brought against uddcbave a materially adverse effect on our busin@sancial condition or results of
operations. We run clinical trials through inveatigrs that could be negligent through no faultwf@wn and which could affect patients, cause
potential liability claims against us and resultiglayed or stopped clinical trials. We are requivg contractual obligations to indemnify
collaborators, partners, third-party contractolisjcal investigators and institutions. These inaéinations could result in a material impact due
to product liability claims against us and/or thgseups. We currently carry $5 million in produetility insurance, which we believe is
appropriate for our current clinical trials. Althgituwe maintain such insurance, any claim that neagrbught against us could result in a court
judgment or settlement in an amount that is notoed, in whole or in part, by our insurance or than excess of the limits of our insurar
coverage. Our insurance policies also have vagaukisions, and we may be subject to a produdtitigblaim for which we have no coverage.
We will have to pay any amounts awarded by a couniegotiated in a settlement that exceed our egeelimitations or that are not covered by
our insurance, and we may not have, or be ablbtairg sufficient capital to pay such amounts. Wayralso need to expand our insurance
coverage as our business grows or if any of owlymbcandidates

53




Table of Content

is commercialized. We may not be able to maintaimcrease insurance coverage at a reasonablerciosan amount adequate to satisfy any
liability that may arise.

Our employees may engage in misconduct or other improper activities, including noncompliance with regulatory standards and requirements
and insider trading.

We are exposed to the risk of employeedfi@uother misconduct. Misconduct by employeesdmdlude intentional failures to comply
with FDA regulations, to provide accurate informatto the FDA, to comply with manufacturing starttdawe have established, to comply with
federal and state healthcare fraud and abuse ladveegulations, or to report financial informatioendata accurately or disclose unauthorized
activities to us. In particular, sales, marketing dusiness arrangements in the healthcare indargtryubject to extensive laws and regulations
intended to prevent fraud, misconduct, kickbackH;dealing and other abusive practices. These &wisregulations may restrict or prohibit a
wide range of pricing, discounting, marketing andnpotion, sales commission, customer incentive ranog and other business arrangements.
Employee misconduct could also involve the impragse of information obtained in the course of clwitrials, which could result in regulatory
sanctions and serious harm to our reputation. We hdopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethit4 is not always possible to identify
and deter employee misconduct, and the precautiertake to detect and prevent this activity maybeeffective in controlling unknown or
unmanaged risks or losses or in protecting us fyjomernmental investigations or other actions osslatge stemming from a failure to be in
compliance with such laws or regulations. If angtsactions are instituted against us, and we arsutzessful in defending ourselves or
asserting our rights, those actions could havegrfaiant impact on our business, including the asifion of significant fines or other sanctions,
and our reputation.

In addition, during the course of our opierss our directors, executives, and employees maag access to material, nonpublic information
regarding our business, our results of operationpptential transactions we are considering. Wg nta be able to prevent a director, execut
or employee from trading in our common stock onttasis of, or while having access to, material putfic information. If a director, executi
or employee was to be investigated or an actiontovhg brought against a director, executive, oplegee for insider trading, it could have a
negative impact on our reputation and our stoakepisuch a claim, with or without merit, could atesult in substantial expenditures of time
and money, and divert attention of our managensamtfrom other tasks important to the success olbasiness.

We may be vulnerable to disruption, damage and financial obligation asa result of system failures.

Despite the implementation of security nuees, any of the internal computer systems bel@ntgirus, our collaborators or our third-party
service providers are vulnerable to damage frompeder viruses, unauthorized access, natural disaséerorism, war and telecommunication
and electrical failure. Any system failure, accidensecurity breach that causes interruptionaiinosvn, in collaborators' or in thirnparty servic
vendors' operations could result in a materialugison of our drug discovery and development progra-or example, the loss of clinical trial
data from completed or future clinical trials couddult in delays in our or our partners' regulagpproval efforts and significantly increase our
costs in order to recover or reproduce the lost.de&d the extent that any disruption or securigaloh results in a loss or damage to our data or
applications, or inappropriate disclosure of coafitial or proprietary information, we may incurdility as a result, our drug discovery progre
and competitive position may be adversely affeeted the further development of our product candslatay be delayed. Furthermore, we may
incur additional costs to remedy the damages cangéuese disruptions or security breaches.
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Our businessinvolves the controlled use of hazardous materials and as such we are subject to environmental and occupational safety laws.
Continued compliance with these laws may incur substantial costs and failure to maintain compliance could result in liability for damages
that may exceed our resources.

Our research, manufacturing and developmpertesses, and those of our third-party contra@nod partners, involve the controlled use of
hazardous materials. We and our manufacturersuaiject to federal, state and local laws and regulatgoverning the use, manufacture,
storage, handling and disposal of such materialscartain waste products. Our operations involeeute of hazardous and flammable mate
including chemicals and biological materials. Operations also produce hazardous waste productsrigihof accidental contamination or
injury from these materials cannot be completeiyiglated. In the event of such an accident, wectbel held liable for any damages that result,
and any such liability could exceed our resour@és.are not insured against this type of liabililye may be required to incur significant cost
comply with environmental laws and regulationshia future, and our operations, business or assstdmmaterially adversely affected by
current or future environmental laws or regulationsiny liability thereunder.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock
The market price of our common stock is likely to be highly volatile, and you could lose all or part of your investment.

Prior to our recently completed initial fialoffering, there was no public market for oumamon stock. The trading price of our common
stock is likely to be volatile. Since our IPO, thading price of our common stock has ranged frdoweof approximately $5.75 to a high of
approximately $14.41. Our stock price could be sctjo wide fluctuations in response to a varidtfaotors, including the following:

. adverse results or delays in clinical tri¢
. inability to obtain additional funding
. any delay in filing a BLA for any of our productradidates and any adverse development or percedazise development wi

respect to the FDA's review of that BLA;

. failure to successfully develop and commercialiaemoduct candidate

. changes in laws or regulations applicable to oadpcts;

. inability to obtain adequate product supply for ptmduct candidates, or the inability to do socaeptable prices

. adverse regulatory decisior

. introduction of new products or technologies by competitors

. failure to meet or exceed product developmentraricial projections we provide to the pub

. the perception of the pharmaceutical industry lgyghblic, legislatures, regulators and the inveatraemmunity;

. announcements of significant acquisitions, stratpgrtnerships, joint ventures or capital committaday us or our competitor
. disputes or other developments relating to proamnetights, including patents, litigation matterglaur ability to obtain pate:

protection for our technologies;
. additions or departures of key scientific or mamaget personne

. significant lawsuits, including patent or stockhalditigation;
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. changes in the market valuations of similar comgs
. sales of our common stock by us or our stockholufetise future; an
. trading volume of our common stoc

In addition, the stock market in generalj the NASDAQ Global Market and biotechnology comipa in particular, have experienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations that haverofieen unrelated or disproportionate to the oipgraerformance of these companies. Broad
market and industry factors may negatively affeetmarket price of our common stock, regardlessiofictual operating performance.

In the past, securities class action litagahas often been brought against a companyiollp a decline in the market price of its secusit
This risk is especially relevant for us becaus@iéomaceutical companies have experienced signifgtack price volatility in recent years. If
we face such litigation, it could result in subsi@rcosts and a diversion of management's attertil resources, which could harm our
business.

Our principal stockholders, directors and management own a significant percentage of our stock and will be able to exert significant control
over matters subject to stockholder approval.

As of December 31, 2013 our executive effi¢ directors, 5% stockholders and their affifateneficially owned, as a group, approxime
54.3% of our voting stock. Further, John S. Staffidk, one of our directors, beneficially owns apgimately 25.0% of our voting stock and his
family members beneficially own approximately awligidnal 10.4% of our voting stock.

Therefore, our officers, directors and S%ckholders and their affiliates, including Mr. fted, will have the ability to influence us thrdu
this ownership position and so long as they costiiaubeneficially own a significant amount of outsianding voting stock. These stockholders
may be able to determine all matters requiringldtoltier approval and this concentration of owngrshay deprive other stockholders from
realizing the true value of our common stock. Bareple, these stockholders, acting together, mabheeto control elections of directors,
amendments of our organizational documents, oroaapof any merger, sale of assets, or other nwguorate transaction. This may prevent or
discourage unsolicited acquisition proposals, sffer our common stock or other transactions arayements that you may believe are in your
best interest as one of our stockholders.

We are an " emerging growth company,” and we cannot be certain if the reduced reporting requirements applicable to emerging growth
companieswill make our common stock less attractive to investors.

We are an "emerging growth company," agddfin the JOBS Act. For as long as we continugetan emerging growth company, we may
take advantage of exemptions from various reporgggirements that are applicable to other puldioganies that are not "emerging growth
companies,” including:

. being permitted to provide only two years of autliieancial statements, in addition to any requinedudited interim financi:
statements, with correspondingly reduced "Managé&mBiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord Results of
Operations" disclosure;

. not being required to comply with the auditor aaéen requirements in the assessment of our iat@ontrol over financie
reporting;
. not being required to comply with any requiremdsait tmay be adopted by the Public Company Accour@inersight Boart

regarding mandatory audit firm rotation or a suppet to the auditor's report providing additiomdbrmation about the audit a
the financial statements;
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. reduced disclosure obligations regarding executbrapensation; an

. exemptions from the requirements of holding a nodipig advisory vote on executive compensation &agdeholder approval «
any golden parachute payments not previously ajggrov

We will remain an emerging growth compantilthe earlier of (1) the last day of the fisgahr (a) following the fifth anniversary of the
completion of our recently completed initial pubdiffering, (b) in which we have total annual groseenue of at least $1 billion, or (c) in which
we are deemed to be a large accelerated filer,hwhigans the market value of our common stock ghiaglid by non-affiliates exceeds
$700 million as of the prior June 30th, and (2)dhaés on which we have issued more than $1 bilfiamon-convertible debt during the prior
three-year period.

Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth comgsuean also delay adopting new or revised accaustandards until such time as those
standards apply to private companies. We havedoay elected not to avail ourselves of this exsongfrom new or revised accounting
standards and, therefore, will be subject to tieesaew or revised accounting standards as othdicpudmpanies that are not emerging growth
companies.

We cannot predict if investors will findrocommon stock less attractive because we are angamg growth company. If some investors
find our common stock less attractive as a rethdte may be a less active trading market for oorronon stock and our stock price may be n
volatile.

Raising additional fundsthrough debt or equity financing may be dilutive or restrict our operations and raising funds through licensing may
require usto relinquish rightsto our technology or product candidates.

To the extent that additional capital ised through the sale of equity or convertible dlaturities, the issuance of those securities could
result in substantial dilution for our current dtbholders and the terms may include liquidationthieo preferences that adversely affect the rights
of our current stockholders. Existing stockhold®es not agree with our financing plans or the teofnsuch financings. Moreover, the
incurrence of debt financing could result in a sabgal portion of our operating cash flow beinglidated to the payment of principal and
interest on such indebtedness and could imposgct&sts on our operations. Debt financing and @nefd equity financing, if available, may
involve agreements that include covenants limitingestricting our ability to take specific actigissich as incurring additional debt, making
capital expenditures or declaring dividends. Inithaldl, if we raise additional funds through proddetvelopment partnerships and licensing
arrangements, it may be necessary to relinquistngiatly valuable rights to our products or profaig technologies, or grant licenses on terms
that are not favorable to us. If we are unablebtaio additional funding on required timelines, may be required to (1) seek collaborators for
one or more of our product candidates at an eat#ge than otherwise would be desirable or ondehat are less favorable than might
otherwise be available; (2) relinquish or licenseuafavorable terms our rights to technologiesrodpct candidates that we otherwise would
seek to develop or commercialize ourselves; osig@)ificantly curtail one or more of our researcldevelopment programs or cease operations
altogether. Additional funding may not be availatdeis on acceptable terms, or at all.

The clinical development stage of our operations may make it difficult for you to evaluate the success of our businessto date and to assess our
future viability.

Our operations to date have been limitear¢@nizing and staffing our company, businessrptay) raising capital, developing our
proprietary XmAb technology platform, identifyingtential product candidates, and conducting prieglirstudies and clinical trials. We are
conducting a Phase 1b/2a clinical trial for XmAbS8But have not completed any late stage clinitabktfor this or any other product candidate.
We have not yet demonstrated our ability to sudagsomplete any
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Phase 2 or pivotal clinical trials, obtain regutsgtapprovals, manufacture a commercial scale ppdu@rrange for a third party to do so on our
behalf, or conduct sales and marketing activitesessary for successful product commercializa@Gmmsequently, any predictions you make
about our future success or viability may not ba@surate as they could be if we were further adedrin development of our product
candidates.

In addition, we may encounter unforesegreases, difficulties, complications, delays ancdeo#nown and unknown factors. We will need
to transition at some point from a company witlesearch and development focus to a company capbsigpporting commercial activities. We
may not be successful in such a transition.

We expect our financial condition and ogiagaresults to continue to fluctuate significarflgm quarter to quarter and year to year due to a
variety of factors, many of which are beyond ountcol. Accordingly, you should not rely upon theu#ts of any quarterly or annual periods as
indications of future operating performance.

We have identified material weakness and significant deficienciesin our internal control over financial reporting. If our internal control over
financial reporting is not effective, we may not be able to accurately report our financial results or file our periodic reportsin a timely manner,
which may cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information and may lead to a decline in our stock price.

Effective internal control over financiajporting is necessary for us to provide reliabiaficial reports in a timely manner. In connection
with the audit of our financial statements for ylear ended December 31, 2013, we concluded thea tere a material weakness and signifi
deficiencies in our internal control over finanaieporting. A material weakness is a significarftailency, or a combination of significant
deficiencies, in internal control over financiapeoeting such that it is reasonably possible thataderial misstatement of the annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detgon a timely basis. A significant deficiencyigleficiency or combination of deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting thatés$ severe than a material weakness, yet impenaoigh to merit attention by those responsible
for oversight of a company's financial reporting.

The material weakness our independenttezgid public accounting firm identified relatedréwenue recognition as it relates to properly
recording negotiated terms and conditions in oadpct development partnerships and license agrasraad the misapplication of GAAP with
respect to the timing of the recognition of revefaresuch agreements. The significant deficiencédsted to adjustments to stock-based
compensation and additional paid-in capital, altiiothe amounts were individually and in the aggiegat material.

In an attempt to remediate our resourcekness and the significant deficiencies, we havedhadditional finance and accounting personnel
to augment our accounting staff and to provide meseurces for complex GAAP accounting mattersn@ttempt to remediate our revenue
recognition weakness, we have reviewed our reveseagnition policies and procedures, hired persiowite experience with respect to such
policies and procedures and devoted additionalress to our revenue recognition. However, we caassure you that these efforts will
remediate our material weaknesses or significafitidacy in a timely manner, or at all, or prevesstatements of our financial statements in the
future. If we are unable to successfully remediatiematerial weaknesses and our significant defagieor identify any future significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses, the accunadyiming of our financial reporting may be advéysasfected, we may be unable to maintain
compliance with securities law requirements regaydimely filing of periodic reports, and our stogtice may decline as a result.

In addition, even if we remediate our materveakness, we will be required to expend sigaifit time and resources to further improve our
internal controls over financial reporting, incladiby
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further expanding our finance and accounting sthffie fail to adequately staff our accounting diménce function to remediate our material
weaknesses and our significant deficiencies omaiilse to meet the demands that will be placed wsoas a public company, including the
requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002aibto maintain adequate internal control ovegfinial reporting, any new or recurring
material weakness could prevent our managementdmmluding our internal control over financial ogfing is effective and impair our ability
to prevent material misstatements in our finarstialements, which could cause our business torsuffe

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock by our existing stockholdersin the public market could cause our stock price to
fall.

If our existing stockholders sell, or inalie an intention to sell, substantial amounts ofcommon stock in the public market after the lock-
up and other legal restrictions on resale discussedr prospectus lapse, the trading price ofammmon stock could decline. Based on shar
common stock outstanding as of December 31, 20&3ave outstanding a total of 31,354,467 sharesmimon stock. Of these shares, only
14,639,500 shares of common stock sold in our IRGOraely tradable without restriction in the paliarket. The underwriters from our IPO,
however, may, in their sole discretion, permit officers, directors and other stockholders whosaigiect to these lock-up agreements to sell
shares prior to the expiration of the lock-up agreets.

We expect that the lock-up agreements jpémtato the IPO will expire 180 days from the dafeur prospectus, December 3, 2013. After
the lock-up agreements expire, up to an additit6a892,576 shares of common stock will be eligiblesale in the public market, under
Rule 144 or Rule 701, subject to the volume linotag, manner of sale and notice provisions. Intaadil,794,214 shares of common stock that
are subject to outstanding options as of Decembg2@13 will become eligible for sale in the pubtiarket to the extent permitted by the
provisions of various vesting schedules, the logkagreements and Rule 144 and Rule 701 under theities Act. If these additional shares of
common stock are sold, or if it is perceived thatytwill be sold, in the public market, the tradjmire of our common stock could decline.

The holders of 16,651,404 shares of ourrmomstock, or approximately 53.1% of our total tarising common stock as of December 31,
2013, will be entitled to rights with respect te tlegistration of their shares under the Secutigs subject to the 180-day lock-up agreements
described above. Registration of these shares dinel&ecurities Act would result in the shares beéng freely tradable without restriction un
the Securities Act, except for shares held byiafék, as defined in Rule 144 under the SecudtasAny sales of securities by these
stockholders could have a material adverse effethe trading price of our common stock.

Future sales and issuances of our common stock or rights to purchase common stock, including pursuant to our equity incentive plans, could
result in additional dilution of the percentage ownership of our stockholders and could cause our stock price to fall.

We expect that significant additional capitill be needed in the future to continue oumpled operations. To the extent we raise additi
capital by issuing equity securities, our stockleaddmay experience substantial dilution. We mayceshmon stock, convertible securities or
other equity securities in one or more transactaingices and in a manner we determine from tortene. If we sell common stock, convertible
securities or other equity securities in more tbae transaction, investors may be materially dilutg subsequent sales. These sales may also
result in material dilution to our existing stockdhers, and new investors could gain rights supdodaur existing stockholders.

Pursuant to our 2013 equity incentive 2013 plan), our management is authorized to getarek options and other equity-based awards
to our employees, directors and consultants. Tinebeu of shares available for future grant unde2iE3 plan will automatically increase each
year by 4% o
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all shares of our capital stock outstanding asedddnber 31 of the prior calendar year, subjedigability of our Board of Directors to take
action to reduce the size of the increase in angrgyear. Currently, we plan to register the inseebnumber of shares available for issuance
under the 2013 plan each year. If our Board of @es elects to increase the number of sharesadaifor future grant by the maximum amc
each year, our stockholders may experience addltiitution, which could cause our stock pricedd. f

Our ability to use our net operating loss carryforwards and certain other tax attributes may be limited.

Under Section 382 of the Internal RevenadeCof 1986, as amended, if a corporation undergoéswnership change,” generally defined
as a greater than 50% change (by value) in itgyequinership over a three-year period, the corpamé ability to use its pre-change net
operating loss carryforwards and other pre-chaageattributes (such as research tax credits) sebifs post-change income may be limited.
With our recent sale of common stock in an ingtiablic offering which was completed in December204e believe that we triggered an
"ownership change" limitation and our net operatoxges and tax credit carryforwards may be limite@ result. The limitation could result in
the expiration of certain of our tax credits amdited the amount of our net operating losses, wbiehid potentially result in increased future tax
liability to us.

We may also experience ownership changteeifuture as a result of future offerings anceoubsequent shifts in our stock ownershig
a result, if we earn net taxable income, our gbitituse our pre-change net operating loss camgiats to offset United States federal taxable
income may be subject to limitations, which coutdegmtially result in increased future tax liabiltty us.

We do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock so any returnswill be limited to the value of our stock.

We have never declared or paid any castetid on our common stock. We currently anticipate we will retain future earnings for the
development, operation and expansion of our busiaad do not anticipate declaring or paying any cixsidends for the foreseeable future.
Any return to stockholders will therefore be lindite the appreciation of their stock.

Provisionsin our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as provisions of Delaware law, could make it more
difficult for a third party to acquire us or increase the cost of acquiring us, even if doing so would benefit our stockholders or remove our
current management.

Some provisions of our charter documentselaware law may have anti-takeover effects¢batd discourage an acquisition of us by
others, even if an acquisition would be benefithabur stockholders and may prevent attempts bystmokholders to replace or remove our
current management. These provisions include:

. authorizing the issuance of "blank check" prefesttk, the terms of which may be established aades of which may t
issued without stockholder approval,

. prohibiting stockholder action by written consehgreby requiring all stockholder actions to beetakt a meeting of ol
stockholders;

. eliminating the ability ostockholders to call a special meeting of stockéwdpanc

. establishing advance notice requirements for notising for election to the board of directors or fooposing matters that can
acted upon at stockholder meetings.

These provisions may frustrate or prevegtattempts by our stockholders to replace or re&vaw current management by making it more
difficult for stockholders to replace members of Board of Directors, which is responsible for ajpiog the members of our management. In
addition, we are
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subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General @atpn Law, which generally prohibits a Delawaeoeporation from engaging in any of a
broad range of business combinations with an iatedestockholder for a period of three years foltmithe date on which the stockholder
became an interested stockholder, unless suchatttmss are approved by our Board of Directorss ovision could have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change of control, whetrarot it is desired by or beneficial to our stocklers. Further, other provisions of Delaware
law may also discourage, delay or prevent somemme &cquiring us or merging with us. Any provisiafrour certificate of incorporation or
bylaws or Delaware law that has the effect of daelgypr deterring a change in control could limi thpportunity for our stockholders to receive
a premium for their shares of our common stock,@ndd also affect the price that some investoesnalling to pay for our common stock.

Requirements associated with being a public reporting company will continue to increase our costs significantly, aswell as divert significant
company resources and management attention.

We have only been subject to the repontaggiirements of the Exchange Act and the othesraifel regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) since December 2013.ré/e@rking with our legal, independent accountiug financial advisors to identify
those areas in which changes should be made tiinancial and management control systems to maaaggrowth and our obligations as a
public reporting company. These areas include catp@overnance, corporate control, disclosurerotnand procedures, and financial
reporting and accounting systems. We have madeywdintbntinue to make, changes in these and aihess. Compliance with the various
reporting and other requirements applicable toipubporting companies will require considerabied]j attention of management, and financial
resources. In addition, the changes we make maenstifficient to allow us to satisfy our obligatoas a public reporting company on a timely
basis

Further, the listing requirements of The SYAQ Global Market require that we satisfy certaimporate governance requirements relating
to director independence, distributing annual aterim reports, stockholder meetings, approvalsvenithg, soliciting proxies, conflicts of
interest and a code of conduct. Our managemenobitued personnel will need to devote a substantiuant of time to ensure that we comply
with all of these requirements. Moreover, the réipgrrequirements, rules and regulations will s our legal and financial compliance costs
and will make some activities more time-consuming eostly. These reporting requirements, rulesragdlations, coupled with the increase in
potential litigation exposure associated with bargublic company, could also make it more diffi¢at us to attract and retain qualified pers
to serve on our board of directors or board conemdttor to serve as executive officers, or to olteitain types of insurance, including direct
and officers' insurance, on acceptable terms.

In addition, being a public company couldka it more difficult or more costly for us to olst@ertain types of insurance, including
directors' and officers' liability insurance, and may be forced to accept reduced policy limits @nerage or incur substantially higher costs to
obtain the same or similar coverage. The impathede events could also make it more difficultustto attract and retain qualified persons to
serve on our board of directors, our board comesttar as executive officers.

Any changes we make to comply with thedggations may not be sufficient to allow us to sBtiour obligations as a public company on a
timely basis, or at all.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable.
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Item 2. Properties.

Our principal laboratory and administratigeilities are located in Monrovia, California, wh is located in the greater Los Angeles region.
We currently lease approximately 24,000 squaredektboratory and office space in Monrovia, Catifia under a lease that expires April 30,
2015. We believe that our existing facilities adeguate to meet our current needs, and that seiigalditional alternative spaces will be avail:
in the future on commercially reasonable terms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases @&quity Securities
Market Information

Our common stock began trading on The NA®D®Blobal Market on December 3, 2013 under the syft¥dCR." Prior to such time,
there was no public market for our common stocle fidlowing table sets forth the high and low sgldses per share of our common stock as
reported on The NASDAQ Global Market for the periodicated.

On March 14, 2014, the closing price for common stock as reported on the NASDAQ Globa¢&aharket was $13.90. The following
table sets forth the high and low sale prices paresof our common stock as reported on the NAS[BAGhal Select market for the periods
indicated:

Price Range
High Low
Year Ended December 31, 201
Fourth Quarter (commencing December 3, 2( $ 10.9C $ 5.7¢

Holders of Record

As of March 14, 2014, we had 31,361,444ehaf common stock outstanding held by approxilpat&2 stockholders of record. The act
number of stockholders is greater than this nurobegcord holders, and includes stockholders wledbaneficial owners, but whose shares are
held in street name by brokers and other nomiriges.number of holders of record also does nouielstockholders whose shares may be
in trust by other entities.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any castelids on our common stock. We currently intencktain all available funds and any future
earnings to support our operations and financgtbeth and development of our business. We domenhd to pay cash dividends on our
common stock for the foreseeable future. Any futlegtermination related to our dividend policy vbi# made at the discretion of our board of
directors and will depend upon, among other factmus results of operations, financial conditioapital requirements, contractual restrictions,
business prospects and other factors our boartieuftdrs may deem relevant.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Comensation Plans
Information about our equity compensatitanp is incorporated herein by reference to ItermaflRart Ill of this Annual Report.
Performance Graph

The following graph shows a comparison fidatember 3, 2013 (the date our common stock cormadetnading on The NASDAQ Global
Market) through December 31, 2013 of the cumulatitel return for our common stock, the NASDAQ Bichinology Index (NBI) and the
NASDAQ Composite Index (CCMP). The graph assumedgitial investment of $100 on December 3, 2013
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assumes reinvestment of the full amount of alld#wids, if any.. The comparisons in the graph aréntended to forecast or be indicative of
possible future performance of our common stock.
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The performance graph shall not be deemed to be ingorated by reference by means of any general s&tent incorporating by
reference this Form 10-K into any filing under theSecurities Act of 1933, as amended or the Exchanget, except to the extent that we
specifically incorporate such information by reference, and shall not otherwise be deemed filed undstich acts.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the fiscal year ended December 8132 we issued and sold the following unregistesxlrities (excluding those previously
disclosed in a Current Report on Form 8-K):

. (1) In June 2013 and September 2013, pursuant t8dhies /-1 Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, we issuedadadn
aggregate of 7,352,940 shares of Series A-1 cahieepireferred stock to accredited investors ati@ipase price of $1.36 per
share, for an aggregate purchase price of $9,989,99

. (2) From January 1, 2013 through December 1, 20&3yranted stock options under our 2010 Equity ItieerPlan to purchas
aggregate of 502,062 shares of common stock atemise price of $4.25 per share to certain dirscfficers, employees and
consultants.

. (3) On December 3, 2013 we granted stock optionsmuogr 2013 Equity Incentive Plan to purchase 1bgltares of commc
stock at an exercise price of $5.50 to a director.

The offers, sales and issuances of the securigiesrithed in paragraph (1) were deemed to be exiamptregistration under the Securities Ac
reliance on Section 4(2) (or Regulation D promwddahereunder), in that the issuance of secutiti¢éise accredited investors did not involve a
public offering. The recipients of securities irtkaf these transactions acquired the securitiesm¥@stment only and not with a view to or for
sale in connection with any distribution thereofl @ppropriate legends were affixed to the secariisued in these transactions. Each of the
recipients of securities in these transactionsamaaccredited investor under Rule 501 of ReguldlioNo underwriters were involved in these
transactions.

The sales and issuances of securitiesidesdn paragraph (2) above were deemed to be ebfeonp registration under the Securities Act
in reliance upon Rule 701 promulgated under Se@&{bh of
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the Securities Act as transactions pursuant to eosgtory benefit plans and contracts relating topsnsation as provided under Rule 701.
Use of Proceeds

On December 2, 2013, we commenced ouaimtiblic offering pursuant to a registration staé@t on Form S-1 (File No. 3331689) tha
was declared effective by the SEC on December B3 20d that registered an aggregate of 14,639 i@s of our common stock for sale to
public at a price of $5.50 per share and an agtgegéering price of $80,517,250. The net offerprgceeds to us, after deducting underwriting
discounts and commissions and offering costs, appeoximately $72.5 million

As of December 31, 2013, we have invegiechet proceeds from our Initial Public Offeringlahe concurrent private placement in,
interest-bearing money market accounts. We intengé the net proceeds of our initial public offgrto fund the clinical development of
XmAb5871 and XmAb7195, product candidate discoverghnology development, patent prosecution agitvorking capital and other
general corporate purposes. The amounts and tiofingr actual expenditures depend on numerousradtacluding the ongoing status of and
results from clinical trials and other studiesyeedl as any strategic partnerships that we mayrénte with third parties for our drug candidates
and any unforeseen cash needs. As a result, olagaarent will retain broad discretion over the atan of the net proceeds from our IPO and
the concurrent private placement and could spemgtbceeds in ways that do not improve our restiltgperations or enhance the value of our
stock.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers
None.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The selected financial data set forth below isktifrom our audited financial statements and ntybe indicative of future operating
results. The following selected financial data ddae read in conjunction with the financial statamts and notes thereto and ltem 7,
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinanCiahdition and Results of Operations" included ets&w in this Annual Report. The
selected financial data in this section are noéited to replace our financial statements and #ta@ed notes. Our historical results are not
necessarily indicative of our future results. Amtsuare in thousands, except per share amounts.

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Statement of Operations Data
Revenue! $ 10,17 $ 9,52« $ 6,84¢
Operating expense

Research and developm 17,00( 12,66¢ 12,66

General and administratiy 3,692 3,08¢ 3,63¢
Total operating expens 20,69: 15,75¢ 16,30
Loss from operation (20,520 (6,230) (9,452)
Other income (expense

Interest incom 14 11 34

Interest expens (1,219 (2,46)) (1,850

Other income (expens 16 86 65

Loss on settlement of notes| (48,55¢) — —
Total other income (expenses), (49,739 (2,369 (1,757

Net loss (60,259 (8,599 (11,209
Net deemed contribution on exchange and sale &énpeg

stock(2) 144.76! — —
Net income (loss) per share attributable to com

stockholders(3) $ 84,50t $ (8,599 $ (11,209

Basic $ 34.1¢ $ (118.8¢) $ (154.9Y)

Diluted $ (3.85) $ (118.8¢) $ (154.99)
Weighted average shares of common stock us

computing net income (loss) per share attributtble

common stockholder:

Basic 2,472,58 72,30: 72,30:

Diluted 15,645,78 72,30: 72,30:

() See Note 2 to our Annual Financial Statements appeealsewhere in this document for a descriptibthe adjustment t
net loss resulting from exchange of convertibleesdor preferred stock.

2) See Note 2 to our Annual Financial Statements appeealsewhere in this document for a descriptibthe deemed
contribution on exchange and sale of preferrecks
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(3) See Notes 1 to our Annual Financial Statementsapyueelsewhere in this document for a descriptibtihe method use
to calculate basic and diluted loss per commones

As of December 31
(in thousands)

2013 2012
Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalel $ 7797 $ 2,312
Working capital (deficit 70,61* (22,640
Patents, licenses, and other intangible asset 8,81« 8,46(
Total asset 87,31t 11,65¢
Deferred revenue, less current port 6,30z 5,67
Convertible preferred stoc — 146,76¢
Total stockholders' equity (defici $ 73,53 (166,26
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Iltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &fnancial Condition and Results of Operations.

You should read the following discussion and ansiggyether with "ltem 6. Selected Financial Datedd our financial statements and
related notes included elsewhere in this AnnualdRef he following discussion contains forward-loakstatements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results could differ mé&ty from those expressed or implied in any ford/ooking statements as a result of various
factors, including those set forth under the captitem 1A. Risk Factors

Overview

We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutioatgany focused on discovering and developing eegatemonoclonal antibodies to treat severe
and life-threatening diseases with unmet medicatlseWe use our proprietary XmAb technology platfdéo create next-generation antibody
product candidates designed to treat autoimmunekergic diseases, cancer and other conditionsohtrast to conventional approaches to
antibody design, which focus on the portion of lamdiies that interact with target antigens, we famushe portion of the antibody that interacts
with multiple segments of the immune system. Thidipn, referred to as the Fc domain, is constadtiaterchangeable among antibodies. Our
engineered Fc domains, the XmAb technology, careaeily substituted for natural Fc domains. Weéwaiour Fc domains enhance antibody
performance by, for example, increasing immunebinbiiy activity, improving cytotoxicity or extendjncirculating half-life, while maintaining
99.5% identity in structure and sequence to naamtibodies. By improving over natural antibodydtion, we believe that our XmAb-
engineered antibodies offer innovative approachésetting disease and potential clinical advargayer other treatments.

Our business strategy is based on the ghagplay nature of the XmAb technology platforrmtodify features of natural antibodies and
create numerous differentiated antibody producticites. We have internally generated a pipelinehhs allowed us to selectively partner
certain development programs while maintaining dwhership of other programs. We also have a nummbichnology licenses under which
we have licensed the XmAb technology platform tarpiraceutical and biotechnology companies for uselimited number of programs,
providing multiple revenue streams that requirdurther resources from Xencor. There are currefitly antibody product candidates in clinical
trials that have been engineered with XmAb techgywlincluding four candidates being advanced Igrigees and development partners. At
present, our XmAb technology platform is proteddgd2 issued U.S. patents and 56 U.S. patent apiplics, in addition to foreign counterparts.

We were founded in 1997 based on protegineering technology developed by our co-foundexssis Dahiyat, Ph.D. and Stephen Mayo,
Ph.D. at the California Institute of Technology. Wagan our first therapeutic monoclonal antibodyimeering and discovery programs in 2002
and entered into our first XmAb technology liceimrs2004.

We have no products approved for commeseild and have not generated any revenues fronugredles, and we continue to incur
significant research and development expensesthed expenses related to our ongoing operationslai® we have funded our operations
primarily through the sale of our convertible preéel stock, sale of convertible promissory notedthnough payments generated from our
product development partnership and licensing geaarents.

We have incurred losses in each year @iocénception. Our net losses were $60.3 millidhgdmillion and $11.2 million for years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivelypfAecember 31, 2013, we had an accumulated defi@227.6 million. Substantially all of
our operating losses resulted from expenses irntimreonnection with our product candidate develeptprograms, our research activities and
general and administrative costs associated witloperations, as well, as a $48.6 million loss@i2related to the settlement of notes.
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We expect to continue to incur significarpenses and increasing operating losses forgittleanext several years. In the near term, we
anticipate that our expenses will increase as we:

. continue clinical development of our XmAb5871 pragrpursuant to our collaboration and option agre¢nmvéh Amgen, Inc
(Amgen), which will require additional expenditurfes clinical trials and toxicology studies to swppthe clinical trials, includin
the manufacture of additional supply of the prodisstdidate;

. continue development of our XmAb7195 program, whidghrequire expenditures for clinical trials atakicology studies ti
support the clinical trials, including the manutaet of additional supply of the product candidate;

. continue research expenditures in developing amdraxing our pr-clinical programs and investing in improving outibady
discovery platform and technologies; and

. provide general and administrative support foraperations
Key Company Milestones

XmAb5871. In December 2010, we entered into a Collabamnatind Option Agreement with Amgen for an optiontfe acquisition by
Amgen of exclusive rights to our XmAb5871 produahdidate and received an $11.0 million upfront paytnFor more information on our
agreement with Amgen, see the section entitleddiroDevelopment Partnerships, Other Commerciat&gients and Technology Licenses”
beginning on page 15 of this Annual Report. In 3an2013, we initiated a Phase 1b/2a clinical fidgalXmAb5871 and received a $2.0 million
milestone payment. We expect to have preliminasylte from the Phase 1b/2a trial treating patievitis rheumatoid arthritis with active disease
on stable non-biologic DMARD therapy in the secbiatf of 2014. We expect to initiate the Phase Zimpof-concept trial in the first half of
2015 and complete the trial and deliver the clinidal package to Amgen in 2017, following whictmgen will have 90 days to review the data
and exercise its option.

XmAb7195. We expect to file an investigational new drpglacation (IND) with the FDA for our XmAb7195 progm in the first half of
2014 and to begin dosing subjects in a Phase diaallirial. We expect to complete the initial Plds: clinical trial at the end of 2014. Further,
we plan on initiating a Phase 1b clinical triaDehAb7195 in healthy volunteers and in patients waititd-to-moderate asthma in early 2015.

XmAb5574/MOR208. In June 2010, we entered into a Collaboratimhlacense Agreement with MorphoSys AG (MorphoSgs)the
worldwide rights to our XmAb5574/MOR208 product datate, for which we received an upfront paymer§.0 million in July 2010.
MorphoSys initiated a Phase 2 clinical trial witmXb5574/MOR208 in May 2013, treating patients witin-Hodgkin lymphoma (NHL) and a
second Phase 2 clinical trial in April 2013 to trpatients with acute lymphoblastic leukemia (ALLh conjunction with the initiation of these
trials, we received two milestone payments totaBd million. In addition, an investigator-sporstrial in chronic lymphocytic leukemia
(CLL) in combination with lenalidomide began in dany 2014For more information on our agreement WitiphoSys, see the section entitled
"Product Development Partnerships, Other CommeAgatements and Technology Licenses" beginningame A5 of this Annual Report.

Preferred Stock Financing and Note Conwerghigreement From our inception in 1998 through 2007, we ptated the sale of five
rounds of convertible preferred stock: Series AjeSeB, Series C, Series D and Series E convertifgferred stock (Preferred Series A - E) for
total proceeds of $146.8 million, which amountlassified as mezzanine equity as of December 3112.28 2009 and 2010, we sold a total of
$15.1 million of convertible promissory notes (tetes) to our existing preferred stockholders. Woges originally carried an interest rate of
10.0% per annum and originally
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matured within 12 months of issuance. In 2011 Nb&s were amended to extend the maturity dateete@ber 31, 2012 and to increase the
interest rate on the Notes to 12.5% per annum01r2 2and 2013, the Notes were amended on multigiasiens to subsequently extend the
maturity date to March 31, 2013, April 15, 2013 dindlly to June 15, 2013. The Notes provided thagn a change of control or other
liquidation event, the outstanding principal andraed interest of the Notes would be converted shtares of our Series E-1 convertible
preferred stock, at a per share price of $2.41¢hviiould be entitled to payment of a liquidatioeference equal to three times such per share
price in priority to any liquidation payments to im@de to any other series of convertible prefestedk or common stock. The principal amount
of the Notes, together with accrued and unpaidéstewas $20.9 million as of December 31, 2012vaas shown as a current liability on our
balance sheet for such date.

In June 2013, our Board of Directors arelrquisite holders of the Notes and requisitegprefl stockholders agreed to a series of
transactions to exchange the Notes and existingiifed Series A - E for a new class of preferredlstthe Series A-1 convertible preferred
stock, and also authorized the sale of up to $aflldon of Series A-1 convertible preferred stockexisting stockholders. The transaction was
completed in the following steps:

. an exchange of the outstanding principal due oNtbtes for shares of Serie-1 convertible preferred stock and cancellatio
the accrued and unpaid interest thereon, pursaaniibte Conversion Agreement;

. an exchange of the current outstanding sharesedéfPed Series - E for Series -1 convertible preferred stock pursuant to
operation of provisions in our certificate of inporation, which was amended and restated in colmmegith this series of
transactions;

. the sale of an additional $7.6 million in Serie-1 convertible preferred stock to existing stockleoddthat closed in June 20:

. the conversion of certain shares of Seri-1 convertible preferred stock into shares of Sek-2 convertible preferred stock a
conversion rate of 1 for 3, pursuant to a mandatornwersion provision in our amended and restagetificate of incorporation;
and

. the sale of an additional $2.4 million in Serie-1 convertible preferred stock to existing stockleoddthat closed in Septemt
2013.

The primary business purpose for this sesfaransactions was to raise an additional $a0l@n of capital from the sale of shares of our
Series A-1 convertible preferred stock (the FinaggiThe exchange of Notes, cancellation of interestatement of our certificate of
incorporation to effect the exchange of PreferredeS A - E for Series A-1 convertible preferreac&tand the conversion of certain shares of
Series A-1 convertible preferred stock for shafeSasies A-2 convertible preferred stock were eaetpotiated aspects of, and conditions to, the
Financing. When considering the terms for the Féiram our Board of Directors took these conditiorte account and, ultimately, determined
that the Financing was in the best interests oXhmmpany and our stockholders.

Subsequent to approval of the FinancingunyBoard of Directors, the requisite stockholderd holders of the Notes also approved this
series of transactions.

Under the terms of the Note Conversion &grent, the total outstanding principal due on th&bl as of June 13, 2013 was exchanged for
45,902,321 shares of Series A-1 convertible pre€estock, 5,303,597 of which were subsequently eded into 1,766,097 shares of Series A-2
convertible preferred stock. We determined thafpireshare fair value of the shares of Series Arivertible preferred stock issued under the
Note Conversion Agreement was $1.54 and the tataVélue of the shares of Serie-1 convertible preferred stock was $70.7 millionl ave
recognized a loss on the exchange of $48.6 miftorthe difference in the fair value of the shavéSeries A-1 convertible
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preferred stock and the carrying value of the Natesf June 13, 2013. The $48.6 million loss i®regl on our Statement of Operations as a
Loss on Settlement of Notes as an Other Expengaddivelve months ended December 31, 2013. Adsacieansaction costs of $41,000
related to the exchange were expensed.

After the exchange of the Notes, the ontlitey shares of Preferred Series A - E were exathfa 1,977,137 shares of Series A-1
convertible preferred stock, 257,409 of which wasbsequently converted into 85,717 shares of Saresonvertible preferred stock. We
determined the fair value of the shares of Seridscanvertible preferred stock issued to be $3l0aniand we recorded a deemed contribution
to equity of $140.6 million (net of original issu@ncosts of $3.0 million) equal to the differencehe fair value of the shares issued and the
carrying value of the existing shares of PrefeBedes A - E.

On June 26, 2013 we sold 5,586,510 additishares of Series Aconvertible preferred stock to existing stockleosédfor gross proceeds
$7.6 million at a purchase price of $1.36 per shéfe determined that the fair value of the shaoé t® be $8.6 million and we recorded a
deemed dividend of $1.0 million for the differeringhe sales price of the Series A-1 convertibkfgnred stock and the fair value of the shares.
The $40,000 of transaction costs related to thewak recorded against Additional Paid-in Capital the shares of Series A-1 convertible
preferred stock issued were recorded at theivtdire on our balance sheet as of December 31, 2013.

We determined that the fair value of thee®eA-1 and Series A-2 convertible preferred staslof June 26, 2013 was $1.54 and $0.58,
respectively. We used the probability-weighted exge return method (PWERM) to determine the falu@af the shares of the Series A-1 and
Series A-2 convertible preferred stock. PWERM $e@nario-based analysis that estimates the valughpee based on the probability-weighted
present value of expected future investment refuwmssidering each of the possible outcomes aveitatus, as well as the economic and co
rights of each share class.

On September 23, 2013 we sold 1,766,43Qiaddl shares of Series A-1 convertible preferstatk for gross proceeds of $2.4 million at a
purchase price of $1.36 per share. We determireeththvalue of the shares of Series A-1 convestiiseferred stock sold to be $4.7 million,
based on a per share fair value of $2.69, and earded a deemed dividend of $2.3 million for thiéedénce in the sales price of the Series A-1
convertible preferred stock and the fair valuehef shares. We determined the fair value of theeSéYil convertible preferred stock as of
September 23, 2013 by estimating the enterprigeevafl the Company based on a projected offeringepn an initial public offering. The
Company filed a confidential registration on Segteml1, 2013 and estimated a per share price @spieémber 23, 2013 of $2.69 per share.
Transaction costs of $34,000 related to the sate vezorded against Additional Paid-in Capital #relshares of Series A-1 convertible
preferred stock were recorded at their fair valn@or balance sheet.

The outstanding shares of Series A-1 cdiblempreferred stock and Series A-2 convertiblefgmed stock had an aggregate liquidation
preference of $150.0 million that increased at &gmnum and was payable to the holders of Serksdnvertible preferred stock and
Series A-2 convertible preferred stock upon a salether liquidation of the Company.

The Series A-1 convertible preferred stacl Series A-2 convertible preferred stock weresedible into shares of common stock on a 3.1
for 1 basis, subject to adjustment if we issue tamtthl equity at a price per share that is lesa tha per share price of the Series A-1 convertible
preferred stock and Series A-2 convertible pretesteck, as applicable. All of the outstanding &e#-1 convertible preferred stock and
Series A-2 convertible preferred stock automatjoatinverted into common stock effective as of ttiectiveness of the registration statement.
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Because a deemed liquidation event and payof the preferred stock liquidation preferenoasld occur outside the control of our
management, we have classified all convertiblegorefl stock outside of stockholders' equity (dgfforr periods the shares remained
outstanding at year-end.

On November 1, 2013, our board of directord the requisite holders of our voting stock ari#ted the filing of a certificate of amendment
to our amended and restated certificate of incapam for the purposes of effecting a 3.1-for-lemese split of the common stock. The certificate
of amendment was filed on November 1, 2013 andtihek split became effective as of that date.

On December 3, 2013, our registration state on Form S-1 related to our Initial Public @ifig became effective and 49,671,392 shares
of Series A-1 preferred stock converted into 16,922 shares of common stock and 1,851,814 shai®erigfs A-2 preferred stock converted
into 597,359 shares of common stock.

Financial Operations Overview

Revenues

To date, we have not generated any revefnoiesproduct sales and do not expect to do sthieforeseeable future. Revenues to date have
been generated primarily from our research andymtodevelopment partnerships and technology licgnagreements. Since our inception
through December 31, 2013, we have generated $iidn in revenues under our various product depeient partnership and technology
license arrangements. Several of our product dpuetat partnership and technology license agreenpeotgde us the opportunity to earn fut
milestone payments, royalties on product salesoatidn exercise payments. However, receipt of fitailestone payments and royalties from
our collaborators and receipt of option paymengsret wholly within our control, and the partiesowar product development partnerships and
license agreements have the right to cancel thegrams without any future payments to us. Evereifreceive future milestones, royalties and
option payments, these payments will not be sefficto fund our operations in the near term antetiseno assurance that we will generate any
future revenues from our existing product developihpartnerships and license agreements. We mayatsgenerate any product revenue from
our existing clinical development programs or ahgur preclinical development programs, as we meyen succeed in obtaining regulatory
approval or commercializing any of these programs.

Summary of Collaboration and Licensing Revenue by Partner

The following is a comparison of collabdwatand licensing revenue for the years ended Dbeefil, 2013, 2012 and 2011 (in millions):

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Amgen $ 22 $ 1€ $ 2C
MorphoSys 3.C 2.C 2.2
Janssel — 14 1.C
Merck 1.C —_ —
Alexion 0.€ — —
CSL 2.€ 1. 1.3
Bl — 1.2 —
Other 0.2 1.2 0.3
Total $ 102 $ 95 $ 6.8
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Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses conisigtrity of salaries, benefits, stock-based comp#ars and related personnel costs, supplies,
facility costs and preclinical testing costs anesfpaid to external service providers. Externalisemproviders include contract research
organizations (CRO) and contract manufacturing mieggions (CMO) to conduct clinical trials, manufaing and process development, IND-
enabling toxicology testing and formulation of adial drug supplies. We expense research and dewelopexpenses as incurred. We accour
nonrefundable advance payments for goods and ssrthat will be used in future research and devedsyt activities as expense when the
service has been performed or when the goods teerereceived. We estimate preclinical study amdoell trial expenses based on the services
performed pursuant to the contracts with researsfitutions and clinical research organizations tomduct and manage preclinical studies and
clinical trials on our behalf based on the actimktand expenses incurred by them. We accrue egpeakated to clinical trials based on the
level of patient enrollment and activity accordioghe related agreement. We monitor patient emmit levels and related activity to the extent
reasonably possible and adjust estimates accoydi@gir estimates of clinical trial expense havetfhated on a period-to-period basis due to
changes in the stage of the clinical trials anéepaenroliment levels. We expect to experiencerdinuing pattern of fluctuations in clinical tr
expenses as current clinical trials are completetes we initiate the next stage of clinical tridle date, we have not experienced significant
differences between our periodic estimates of cihirial expense and the actual costs incurredeXpgect changes in future clinical trial
expenses to be driven by changes in service proeaits and changes in clinical stage and patmallenent. We have incurred a total of
$192.3 million in research and development expefisesinception through December 31, 2013.

At this time, due to the risks inherenthe clinical development process and the earlyestdigur development programs, we are unable to
estimate with any certainty the costs we will incuthe continued development of XmAb5871, XmAb7t®@%&ny of our preclinical developm:
programs. We expect that our research and develupempenses may increase over spending levelsantgears if we are successful in
advancing XmAb5871, XmAb7195 or any of our predatiprograms into advanced stages of clinical dgmknt. The process of conducting
preclinical studies and clinical trials necessarglbtain regulatory approval is costly and timestoning. We or our partners may never succeed
in achieving marketing approval for any of our protdcandidates. Numerous factors may affect thbainitity of success for each product
candidate, including preclinical data, clinicalaatompetition, manufacturing capability, apprdwakregulatory authorities and commercial
viability.

Our research and development operationsargucted such that design, management and eleslwditresults of all of our research and
development is performed internally, while the ext&m of certain phases of our research and dewsdop programs, such as toxicology studies
in accordance with Good Laboratory Practices (GBRY, manufacturing in accordance with current Gdadiufacturing Practices (cGMP), is
accomplished using CROs and CMOs. We account §sareh and development costs on a program-by-progaais except in the early stages
of research and discovery, when costs are ofteatddvo identifying preclinical candidates and impng our discovery platform and
technologies, which are not necessarily allocabke $pecific development program. We assign costsuch activities to distinct projects for
preclinical pipeline development and new techn@egiVe allocate research management, overhead, musnosed laboratory supplies and
equipment, and facility costs based on the numbgiletime research personnel allocated to eady@m.
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The following is a comparison of researntl development expenses for the years ended Dec&hp2013 and 2012 (in millions):

Years Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Product programs:

XmAb5871 $ 77 $ 51 ¢ 42
XmAb7195 5.8 2.€ 1.8
XmAb5574/MOR20¢ 0.4 1.t 2.2
Other 3.4 8k 4.4
Total research and development expens: $ 17.C $ 127 $ 12.7

We initiated a Phase 1b/2a clinical triaKenAb5871 in January 2013 and expect to initiaRhase 1a clinical trial of XmAb7195 in the
first half of 2014. All of our other programs aregreclinical development or are being developetdansees or collaborators. The successful
development of our current and future product odatgis is highly uncertain and may not result ireypgd products. Completion dates and
completion costs can vary significantly for eacbdarct candidate and are difficult to predict fockeaandidate. Given the uncertainty associated
with clinical trial enroliment rates and the riskberent in the development process, we are urtalsletermine the duration and completion c
of the current or future clinical trials of our piuct candidates or if, or to what extent, we wihgrate revenues from the commercialization and
sale of any of our product candidates. We antieipa will need to raise additional capital or maglsadditional partnerships in the future in
order to complete the development and commerctaizaf our product candidates.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses copsisarily of salaries and related benefits, inahgdstock-based compensation related to our
executive, finance, business development and stfipartions. Other general and administrative egpsrinclude rent and utilities, travel
expenses and professional fees for auditing, tddegal services. We expect that general and adtrative expenses may increase in the future
as we advance our development programs furtheddition, general and administrative costs are ewrpeto reflect increased costs associated
with our becoming a public reporting company. Weehimcurred $2.4 million one-time costs in 2013oagsted with our Initial Public Offering,
consisting primarily of legal, accounting and undgter fees which have been netted against IPOgads.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income (expense), net, consists pifynaf interest expense incurred on our conveetipfomissory notes issued in 2009 and 2010,
interest income and miscellaneous gains and lass#se sale of excess equipment. Other income (m&)enet, for the period ended
December 31, 2013 also reflects the loss of $48l®mwe recognized on the exchange of the corilviernotes for preferred stock as described
further in Note 2 to our audited financial statetsancluded elsewhere in this Annual Report on Fh¥K.

Critical Accounting Policies Significant Judgmentsand Estimates

Our management's discussion and analysiardinancial condition and results of operatibased on our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordégtitaccounting principles generally accepted m thmited States (GAAP). The preparation
of our financial statements in conformity with GAA&quires our management to make estimates anchpeus that
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affect the amounts and disclosures reported ifitl@cial statements and accompanying notes. Acésallts could differ materially from those
estimates. Our management believes judgment idviestdn determining revenue recognition, the failue-based measurement of stock-based
compensation, accruals and warrant valuations n@uragement evaluates estimates and assumptioasteisid circumstances dictate. As
future events and their effects cannot be deteminivith precision, actual results could differ frdhese estimates and assumptions, and those
differences could be material to the financialestants. If our assumptions change, we may neexVigerour estimates, or take other corrective
actions, either of which may also have a matedsakese effect on our statements of operationsidityuand financial condition.

While our significant accounting policie® @escribed in more detail in Note 1 to our firahstatements included elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, we believe the following aauting policies to be critical to the judgments @stimates used in the preparation of our
financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We have, to date, earned revenue from relseallaborations, which may include research @dexklopment services, licenses of our
internally-developed technologies, or a combination of both.réd¢ognize revenue when all of the following cidtere met: persuasive evidel
of an arrangement exists, transfer of or accessctmology has been completed or services haverkedered, our price to the customer is fixed
or determinable, and collectability is reasonalsisused. The terms of our license and research ereglabment agreements include
nonrefundable upfront payments and license fedsstone and other contingent payments to us foathéevement of defined collaboration
objectives, and certain clinical, regulatory ani@sdased events, as well as royalties on salesyo€ommercialized products. The terms of our
licensing agreements include non-refundable upfiees, annual licensing fees and contingent paysrard milestones for the achievement of
pre-defined preclinical, clinical, regulatory arales-based events by our partners. The licensirggagents also include royalties on sales of any
commercialized products by our partners.

Multiple-Element Revenue Arrangements

Certain of our product development partinigrand technology license agreements represettiphesélement revenue arrangements. To
account for such transactions, we determine thaeiés, or deliverables, included in the arrangerardtdetermine which deliverables are
separate units for accounting purposes. We condilefered items to be separate units of accourititng delivered items have stand-alone
value to the customer. If the delivered items apmasate units we allocate the consideration redevelue under the arrangement to the various
elements based on each element's relative selliog. @ he identification of individual elementsammultiple-element arrangement and the
estimation of the selling price of each elemenbing significant judgment, including considerat@sto whether each delivered element has
standalone value to the customer. We determinedtimated selling price for deliverables withinleatrangement using vendor-specific
objective evidence (VSOE) of selling price, if dable, or third-party evidence of selling pric&/tOE is not available, or our best evidence of
selling price if neither VSOE nor third-party evide is available. Determining the best estimatgetiing price for a deliverable requires
significant judgment. The basis of our estimatsaifing price is the arm's length negotiation with licensee that occurs in each transaction
potential value of our technology to a licensea transaction depends on a variety of factors @niqieach transaction. Factors that impact the
negotiation and hence that we consider in our eséismcenter on the specific product candidate reidde: the product candidate's potential
market size, the product candidate's stage of dprednt, the existence of competitive technolodies tould be substituted for ours by the
licensee and the scientific assessment of the ptadundidate's likelihood of success at variousligpment stages. The most common
deliverable is the
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commercial license for our technology in the pradiandidate, and frequently a research licenseavitbption for commercial license. The
upfront payments, annual license fees, milestondsayalties relate to these licenses and/or ogptéond depend on the product-specific factors
described above. The other significant deliverébhesearch and development services and theforitkese depends on estimates for our
personnel and supply costs and the costs of thirtgontract research organizations necessanypoost the services.

We use our best estimate of selling pricestimate the selling price for licenses to oohtmlogies and product candidates and our res
and development services, since we do not have 8@iird-party evidence of selling for these defables. We recognize consideration
allocated to an individual element when all otlearenue recognition criteria are met for that eletm®nr multiple-element revenue
arrangements may include the following:

. License Arrangement The deliverables under our product developmenhpeship and technology license agreements géy:
include exclusive or non-exclusive licenses to onmore of our technologies. The technologies @agplied to a collaborator's
product candidates for discovery, development, faarturing and commercialization. We will also eritéo agreements for the
exclusive or non-exclusive licenses to our intdynaéveloped product candidates. To account far¢élément of the arrangement,
we evaluate whether the exclusive or non-excluétemse has standalone value apart from the uretelivelements to the
collaborator, which may include research and degraknt services or options for commercial licenbasged on the consideration
of the facts and circumstances of each arrangernimehiding the research and development capalsildfehe collaborator and
other market participants. We recognize arrange@mgideration allocated to licenses upon delieéhe license, if the facts
and circumstances indicate the license has stamelaklue apart from the undelivered elements.clisfand circumstances
indicate that the delivered license does not htaredsilone value from the undelivered elements,agegnize the revenue as a
combined unit of accounting. In those circumstanveesecognize revenue from non-refundable upfreesfin the same manner
as the undelivered item(s), which is generallygbgod over which we provide research and developsngervices.

. Research and Development Servic The deliverables under our product developmerihpeship and technology licen
arrangements may include research and developraetas we perform on behalf of the collaboratcs.the provision of
research and development services is an integrebpaur operations and we may be principally cesible for the performance
of these services under the agreements, we re@grnienue on a gross basis for research and devefdservices as we perfc
those services. Additionally, we recognize reseaetdted funding under collaboration research albpment efforts as
revenue as we perform or deliver the related sesviic accordance with contract terms.

. Milestone Revenu« Our product development partnership and techiydiognse agreements generally include contin
contractual payments related to achievement ofifipeesearch, development and regulatory milestcared salebased milestor
that are based solely upon the performance ofd¢bador or collaborator. Research, developmentegaatory contingent
contractual payments are typically payable undercollaborations when our collaborator selectsramaund, or initiates or
advances a covered product candidate in preclinicainical development, upon submission for mérigeapproval of a covered
product with regulatory authorities, upon receipactual marketing approvals of a covered produdboadditional indications,
upon the first commercial sale of a covered pradbates-based contingent contractual paymentypieatly payable when
annual sales of a covered product reach specifiddeAt the inception of each arrangement thduohes contingent contractual
payments, we evaluate whether each potential payamehmilestone event is substantive and at ridgoth parties based on the
basis of the contingent nature of the milestoneeWwe
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evaluate factors such as scientific, regulatormmercial and other risks that we must overcomeliexe the respective
milestone event, whether the contractual paymamsatl each milestone event is reasonable relatia# tieliverables and
payment terms in the arrangement in making thisssssent and whether the contingent contractual gayralates solely to past
performance. Additionally, certain of our produetvdlopment and technology license arrangementsmshyde milestone
payments related to the achievement of specifieared and development milestones, which are adhiemehole or in part on
our performance

We recognize any payment that is contingent uperatthievement of a substantive milestone entiretizé period in which the milestone is
achieved. A milestone is defined as an event #uatonly be achieved based in whole or in part tireeon our performance, or the performance
of our collaborators, or the occurrence of a sjeoifitcome resulting from our past performanceafbich there is a substantive uncertainty a
date the arrangement is entered into that the eviirite achieved.

Capitalized | ntellectual Property Costs

We capitalize and amortize third-party lletetual property costs such as amounts paid teideipatent counsel for filing, prosecuting and
obtaining patents for our internally developed textbgies and product candidates, to the extent patdnts are deemed to have probable future
economic benefit. We also capitalize amounts pattiitd parties for licenses that we acquire féeliectual property or for research and
development purposes. The total capitalized patéoéhses and other intangible assets as of Dese@i) 2013 and 2012 was $8.8 million and
$8.5 million, respectively. We believe that theests should be capitalized as the intellectual gntypportfolio is the underlying property right
our technologies and product candidates and supff@tupfront payments, licensing fees, and miresfrayments made by our collaboration
partners for licensing our technologies and prodaadidates.

We begin amortization of capitalized patewdts during the period that we obtain a patdating to the capitalized cost over the shorter of
the patent life or the estimated economic usefiel Capitalized licensing costs are amortized b@gunin the period that access to the license or
technology is available and is amortized over tiwter of the license term or the estimated ecooarséful life of the licensed asset. Such
amortization is reflected in the General and Adstiaitive section of our Statement of Operations.

On a regular basis we review the capitdlinéellectual property portfolio and determinghiére have been changes in the scientific or
landscape that leads us to decide to abandon prod@ss patent application or abandon a previassiyed patent. While we confer with outside
patent counsel, the decision to continue prosegumtain patent claims or abandon other claimsrexge by us based on our judgment and
existing knowledge of our technology, current LaABd foreign patent authority rulings and expectdithgs, and scientific advances and patent
filings by competitors operating in our technolagydrug development field. We record an expensetfeviously capitalized intangible assets in
the period that the decision to abandon a clailitense is made. We also review the carrying valugapitalized licensing costs on a regular
basis to determine if there have been any chawogbe tuseful life or estimated amortization perawer which the costs are being amortized. We
recorded a charge for previously abandoned intémgitsets of $205,000 and $388,000 for the yealsdebecember 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Such charges are reflected in thee@¢and Administrative section of our StatemenDpérations.
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We determine if there has been an impaitrokaur intangible assets which include the cdigitd patent and licensing costs whenever
events such as recurring operating losses or ceangdgrcumstances indicate that the carrying arhofithe assets may not be recoverable. We
evaluated the undiscounted cash flows relatede@#tent portfolio and determined that the futuréiscounted cash flows exceeded the cari
value of the assets as of December 31, 2013. Wédndlly evaluated the undiscounted cash flows tredpotential for impairment for the four
technology categories of our patent assets (IIbC&DXtend and bi-specific) by modeling the caslw#idrom our lead internal product
development programs, XmAb5871 and XmAb7195, artghBed programs that use each particular cate§patent asset. We used multiple
published sources of pharmaceutical developratage product failure rates to estimate failuresat each stage of clinical development in ¢
to apply a probability weighting to cash flows &ach internal and licensed program.

Preferred Stock Financing and Note Conversion Agreement

In June 2013, our Board of Directors arelréquisite holders of the Notes and requisitedrsldf our preferred stock, agreed to exchange
the Notes and their shares of Preferred Seriek £for shares of Series A-1 convertible preferredlst Our Board of Directors and stockholders
also authorized a sale of up to $10.0 million iarsis of Series A-1 convertible preferred stockuoexisting stockholders at a purchase price of
$1.36 per share.

This series of transactions, as describgtiér above, was between us and our existing Btodkrs. Under ASC 470-509, the exchange
Notes for shares of preferred stock was treatehastinguishment of debt and we recognized adngke Note exchange of $48.6 million
the year ended December 31, 2013. The exchandgedssof Preferred Series A - E for shares of SeYié convertible Preferred stock was
treated as a redemption of the shares of Pref&eeds A - E and we recognized a deemed contribti@quity of $140.6 million (net of
original issuance costs of $3.0 million relatedghares of Preferred Series A - E) for the year éfdkrember 31, 2013.

Both the loss on the exchange of the Nattekthe deemed contribution from the exchange efefied Series A - E were based on our
estimate of the per share fair value of the shaf&eries A-1 convertible preferred stock of $1.BHis estimate was determined in accordance
with the guidelines under FASB ASC 718 and ASC 8®6.used the valuation in determining our enteggvieue for us and the probability
weighted expected exit scenarios of the Comparf e date of the exchange. The assumptions govakluation are based on our judgment
understanding of our business and our probabdityaive a successful exit in an initial public affgror through a sale of the Company.

On September 23, 2013 we sold 1,766,43Qiaddl shares of Series A-1 convertible preferstatk for gross proceeds of $2.4 million at a
purchase price of $1.36 per share. We determireththvalue of the shares of Series A-1 convertjiskferred stock to be $4.7 million based on
a per share fair value of $2.69, which was baseth g estimate of the enterprise value of the Compaing a projected offering price in an
initial public offering, and we recorded a deemeddnd of $2.3 million for the difference in theles price of the Series A-1 convertible
preferred stock and the fair value of the shares.détermined the fair value of the Series A-1 cdite preferred stock as of September 23,
2013 taking into account all material facts anduinstances known to us as of the date of the §&8er@es Al preferred stock on September
2013 including the independent third party valuaid August 15, 2013 and subsequent changes ingmrations, prospects and expected
operating results.

Stock Split and Conversion of Preferred Stock

On November 1, 2013, our board of directord the requisite holders of our voting stock ari#ted the filing of a certificate of amendment
to our amended and restated certificate of
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incorporation for the purposes of effecting a 28t reverse split of the common stock. The cedit of amendment was filed on November 1,
2013 and the stock split became effective as dfdage. Accordingly, all references to numbersahmon shares, including the number of
common shares on an as-if-converted basis, andhaee data in the accompanying financial statenteaws been adjusted to reflect the reverse
stock split on a retroactive basis.

On December 3, 2013, our registration statd related to our initial public offering becasféective and all outstanding shares of prefe
stock were converted to common on a 1-for-1 bafpen the effectiveness of our initial public offagi 49,671,392 shares of Series A-1
preferred stock converted into 16,022,915 shareswimon stock and 1,851,814 shares of Series A&f2iped stock converted into 597,359
shares of common stock.

Cross License with Related Party

In December 2012, we entered into a Craserlse Agreement with Medimmune, LLC (Medimmune)aéiliate of Medimmune
Ventures, Inc., one of our 5% or greater stockhsld@/e provided Medimmune with a research licensene of our technologies and options to
a limited number of worldwide, royalty-free exchsilicenses, subject to review and approval byruexchange, Medimmune provided us with
a worldwide, non-exclusive, royalty-free licensectatain patent rights. The transaction is a nometery transaction as provided under
ASC 845-10.

We could not determine a fair value of Medimmune patent rights received by us with reaSteneertainty and established a fair value for
the transaction by estimating the fair value oflibense and options provided by us to Medimmune.astimated the fair value of the license
and options transferred to be approximately $018ami This amount was recognized as licensing meeefor the year ended December 31, Z
and was capitalized and will be amortized overrémaining life of the Medimmune patent rights. @atimate was based on a risk adjusted
discounted cash flow analysis that is associatéul e rights and options transferred to Medimmumeletermining this estimate, we compared
the license and options rights transferred to Medlme with comparable arntsagth licensing and option transactions we havered into witf
third parties in recent years. The calculatiorheffiair value is based on our experience and judgmith similar transactions. However, as each
license and option is unique to the licensee apemlds on the target, the potential market andhtigyeof the licensee to successfully advance a
compound into clinical development, the actual galfithe licenses and options could differ fromaheunt we estimated to be the fair value.

Accrued Research and Development Expenses

As part of the process of preparing ouafficial statements, we are required to estimataarued research and development expenses.
This process involves reviewing contracts and paselorders, reviewing the terms of our licenseeageats, communicating with our applica
personnel to identify services that have been pmad on our behalf, and estimating the level ofiserperformed and the associated cost
incurred for the service when we have not yet bieeoiced or otherwise notified of actual cost. Thajority of our service providers invoice us
monthly in arrears for services performed. We negténates of our accrued expenses as of each badaret date based on facts and
circumstances known to us at that time. We peralyiconfirm the accuracy of our estimates with sleevice providers and make adjustments if
necessary. Examples of estimated accrued reseadatie@elopment expenses include fees to:

. contract research organizations and other servimgders in connection with clinical studie
. contract manufacturers in connection with the pobida of clinical trial materials; an
. vendors in connection with preclinical developmactivities.
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We base our expenses related to clinicalies on our estimates of the services receivedHaords expended pursuant to contracts with
multiple research institutions and contract redearganizations that conduct and manage clinicaliss on our behalf. The financial terms of
these agreements are subject to negotiation, wamny €ontract to contract, and may result in ungy@yment flows and expense recognition.
Payments under some of these contracts dependtonsauch as the successful enroliment of patemdsthe completion of clinical trial
milestones. In accruing these costs, we estimatértie period over which services will be perforni@dwhich we have not been invoiced and
the level of effort to be expended in each peribthe actual timing of the performance of serviceshe level of effort varies from our estimate,
we adjust the accrual accordingly. Our understandirthe status and timing of services performéatiree to the actual status and timing of
services performed may vary and may result in eporting changes in estimates in any particulaogder

Net Operating Loss Carryforwards and Research and Development Tax Credits

As of December 31, 2013, we had cumulatiseoperating loss carryforwards for federal amatgesincome tax purposes of approximately
$146.5 million and $121.6 million, respectively deavailable tax credit carryforwards of approxinya®&90.7 million for federal income tax
purposes and $2.3 million for state income tax pseg, which can be carried forward to offset futarable income, if any.

Our federal net operating loss carryforgaggpire starting in 2017 and state net operatiagds expire starting in 2013. Federal tax credit
carryforwards expire starting in 2033. In conneattidgth our sale of Series A-1 preferred stock dreldale of common stock in our initial public
offering in 2013, we believe that our net operatimgses and tax credits were subject to an anmightion due to the ownership change
provisions by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 usction 382 and similar state provisions. Assallt of the limitations under Section 382,
our federal and state tax and operating loss andréalit carryforwards may be limited the Companyeviewing the potential impact of the
Section 382 limitations on its federal and stateoperating loss and tax credit carryforwards.

Valuation of Stock-Based Compensation

We record the fair value of stock optiossuied to employees as of the grant date as contjgensapense over the service period. We
recognize compensation expense over the requéeitéce period, which is equal to the vesting perieal nonemployees, we also record the
value of stock options as of the grant date as emisgition expense over the service period. We thgadically re-measure the awards to reflect
the current fair value at each reporting periodl tie non-employee completes the performance atitig or the date on which a performance
commitment is reached. Expense is recognized teareiated service period.

We calculate the fair value of stock-baseapensation awards using the Black-Scholes optiming model. The Black-Scholes option-
pricing model requires the use of subjective assiomg, including volatility of our common stock etlexpected term of our stock options, the
risk free interest rate for a period that approxesahe expected term of our stock underlying comstock on the date of grant. In applying
these assumptions, we considered the followingfact

. We do not have sufficient history to estimate tbiatility of our common stock price. We calculatgected volatility based ¢
reported data for selected reasonably similar plybiiaded companies for which the historical imfiation is available. For the
purpose of identifying peer companies, we consitiaracteristics such as industry, length of tradiistpry, similar vesting terms
and in-the-money option status. We plan to contiougse the guideline peer group volatility infotioa until the historical
volatility of our common stock is relevant to mesaxpected volatility for future option grants.
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. The assumed dividend yield is based on our expectaf not paying dividends for the foreseeableifeit

. We determine the average expected life of stockoptased on the simplified method in accordante SEC Staff Accountin
Bulletin Nos. 107 and 110, as our common stoclate thas not been publicly traded. We expect tameato use the simplified
method until we have sufficient historical exeraisga to provide a reasonable basis upon whicktimate expected term.

. We determine the ri-free interest rate by reference to implied yieldsilable from U.S. Treasury securities with a ramrag
term equal to the expected life assumed at theadajent.

. We estimate forfeitures based on our historicalysigof actual stock option forfeiture
Common Stock Fair Value

We recognize stock-based compensation egp@maccordance with the provisions of ASC Tofdi8, Compensation—Stock
Compensation The fair value of stock-based payments is estthain the date of grant, using a Black-Scholesainddhe resulting fair value is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the réguservice period, which is generally the vestiegiod of the option. The use of a Black-
Scholes model requires us to apply judgment andceragakumptions and estimates that include the folgiw

. Fair Value of Common Sto— Before our Initial Public Offering on December 813, our Board of Directors determined
fair value of the common stock. The Board of Dioestmade determinations of fair value based, ity paon contemporaneous
valuations to determine fair value. The contempeoais valuations were performed in accordance wigtiGable methodologies,
approaches and assumptions of the technical peaatitissued by the American Institute of Certifiagblic Accountants Practice
Aid entitledValuation of Privately-Held Company Equity Secestissued as Compensation

. Expected Volatilit—Volatility is a measure of the amount by whichreaficial variable such as a share price has fluedl
(historical volatility) or is expected to fluctuatexpected volatility) during a period. As we dd get have sufficient history of o
own volatility, we have identified several publictiéies of similar size, complexity and stage ofelepment and calculate the
historical volatility using the volatility of thessompanies.

. Expected Dividend Yie—We have never declared or paid dividends and hay#amns to do so in the foreseeable fut

. Risk-Free Interest Rat—This is the U.S. Treasury rate for the week of eguion grant during the year, having a term thast
closely resembles the expected life of the option.

. Expected Terr—This is the period of time that the options grardezlexpected to remain unexercised. Options gidraee ¢
maximum term of ten years and we have estimatedxpected life of the option term to be six ye#lve. use a simplified method
to calculate the average expected term.

. Expected Forfeiture Ra—The forfeiture rate is the estimated percentaggptibns granted that is expected to be forfeite
canceled on an annual basis before becoming fellyed. We estimate the forfeiture rate based darlual turnover data..
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Results of Operations
Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

The following table summarizes our resafteperations for the year ended December 31, 20832012 (in millions):

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 Change
Revenues
Research collaboratic $ 22 % 3&€ % (L9
Licensing 2.2 2.1 0.2
Milestone 5.€ 3.€ 2.C
Total revenue 10.2 9.k 0.7
Operating expense
Research and developm 17.C 12.7 4%
General and administratiy 3.7 3.1 0.€
Total operating expens 20.7 15.¢ 4.¢
Other income (expense), r (49.¢) (2.3 (47.5)
Net loss $ (60.5) $ (8.6) $ (51.9)

Research Collaboration Revenues

Research collaboration revenues were $8li®min 2013, compared to $3.8 million in 2012decrease of $1.5 million. The decrease in
collaboration revenue in 2013 compared to 2012iestimarily to lower revenue earned under ouratmation agreement with MorphoSys .
in 2013.

Licensing Revenues

Licensing revenues were $2.3 million in 2@bmpared to $2.1 million in 2012, an increas®®®? million. The increase is primarily due to
a new licensing agreement with Merck, Sharp & Dottinae provided a $1.0 million payment offset byegmase in licensing revenue recogn
under the Medlmmune transaction in 2012.

Milestone Revenues

Milestone and contingent payments were $8l6on in 2013 compared to $3.6 million in 20X increase of $2.0 million. The increase is
primarily due to receiving a contractual milestéreen MorphoSys AG of $3.0 million payment offset dylecrease in contractual milestone
payments received from Bl of $1.2 million in 2018hano corresponding milestone payment in 2013.
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Research and Development Expenses

The following table summarizes our reseanmth development expenses for the years ended bec&h, 2013 and 2012, (in millions):

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 Change
Product programs:
XmAb5871 $ 77 % 51 % 2¢€
XmAb7195 5.8 2.€ 2.6
XmAb5574/MOR20¢ 04 1.t (1.7
Other 3.4 8L (0.2)
Total research and development expens $ 17.C $ 127 $ 4.2

Research and development expenses wer@ #illiion for the year ended December 31, 2013 caneqb to $12.7 million for the same
period in 2012, an increase of $4.3 million. Theréase is primarily due to a $2.6 million increaseosts associated with the XmAb5871
program, primarily due to increases in clinicahltigosts for CROs and site costs and manufactafinigug product, which reflects the advancing
stage of development of the program from Phase Irdtiation of the Phase 1b trial of a Phase 1loiRacal trial in 2013. There were also
increased manufacturing costs associated with thAb6871 program during 2013. Approximately $2.9lianil of the increased costs are
associated with the XmAb7195 program, including ofacturing drug product and IND-enabling toxicolagudies, resulting from the
advancement of the program as we plan to file d &Nd begin clinical trials in the first half of 20. The costs for the Xmabh5574/MOR208
program,, which is conducted under our MorphoSysiooration, declined by $1.1 million as we neatedpletion of the Phase 1 clinical tria
the end of 2012, which completed our developmeligations under the MorphoSys agreement.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses war@acable at $3.7 million and $3.1 million for theay ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, an increase of $0.6 million. The @éase is primarily due to an increase in compensatsts and professional fees in 2013 over
2012.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income (expense), net was $(49.8)anifor the year ended December 31, 2013 compar&.3) million for the same period in
2012, an increase of $47.5 million. The increaflects the loss on conversion of the convertiblenissory notes for Series A-1 preferred stock
in the second quarter of 2013 of $48.6 million.
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Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

The following table summarizes the resofteur operations for the years ended Decembe2@112 and 2011 (in millions):

Years Ended
December 31,

72012 2011 Change

Revenues

Research collaboratic $ 3.€ 4.3 (0.5

Licensing 2.1 1.t 0.€

Milestone 3.€ 1.C 2.€
Total revenue 9.k 6.€ 2.7
Operating expense

Research and developm 12.7 12.7 —

General and administratiy 3.1 3.€ (0.5
Total operating expens 15.¢ 16.2 (0.5)
Other income (expense), r (2.3) (1.7) (0.€)
Net loss $ 8.6 (11.2 2.€

Research Collaboration Revenues

Research collaboration revenues were $8li®min 2012, compared to $4.3 million in 2011decrease of $0.5 million. The decrease in

collaboration revenue in 2012 compared to 201 Liesptimarily to lower revenue earned under ouratmration agreement with MorphoSys in
2012.

Licensing Revenues

Licensing revenues were $2.1 million in 2@bmpared to $1.5 million in 2011, an increas®®6 million. The increase in licensing
revenue is primarily due to license revenue recghunder the Medlmmune transaction which is regoss a non-monetary exchange in 2012.

Milestone and Contingent Payments

Milestone and contingent payments were $8lon in 2012 compared to $1.0 million in 20Hk) increase of $2.6 million. The increase is
primarily due to a milestone payment of $1.2 milli@ceived from Boehringer Ingelheim InternatioBahbH and $1.5 million milestone from
CSL during 2012 for advancing a compound that ishetuour licensed technologies into clinical develept, offset by decreases in other
milestone and contingent payments relative to theseived in 2011.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses werg #illfion in 2011 and $12.7 million in 2012. Thewere changes within the program spent
but overall spending was consistent between theyeeos. Total research spending in 2012 on the X88A&h program and the XmAb7195
program increased by $0.8 million and $0.7 millispectively, from the year ended 2011 due torakment of both programs into later ste
of development including larger clinical trials aadiditional toxicology studies. This increase iersging was offset by decreased spending on
XmAb5574 program and other programs of $1.5 milksnwve began winding down the XmAb5574 Phase icalitrial in 2012.
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General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses werkeilion in 2012 compared to $3.6 million in 20The decrease of $0.5 million primarily
reflects increased abandonment of intangible ads$§.8 million in 2011 and lower marketing and ibess development expenses in 2011 of
$0.2 million.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income (expense), net, was $(2.3)aniln 2012 compared to $(1.7) million in 2011.€Timcrease of $0.6 million primarily reflects
additional accrued interest expense on our corbleniromissory notes. In connection with amendnoétite 2009 and 2010 Notes in August
2011 and December 2011, the interest rate on ttes meas increased from 10.0% to 12.5% per annum.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, our operations havenlq@imarily financed through private sales of equity, convertible notes and payments rece
under our product development partnerships anddiog arrangements. We have devoted our resowdesding research and development
programs, including discovery research, preclingal clinical development activities.

We have incurred operating losses in ea&eln gince our inception and we expect to continuedur operating losses into the foreseeable
future as we advance the ongoing development ofeaur product candidates XmAb5871 and XmAb7195luata opportunities for the
potential clinical development of our pre-clinigatbgrams, and continue our research efforts.

At December 31, 2013, we had $78.0 milbdrcash and cash equivalents compared to $2.3omélt December 31, 2012. Based on our
current operating plan we expect to use approxim&2s.4 million of the proceeds during 2014 andheéeve that our current cash and cash
equivalents are sufficient to carry out our planoiagical development and operating plans throlghend of 2016.

Plan of Operations and Future Funding Requirements

Our primary uses of capital are, and weeekpiill continue to be, compensation and relatggbases, third-party manufacturing services,
third-party clinical research and development s&wj laboratory and related supplies, clinicalsdsgal and other regulatory expenses and
general overhead costs.

To fund future operations, we will needddse additional capital. The amount and timindutdire funding requirements will depend on
many factors, including the timing and results of ongoing development efforts, the potential es@mof our current development programs,
potential new development programs and relatedrgeand administrative support. We anticipate thatwill seek to fund our operations
through equity or debt financings or through resea&ollaborations and licensing agreements wittd tharties. We cannot assure you that such
additional financing will be available to us on éaable terms, or at all. Although we have previgumsen successful in obtaining financing
through our private securities offerings, there lbamo assurance that we will be able to do sberfuture. To the extent that we raise additional
capital through the future sale of equity or déix, ownership interest of our stockholders willdilated, and the terms of these securities may
include liquidation or other preferences that adelgraffect the rights of our existing common staulklers. If we raise additional funds through
collaboration arrangements in the future, we maseha relinquish valuable rights to our technolggieture revenue streams or product
candidates or grant licenses on terms that mapeédvorable to us.

We expect that our existing cash and aegatential milestone payments will fund our opeigaexpenses and capital expenditure
requirements through 2016. We have based theseatat on
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assumptions that may prove to be wrong, and wedagsg our capital resources sooner than we cuyrexglect. Additionally, the process of
testing product candidates in clinical trials istty and the timing of progress in these trialgrisertain. Because our product candidates are in
various stages of development and the outcomeesgtkfforts is uncertain, we cannot estimate theahamounts necessary to successfully
complete the development and commercializatioruofpooduct candidates or whether, or when, we nehjeae profitability.

Cash Flows

The following table sets forth the primagurces and uses of cash and cash equivalentadiooé the periods presented below (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Net cash (used in) provided t
Operating activitie: $ (5459 $ (11,057 $ (1,08%
Investing activities (1,279 (1,167 (1,286
Financing activitie: 82,39 (12 (11)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
equivalents $ 75,667 $ (12,22 $ (2,387

Operating Activities

Cash used in operating activities for tearyended December 31, 2013 was $5.5 million coeaptar cash used in operations of
$11.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 decrease in cash used for the year ended Dec&h, 2013 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2012 is primarily due to aregs in our deferred revenue accounts. Duringghegnded December 31, 2013, we
received upfront payments on certain licensing egents in which the revenue will be earned oveettpected term of the licensing contract.
Accordingly, a significant portion of the upfroreiygments were recorded into the deferred revenumiats

Cash used for operating activities for 20682 $11.1 million, compared to $1.1 million in 20%n increase of $10.0 million. This increase
relates primarily to upfront collaboration paymergseived in 2011, which are being recognized @iverexpected term that services will be
provided under the collaboration agreement. THiemince is reflected in the deferred revenue autsoior the 2011 and 2012 periods.

Investing Activities

Investing activities consist primarily aingchases of intangible assets, capitalization térgeand licensing costs, purchases of property and
equipment and proceeds on the sales of used equipimeesting activities used cash of $1.3 millfonthe year ended December 31, 2013 and
used cash of $1.2 million for the year ended Deaer8lt, 2012. We acquired $1.2 million of intangiasets in the years ended December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012 and $1.4 million forydar ended 2011. We acquired $136,000 of capjtapenent for the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to $41,000 for the g@med in 2012. This increase is related to addéiacapital spending on laboratory
equipment.
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Financing Activities

Financing activities consist primarily aftrproceeds of $72.5 million from the sale of commtock as a result of the our Initial Public
Offering which occurred in the fourth quarter ofl20and $10.0 million in proceeds from the sale,862,940 of preferred Series A-1 stock,
offset by payments on capital lease obligationgr&hvas no comparable sale of stock for the penated December 31, 2012 or 2011. We
made payments on capital lease obligations of $D00r the year ended December 31, 2013 comparealital lease obligation payments of
$12,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Financing activities used cash flows of $0P in 2012 compared to $11,000 in 2011, an irsered $1,000. The increase relates primarily
to a second capital lease agreement for certaimédogy equipment entered into during 2012.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following table summarizes our contratbbligations at December 31, 2013 (in thousands)

Payments due by perioc

Less More
than 1-3 3-5 than
Total 1 year Years Years 5 years
Operating lease obligation relating
facility(1) $ 832 $620 $212 $ — $ —
Capital lease obligatior 10 9 1 — —
Total $ 84z $ 62¢ $ 212 $§ — $ —

1) Consists of our corporate headquarters lease eraswmimg 24,000 square feet of office space thatex April
2015.

We are obligated to make future paymentkitd parties under in-license agreements, indgdiublicense fees, royalties, and payments
that become due and payable on the achievemeettairt development and commercialization milestoAsghe amount and timing of
sublicense fees and the achievement and timinigesktmilestones are not probable and estimable,ceunomitments have not been included on
our balance sheet or in the contractual obligatiabkes above.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We did not have during the periods preskrdad we do not currently have, any off-balanaeshrrangements.
Related Party Transactions

For a description of our related party sations, see Item 13 "Certain Relationships andt@&® Transactions, and Director Independence”
beginning on page 125.

JOBS Act

In April 2012, the Jumpstart Our BusinettBps Act of 2012, or the JOBS Act, was enackadtion 107 of the JOBS Act provides tha
emerging growth company can take advantage of taméed transition period for complying with newrevised accounting standards. Thus, an
emerging growth company can delay the adoptioredhin accounting standards until those standacdddiwotherwise apply to private
companies. We have irrevocably elected not to awaselves of this extended transition period, asch result, we will adopt new or revised
accounting standards on the relevant dates on velaioption of such standards is required for otldtip companies.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our primary exposure to market risk islia income sensitivity, which is affected by chesin the general level of U.S. interest rates.
Due to the shorterm duration of our investment portfolio and thevIrisk profile of our investments, an immediateQR@ change in interest ra
would not have a material effect on the fair maria@te of our portfolio. Accordingly, we would nexpect our operating results or cash flows to
be affected to any significant degree by the efféet sudden change in market interest rates oimgastment portfolio.

We do not believe that our cash and casivakgnts have significant risk of default or illiglity. While we believe our cash and cash
equivalents do not contain excessive risk, we capravide absolute assurance that in the futuréraugstments will not be subject to adverse
changes in market value. In addition, we maintanifcant amounts of cash and cash equivalentmator more financial institutions that are in
excess of federally insured limits.

Inflation generally affects us by increasour cost of labor and clinical trial costs. Werdi believe that inflation has had a material affe
on our results of operations during the periodsemeed.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Xencor, Inc.
Monrovia, California

We have audited the accompanying balaneetstof Xencor, Inc. (the "Company") as of Decen#igr2013 and 2012 and the related
statements of operations, mezzanine equity anéttsdtaers' equity (deficit), and cash flows for eatlthe three years in the period ended
December 31, 2013. These financial statementdareesponsibility of the Company's management.réaponsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slght Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethéindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of ierivgl control over financial reporting. Our
audits included consideration of internal contnaediofinancial reporting as a basis for designinditgorocedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsainopinion on the effectiveness of the Compangesnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aullibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made &yagement, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We beliéat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the financial statementened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the financial position of Xencor, Inc. at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results opisations and its cash flows for each of the tiyess in the period ended December 31,
2013, in conformity with accounting principles gealy accepted in the United States of America.

/s BDO USA, LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 31, 2014
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Xencor, Inc.
Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31

2013 2012

Assets
Current asset

Cash and cash equivalel $ 7797 $ 2,31z

Accounts receivabl 59 354

Prepaid expenses and other current a 60 17¢
Total current asse 78,09« 2,83¢
Property and equipme

Computers, software and equipm 3,51« 3,37¢

Furniture and fixture 89 107

Leasehold improvemen 3,081 3,081
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (6,377) (6,279

Property and equipment, r 307 282
Other asset

Patents, licenses, and other intangible asset 8,81¢ 8,46(

Other asset 10C 77
Total other asse 8,91< 8,531
Total asset $ 87,318 $ 11,65¢
Liabilities, mezzanine equity and stockholders' eqity (deficit)
Current liabilities

Accounts payabl $ 2,63 $ 1,31¢

Accrued expense 1,39: 1,28¢

Current portion of deferred reven 3,44¢ 1,94¢

Current portion of capital lease obligatic 9 7

Convertible promissory notes paya — 20,92:
Total current liabilities 7,47¢ 25,47¢
Deferred revenue, less current port 6,30z 5,672
Capital lease obligations, less current por 1 10
Total liabilities 13,78 31,16

Commitments and contingencies (see not
Mezzanine Equit
Series A convertible preferred stock, $0.01 pane:
857,797 authorized shares; 857,792 issued anchodtsy shares (liquidation preference of $3,55
December 31, 2012; no shares authorized or issudw@tstanding at December 31, 2! — 3,55(
Series B convertible preferred stock, $0.01 pane:
1,328,946 authorized shares; 1,328,941 issued @sthading shares (liquidation preference of
$12,399) at December 31, 2012; no shares authasizessued and outstanding at December 3:
2013 — 12,37¢
Series C convertible preferred stock, $0.01 pawer:
2,416,284 authorized shares; 2,416,281 issued atsthading shares (liquidation preference of
$50,017) at December 31, 2012; no shares authasizessued and outstanding at December 3:
2013 — 50,00(
Series D convertible preferred stock, $0.01 pamnev:
7,966,667 authorized shares; 7,936,483 issued @sthading shares (liquidation preferenc
$20,000) at December 31, 2012; no shares authasizssued and outstanding at December 3:
2013 — 20,00(
Series E convertible preferred stock, $0.01 paneti
25,253,000 authorized shares; 25,245,566 issuedusthnding shares (liquidation preference of
$88,047) at December 31, 2012; no shares authasizessued and outstanding at December 3:
2013 — 60,84
Total mezzanine equi — 146,76t
Stockholders' equity (defici
Common stock, $0.01 par value: 200,000,000 autbdrshares; 31,354,467 issued and outstanding
shares at December 31, 2013; 57,225,000 authcaized 2,302 issued and outstanding at

December 31, 201 314 1
Additional paic-in capital 300,79( 1,04:
Accumulated defici (227,57) (167,310

Total stockholders' equity (defic 73,53! (166,26%)
Total liabilities, mezzanine equity and stockho&dequity (deficit] $ 8731t $ 11,65¢

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Xencaor, Inc.
Statements of Operations

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Years ended December 3:

2013 2012 2011
Revenue
Collaborations, licenses and milestones, (includaigted
party revenue of zero and $0.75 million for 2018 2012
and zero for 2011, respective $ 10,17: $§ 9,52¢ 6,84¢
Operating expense:!
Research and development (including ec-basec
compensation of $158,$11 and $(34) for 2013, 201
and 2011, respectivel 17,00( 12,66¢ 12,66
General and administrative (including eq-basec
compensation of $40, $18 and $(23) for 2013, 20k
2011, respectively 3,69 3,08¢ 3,63¢
Total operating expense: 20,69: 15,75¢ 16,30
Loss from operations (20,520 (6,230 (9,452
Other income (expenses
Interest incom 14 11 34
Interest expens (1,213 (2,46)) (1,850
Other income 16 86 65
Loss on settlement of not (48,55¢6) — —
Total other income (expenses), ne (49,739 (2,369 (1,757
Net loss (60,259 (8,599 (11,209
Net deemed contribution on exchange and sale éénpeel
stock 144,76! — —
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockh $ 84,50t $ (8,599 $ (11,209
Net income (loss) per share attributable to com
stockholders
Basic $ 34.1¢ $ (118.8¢) $ (154.99)
Diluted $ (3.85) $ (118.8¢) $ (154.99)
Weighted average shares used to compute net infos
per share attributable to common stockhold
Basic 2,472,58 72,30: 72,30:
Diluted 15,645,78 72,30: 72,30:

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Xencor, Inc.
Statements of Mezzanine Equity and Stockholders' HEqty (Deficit)
(in thousands, except share data)

Series A Series B Series C Series D Series E Series /-1 Series /-2
Convertible Convertible Convertible Convertible Convertible Convertible Convertible
Preferred Stock  Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Preferred Stock
Mezzanine Equity Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
Balance

December 31,

2010 857,79:$ 3,55( 1,328,94 $ 12,37 2,416,28 $ 50,000 7,936,48.$ 20,000 25,245,56 $ 60,84: —$ — —$ —
Net loss — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Stock based

compensatiol — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Balance

December 31,

2011 857,79:$ 3,55( 1,328,94 $ 12,37 2,416,28.$ 50,00( 7,936,48 $ 20,000 25,245,56 $ 60,84: — 3 — —$ —
Net loss — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Stock-based

compensatiol — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Balance,

December 31,

2012 857,79 3,55( 1,328,94 12,37 2,416,28. 50,00( 7,936,48. 20,000 25,245,56 60,84: — — — —
Series A-1 shares

issued in

exchange of

convertible note — — — — — — — — — — 45,902,32 70,68¢ — —
Exchange of

Series A-E

Preferred for

Series A-1

preferrec (857,793 (3,55() (1,328,94) (12,37% (2,416,28) (50,00() (7,936,48) (20,00() (25,245,56) (60,84;) 1,977,13 3,04t — —
Exchange of

Series A-1

preferred for

Series A-2

preferrec — — — — — — — — — — (5,561,00) (8,565 1,851,81. 1,07t
Sale of Series A-1

preferrec — — — — — — — — — — 7,352,941 13,35 — —
Exchange of

Series A-1 and

A-2 preferred fc

common stocl — — — — — — — — — — (49,671,39) (78,52¢) (1,851,81) (1,07%)
Balance,

December 31,

2013 —$ = —$ = —$ = —3 = —$ — —$ — —$ —

Additional Total
Commeon Stock Paid Accumulated  Stockholders'

Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) Shares Amount in-Capital Deficit Equity
Balance December 31, 201 72,30 $ 1 $ 1,071 % (147,51) $ (146,442
Net loss — — — 8 (11,209 $ (11,209
Stocl-based compensatic — — (57) — (57)
Balance December 31, 201 72,30: $ 1 $ 1,012 ¢ (158,71) $ (157,70
Net loss — — — (8,594 (8,599
Stocl-based compensatic — — 28 — 28
Balance, December 31, 201 72,30: 1 1,04: (167,31) (166,26
Deemed contribution on exchange of Series A-E

Preferred Stock for Series-1 — — 143,68 — 143,68:
Deemed contribution on exchange of Series A-1

preferred for Series-2 preferrec — — 7,48¢ — 7,48¢
Deemed dividend on sale of Serie-1 preferrec — — (3,429 — (3,429
Exchange of Series A-1 and A-2 preferred for

common stocl 16,620,27 16€ 79,43¢ — 79,60:
Sale of common stock, net of issuance 14,639,50 14¢€ 72,36 — 72,507
Issuance of common stock upon exercise and ves

of stock award: 22,39: 1 12 — 13
Net loss — — — (60,259 (60,259
Stocl-based compensatic — — 19¢ — 19¢
Balance, December 31, 201 31,354,46 $ 314 $ 300,790 % (227,57) $ 73,53

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Xencor, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash us
operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Stocl-based compensatic
Abandonment of capitalized intangible as:
Gain from no-monetary exchanc
Gain on disposal of ass¢
Loss on exchange of notes for preferred s
Accrued interest on convertible promissory nc
Changes in operating assets and liabili
Accounts receivabl
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Deferred revenu
Net cash used in operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible ass
Purchase of property and equipm
Proceeds from sale of property and equipr
Net cash used in investing activit|
Cash flows from financing activities
Preferred stock issuance ¢
Proceeds from sale of Serie-1preferred stoc
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon ereot
stock award:
Proceeds from sale of common st
Payments of Initial Public Offering cos
Payments on capital lease obligati
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivale
Cash and cash equivalent, beginning of yea
Cash and cash equivalent, end of yea

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informatiol
Cash paid for
Interest
Taxes
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing Activiés
Capitalization of licensing rights acquired in -monetary
exchange
Equipment acquired under capital le
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Financing Activés
Settlement of notes payable for preferred s

Years ended December 3:

2013 2012 2011
$ (60,259 $ (8,594 $ (11,209
711 527 607
19¢ 29 (57)
20& 38¢ 1,231
— (754) —
(16) (86) (127)
48,55¢ — —
1,211 2,45¢ 1,84¢
297 (325) (29)
11E (90) 96
(20) 15 23
1,31¢ (522) (239
10¢ 46C 34
2,12¢ (4,556) 6,73
(5,459 (11,05)) (1,085
(1,15 (1,219 (1,369
(136) (41) (55)
16 97 132
(1,27  (1,16)) (1,28¢)
(116 — —
10,00( — —
13 — —
80,51; — —
(8,010 — —
(10 (12 11
82,39: (12) (11)
75,660 (12,225 (2,389
2,31 14,53; 16,91¢
$ 7797 $ 2,31 $ 14,53;
$ 1% 3 $ 1
$ — $ — $ —
$ — $ 754 $ —
$ — $ 22 $ —
$ 22,13¢ $ — $ —

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Xencor, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

Xencor, Inc. (we, us, our, or the Compamg$ incorporated in California in 1997 and reincogbed in Delaware in September 2004. We
are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical companydedwon discovering and developing engineered monathntibodies to treat severe and life-
threatening diseases with unmet medical needs.a&@uwr proprietary XmAb technology platform to ¢esaext-generation antibody product
candidates designed to treat autoimmune and alldiggases, cancer, and other conditions. We fattise portion of the antibody that interacts
with multiple segments of the immune system, reféto as the Fc domain, which is constant anddhtergeable among antibodies. Our
engineered Fc domains, the XmAb technology, aréiexpfo our pipeline of antibody-based drug cantéiddo increase immune inhibition,
improve cytotoxicity, or extend half-life.

Our operations are based in Monrovia, Galifh and we operate in one segment.
Basis of Presentation

The Company's financial statements as aebder 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011and for the yeansghded have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted i thnited States.

Reverse Stock Split and Conversion of Preferred Stock

On November 1, 2013, our board of directord the requisite holders of our voting stock ari#ted the filing of a certificate of amendment
to our amended and restated certificate of incatpam for the purposes of effecting a 3.1-for-1enee split of the common stock. The certificate
of amendment was filed on November 1, 2013 andtihek split became effective as of that date. Adicwly, all references to numbers of
common shares, including the number of common sharen as-if-converted basis, per-share datateard prices and exercise prices in the
accompanying financial statements have been adjtsteflect the reverse stock split on a retreachiasis.

Each 3.1 shares of convertible preferredkstvas convertible, at the stockholder's optiotg bne share of common stock. Additionally,
each share of convertible preferred stock was aatioaily converted into common stock, at the th&aetive conversion rate upon the effective
date of a registration statement filed with the SE@er the Securities Act or Exchange act.

On December 3, 2013, our registration state on Form 3-related to our initial public offering becameestiive and 49,671,392 shares
Series A-1 preferred stock converted into 16,022 &Hares of common stock and 1,851,814 sharesieksJe 2 preferred stock converted into
597,359 shares of common stock.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsanformity with accounting principles generally epted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondféetthe amounts reported in the financial statetmand accompanying notes. Actual
results could differ materially from those estinsate
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Xencor, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)
Revenue Recognition

We have, to date, earned revenue from relseallaborations, which may include research deklopment services, licenses of our
internally-developed technologies, or a combination of both.réd¢ognize revenue when all of the following cidtere met: persuasive evidel
of an arrangement exists; transfer or access bhtdogy has been completed or services have bedensd; our price to the customer is fixe«
determinable and collectability is reasonably asgur

The terms of our license and research armdldpment agreements include nonrefundable upfrayrnents and license fees, milestone and
other contingent payments to us for the achievemkdéfined collaboration objectives and certainichl, regulatory and sales-based events, as
well as royalties on sales of any commercializestipcts.

The terms of our licensing agreements iielonon-refundable upfront fees, annual licensieg,fand contingent payments and contractual
payment obligations for the achievement of prerafipreclinical, clinical, regulatory and salesdshsvents by our partners. The licensing
agreements also include royalties on sales of anyreercialized products by our partners.

Multiple-Element Revenue Arrangement£ertain of our collaboration and license agresis represent multiple-element revenue
arrangements. To account for such transactionsletegmine the elements, or deliverables, includdtie arrangement and determine which
deliverables are separate units for accountinggaa® We consider delivered items to be separ#teafraccounting if the delivered items have
stand-alone value to the customer. If the delivéierds are separate units we allocate the considengceived or due under the arrangement to
the various elements based on each elementsveetailing price. The identification of individualements in a multiple-element arrangement
and the estimation of the selling price of eaclmelet involve significant judgment, including coresidtion as to whether each delivered element
has standalone value to the customer. We detetiminestimated selling price for deliverables witbath arrangement using vendor-specific
objective evidence (VSOE) of selling price, if dable, or third-party evidence of selling pric&/f8OE is not available, or our best evidence of
selling price if neither VSOE nor third-party evite is available.

Determining the best estimate of sellinggfor a deliverable requires significant judgméfie use our best estimate of selling price to
estimate the selling price for licenses to our tetbgies and product candidates, since we do na W&OE or thirdearty evidence of selling f
these deliverables. The basis of our estimatelliiggrice is the arm's length negotiation witle ticensee that occurs in each transaction. The
potential value of our technology to a licensea transaction depends on a variety of factors @niqieach transaction. Factors that impact the
negotiation and hence that we consider in our eséismcenter on the specific product candidate reidde: the product candidate's potential
market size, the product candidate's stage of dprednt, the existence of competitive technolodies tould be substituted for ours by the
licensee and the scientific assessment of the ptadundidate's likelihood of success at variousligpment stages. The most common
deliverable is the commercial license for our teatbgy in the product candidate, and frequentlyseaech license with an option for commercial
license. The upfront payments, annual license faggjngent payments, milestones and royaltieseétathese licenses and/or options and
depend on the product-specific factors described@blhe other significant deliverable is research
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Xencaor, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)

and development services and the price for thegerdis on estimates for our personnel and supptg eosl the costs of third-party contract
research organizations necessary to support thieagr

We recognize consideration allocated tmndividual element when all other revenue recognitiriteria are met for that element. Our
multiple-element revenue arrangements may inclbdédllowing:

. License arrangements The deliverables under our collaboration andhéeeagreements generally include exclusive o-
exclusive licenses to one or more of our technelglhe technologies can be applied to a collabisgtroduct candidates for
discovery, development, manufacturing and commigzaigon. We will also enter into agreements fag #xclusive or non-
exclusive licenses to our internally developed pmaandidates. To account for this element ofthangement, we evaluate
whether the exclusive or non-exclusive licensedtasdalone value apart from the undelivered elesrterthe collaboration
partner, which may include research and developsemices or options for commercial licenses, basethe consideration of
the facts and circumstances of each arrangemehiding the research and development capabilifiéiseocollaboration partner
and other market participants. We recognize arraege consideration allocated to licenses upon dsfiof the license, if the
facts and circumstances indicate the license laasiatone value apart from the undelivered eleméifescts and circumstances
indicate that the delivered license does not htaredsilone value from the undelivered elements,agegnize the revenue as a
combined unit of accounting. In those circumstaneesecognize revenue from non-refundable upfreesfin the same manner
as the undelivered item(s), which is generallygbgod over which we provide research and developsngervices.

. Research and Development Service The deliverables under our collaboration andhéeearrangements may include rese
and development services we perform on behalfettilaboration partner. As the provision of reseand development servi
is an integral part of our operations and we maproeipally responsible for the performance ofsiaservices under the
agreements, we recognize revenue on a gross basestarch and development services as we petfarse services.
Additionally, we recognize research related fundinger collaboration research and developmenttefés revenue as we
perform or deliver the related services in accocdamith contract terms.

Milestone Revenue. Our collaboration and license agreements génénalude contingent contractual payments relatedchievement of
specific research, development and regulatory toites and sales-based milestones that are basdyl godn the performance of the licensor or
collaborator. Research, development and regulatmmingent contractual payments and milestone patgrae typically payable under our
collaborations when our collaborator selects a ammg, or initiates or advances a covered produdidate in preclinical or clinical
development, upon submission for marketing approf/alcovered product with regulatory authoritigson receipt of actual marketing
approvals of a covered product or for additiondiéations, or upon the first commercial sale obaered product. Sales-based contingent
contractual payments are typically payable wheruahsales of a covered product reach specific ¢evel

At the inception of each arrangement theltides contingent contractual payments, we evalwvaether each potential payment and
milestone is substantive and at risk to both patiesed on the
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Xencaor, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)

basis of the contingent nature of the milestoneeWe evaluate factors such as scientific, regeyacommercial and other risks that we must
overcome to achieve the respective milestone ewdrgther the contractual payments due at eachtavlesvent is reasonable relative to all
deliverables and payment terms in the arrangemeaniking this assessment and whether the contirngerttactual payment relates solely to
past performance. Additionally, certain of our proddevelopment and technology license arrangenmeaysinclude milestone payments related
to the achievement of specific research and dewsop milestones, which are achieved in whole grairt on our performance.

We recognize any payment that is conting@on the achievement of a substantive milestotieenin the period in which the milestone
achieved. A milestone is defined as an event #atnly be achieved based in whole or in part etheour performance, or the performance of
our collaborators, or the occurrence of a speoffittome resulting from our past performance foroltihere is a substantive uncertainty at the
date the arrangement is entered into that the eviirite achieved.

Collaborative Research and Licensing Agreements
MorphoSys Ag

In June 2010, we entered into a Collaboratind License Agreement with MorpohSys AG (Morpts)Swhich we subsequently amended
in March 2012. The agreement provided us an upfragiment of $13.0 million in exchange for an exisle@svorldwide license to our patents i
know-how to research, develop and commercializeXanAb5574 product candidate (subsequently renam@iRRD8) with the right to
sublicense under certain conditions. Under theeageat, we agreed to collaborate with MorphoSy<etebtbp and commercialize
XmAb5574/MOR208. We determined that the arrangemestone with multiple deliverables and we ideatifthe multiple elements in the
agreement as the license of XmAb5574/MOR208 andabearch and development services provided bgrukéd initial Phase 1 clinical trial. If
certain developmental, regulatory and sales mitest@re achieved, we are eligible to receive funitestone payments and royalties. We
determined that the future milestone payments webstantive and contingent and we did not alloaageof the upfront consideration to these
milestones. Our responsibility with respect to dbéaboration services is limited to completiortleé Phase 1 clinical trial. MorphoSys is
responsible all further development of XmAb5574/MXDR.

At inception of the arrangement, we deterdithat $8.0 million of the $13.0 million upfrqgrayment was the value of the worldwide
license rights to XmAb5574/MOR208 and $5.0 milliwas the value of the research and developmentcestwVe recognized the value related
to the license of XmAb5574/MOR208 in income in 20tH& period that the license was transferred. Wéeated $5.0 million of the upfront fee
to research and development services to be re@dja income over the expected service periodmplate the Phase 1 clinical trial which v
27 months. The March 2012 amendment to the agréesrtanded the length of the Phase 1 clinical.ttalder the terms of the amendment, we
received additional proceeds for the additionataesh and development services related to extensite Phase 1 clinical trial. During 2012,
we recognized $0.4 million of revenue related ®alditional services provided.

In April and May 2013, MorphoSys initiatedo Phase Il clinical trials under the arrangenserd we received a milestone payment of
$3.0 million. We have recognized the payment asnee in the period that the milestone event ocdurre
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Xencaor, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)

The total revenue recognized under thisrgrement was $3.0 million, $2.0 million and $2.Hiom for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively.

Option and License Agreement with Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

In January 2013, we entered into an opdiuth license agreement with Alexion Pharmaceutitads,(Alexion). Under the terms of the
agreement, we granted to Alexion an exclusive rebd&ense, with limited sublicensing rights, take and use our Xtend technology to
evaluate and advance compounds against six diffeagget programs during a five-year research temder the agreement, up to completion of
the first multidose human clinical trial for each target compouidxion may extend the research term for an amluiiti three years upon writt
notice to us and payment of an extension fee df B8@llion. Alexion is responsible for conductind edsearch and development activities under
the agreement at its own expense.

In addition, we granted to Alexion an esiWte option, on a target-by-target basis, to obaairexclusive commercial, worldwide, royalty-
bearing license, with sublicensing rights, underXtend technology to develop and commercializedpots that contain the target for which the
option is exercised. In order to exercise thisaptAlexion must pay a $4.0 million option fee wittspect to each target for which the option is
exercised. Alexion may exercise this option at timg during the research term.

Under the agreement, we received an upfrapment of $3.0 million. Alexion is also requiredpay an annual maintenance fee of
$0.5 million during the research term of the agreeinand $1.0 million during any extension of theeagch term. In addition, if certain
development, regulatory and commercial milestomeseahieved, we are eligible to receive up to $&@ilbon for the first product to achieve
such milestones on a target-tayget basis. If licensed products are successtollymercialized, we are also entitled to receiyaltes based o
a percentage of net sales of such products soidexjon, its affiliates or its sublicensees, whjpércentage is in the low single digits. Alexion's
royalty obligations continue on a product-by-pradaed country-by-country basis until the expiratidrthe last-to-expire valid claim in a
licensed patent covering the applicable produsuich country.

Absent early termination, the term of tigeement will continue until the expiration of Alew's royalty payment obligations or until the
expiration of the research term if Alexion has ex¢rcised its option for a product license underareement. Either party may terminate the
agreement for a material breach of the agreemetitebgther party if such breach remains uncure@@odays, or 30 days in the case of a non-
payment breach. Alexion may terminate the agreemihbut cause on a target-by-target basis upode§8' advance written notice to us.

The total revenue recognized under thsrgrement was $0.9 million year ended December@l3.2As of December 31, 2013 we have
deferred revenue related to this agreement of iB@libn.
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Amgen, Inc.

In December 2010, we entered into a Colatian and Option Agreement with Amgen, Inc. (Amgegmursuant to which we agreed to
collaborate with Amgen to research, develop andmgernialize XmAb5871 and products based thereonebtite agreement, we granted to
Amgen an option to acquire an exclusive licensesearch, develop, manufacture and commercializAb&871 and certain related products
worldwide, which option is exercisable by Amgenyoafter Amgen's (1) notification to us that it Isaing to exercise the option and
(2) payment of an option exercise fee to us duttiegoption period under the agreement. The tertheobption began at the effective date of the
Agreement and expires 90 days after delivery ofiéta from a Phase 2 proof-of-concept (POC) cliriia. During the option period and prior
to Amgen exercising its option under the agreemeetretain ownership of the compound and are resplenfor all clinical development of the
compound through completion of the Phase 2 POQalitrial and delivery of the clinical study ddta the POC clinical trial. We received a
nonrefundable upfront payment of $11.0 million upxecution of the agreement. We are eligible teikecmilestone payments through the
option period and following the exercise of theimpty Amgen, additional milestone payments anditggs. We determined that substantially
all of the future milestones and related paymermevgubstantive and contingent and we did notatéoany of the upfront consideration to the
milestones.

We determined that the arrangement is dtiemwltiple deliverables and we identified the tiplé elements at the inception of the
agreement. We determined that the deliverablesruhdearrangement were the research and develomeriites and the option to acquire the
rights to XmAb5871. Since the option is a contirtgamd a substantive element, no portion of theampffee was allocated to it. The upfront
payment was allocated to the research and develtseevices and is being recognized ratably oveestimated service period to complete the
Phase 2 POC trial and delivery of the clinical gtegports to Amgen. We have estimated that the tériine service period to be 72 months from
inception of the agreement through completion efROC trial.

During 2013, we initiated a Phase 1b cihtdal under the arrangement and we received@stone payment of $2.0 million. We are
recognizing that payment over the term that sesvietates. The total revenue recognized undeathismigement was $2.2 million, $1.8 million
and $2.0 million for the years ended December 81322012 and 2011, respectively. As of DecembeP313 we have deferred revenue rel
to this agreement of $6.9 million.

MedlmmuneLLC

In December 2012, we entered into a Crassrise Agreement with Medimmune, LLC (Medimmune)der the agreement we provided
Medimmune with a non-exclusive research licenseettain technology and options to acquire commeElicinses to a limited number of
compounds. The commercial licenses will be worldwighyalty-free exclusive licenses and are sultgeour review and approval. In exchange,
Medimmune provided us with a worldwide, non-exclesiroyalty-free license and sub-license to certh®. patent rights granted to
Medimmune. We determined that the exchange is enmametary transaction as provided under ACS 849Nbd-Monetary Transactions. The
transaction did not include any cash proceeds afydtibe exchange of intellectual property rightsheen the two companies.

We could not determine a fair value of kiedimmune patent rights received by us with reaSteneertainty but could establish a fair value
for the transaction by estimating the fair value of
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the research license and options for the commdicé@lses provided by us to Medimmune. We estimttedair value of the license and optis
transferred to be $0.75 million. Our estimate wasedl on the risk adjusted discounted cash flowigtedsociated with the research license and
options to commercial licenses transferred to Medime. In determining this estimate, we compareditkase and options rights transferred to
Medimmune with comparable arms-length mefated party licensing and option transactionsweahave entered into with third parties in re
years. The calculation of the fair value is basedar experience and judgment with similar cashdaations. We recognized licensing reve

on the exchange of $0.75 million for the year endedember 31, 2012 equal to the fair value of 8sets transferred. We also recorded an asse
of $0.75 million to reflect the licensing rightsathwe acquired from Medimmune in the exchangeg#pétalized rights are being amortized over
the shorter of the remaining patent term or theneged useful life of the license.

Medlmmune Ventures, Inc., an affiliate oftimmune, was one of our 5% stockholders and ldasignee on our Board of Directors as of
December 31, 2012. As a result of our Initial Pulifering that became effective December 2013, Idetline was no longer a 5%
stockholder.

Boehringer Ingelheim I nternational GmbH

In 2007 we entered into a Research LiceasdeCollaboration Agreement with Boehringer IngéihInternational GmbH (Bl). Under the
agreement, we provided Bl with a three-year re$elicense to one of our technologies and commeogiibns. We identified the deliverables
under the agreement at inception as the reseamsks and options to acquire commercial licemmsep to two compounds. Upon exercise o
option to a commercial license, we are eligibleeteive future milestone payments and royalties détermined that the future milestones and
related payments were substantive and contingehtvardid not allocate any of the upfront considerato the milestones. The upfront payment
and the annual license fees are being recognitadlyanto income over the research license terrichvaxpired in 2011 and payments for the
commercial options were recognized in the periedcttimmercial option was exercised since the opti@re contingent and substantive. Dut
2012, Bl advanced a compound that incorporatesemhinology into clinical development and we receigemilestone payment of $1.2 million
and recognized the payment as revenue in the pérgodhilestone event occurred.

Janssen, Research & Development, LLC

In 2009 we entered into a Research LicanseOption Agreement with Janssen, Research & Dpuent, LLC (Janssen). Under the
agreement, we provided Janssen with non-exclussearch license and options for exclusive commidiognses to apply our technology to
their compounds. We identified the deliverablesanrttie agreement at inception as the researchstisegnd options to acquire commercial
licenses to up to three compounds. Upon exercis@é afption, we are eligible to receive future nidee and royalty payments. We determined
that the options and future milestones and relpsgainents were substantive and contingent and wedlidllocate any of the upfront
consideration to the options or milestones. Theamfpayment of $1.0 million received at inceptamd the annual research license renewal
payments are being recognized as revenue recaathdulyr over the two-year term of the research Beeburing 2012, we recognized total
revenue of $1.4 million consisting of $0.9 millionresearch license revenue and $0.5 million ferekercise of a commercial option. During
2011, we recognized total revenue of $1.0 millionsisting of annual research license revenue. Menges related to this arrangement were
recognized in 2013.
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CSL Limited

In 2009 we entered into a Research LicanseCommercialization Agreement with CSL Limited5{G. Under the agreement, we provided
CSL with a research license to one of our technetognd up to five commercial options. The upfmegment of $0.75 million received at
inception and the annual research license reneayahents are being recognized as revenue ratabhtlowdive-year term of the research
license. During 2012, we recognized total reverfugld million consisting of $0.3 million in annuasearch license revenue and $1.5 millic
milestone payments. During 2011, we recognized teteenue of $1.3 million consisting of $0.3 miliiin research license revenue and
$1.0 million in milestone and option exercise paytaeWe identified the deliverables under the ages at inception as the five-year research
licenses and options to acquire commercial licendpen exercise of an option to acquire a commeElicense, we are eligible to receive future
milestones and royalties. The upfront payment Bedannual license fees were allocated to the reséiaense and are being recognized into
income over the research term and payments for @niah options are being recognized in the perfi@ddommercial option was exercised s
the options were contingent and substantive. Werniéted that the future milestones and related paysnwere substantive and contingent and
we did not allocate any of the upfront consideratmthe milestones.

In March 2013, we entered into a Licensee&gent with CSL Limited (CSL). Under the termshe agreement, we provided CSL with a
non-exclusive commercial license to apply our tebdbgy to one of their compounds. The agreementigea/for upfront payment of
$0.5 million and we are eligible to receive futandestones as CSL advances the compound into alidevelopment. We determined that the
deliverables under this agreement were the norusixe commercial license. We determined that theréumilestones and related payments
were substantive and contingent and we did notatéoany of the upfront consideration to the niless.

In May 2013, we entered into an amendmeatfEebruary 2009 Research License and CommeetializAgreement with CSL, which
eliminated a contingent milestone payment requirgraad reduced the royalty rate on net sales ®fitensed product CSL362. The
amendment provided for a payment upon signing d $llion. We determined that the amendment wasmterial modification to the original
agreement and evaluated the remaining deliverablé®e date of the amendment. We determined teaktiaining deliverables were the
research license which expires in February 2014f@mndadditional options to take commercial licenimough the term of the research period.
The options are considered to be substantive amihgent and we did not allocate any of the prosaedeived in the amendment to the options.
The amendment proceeds are being recognized icdoni@ over the remaining period of the research.tBuming 2013 we recognized total
revenue of $2.9 million consisting of $0.3milliamnannual research license revenue and $2.6 mitliomlestone payments. As of December 31,
2013 we have $0.5 million of deferred revenue egldb this agreement.

Merck Sharp & Dohme Corp.

In July 2013, we entered into a Licenseekgnent with Merck Sharp & Dohme Corp (Merck). Untther terms of the agreement, we
provided Merck with a non-exclusive commercial fise to certain patent rights to our Fc domaingfiyato one of their compounds. We also
provided Merck with contingent options to take aiddial non-exclusive commercial licenses. The cait options provide Merck an
opportunity to take non-exclusive commercial licnat an amount less than the
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amount paid for the original license. The agreerpeotided for an upfront payment of $1.0 milliordeennual maintenance fees totaling
$0.5 million. We are also eligible to receive fitumilestones and royalties as Merck advances tmpaond into clinical development.

We determined that the deliverables unlderagreement were the non-exclusive commerciah$ie and the options. The options are
considered substantive and contingent and no anoduhé upfront payment was allocated to theseooptiWe also determined that the future
milestones and related payments were substantoye@ntingent and did not allocate any of the ugfgayment to the milestones.

We recognized $1.0 million in revenue uritiés arrangement for the year ended December(B13.2

As of December 31, 2013, the Company magligéble to receive the following maximum paymefrtsm its collaborative partners and
licensees based upon contractual terms in the mgrgs assuming all options are exercised and #bktones are achieved:

Potential Milestones (in millions)

Total
Partner Developmen-based Regulatory-based Sale-based Milestones
MorphoSys(2 $ 62.C $ 187.C $ 50.C $ 299.
Amgen(1) 62.C 150.( 225.( 437.(
Alexion(2) 51.C 168.( 180.( 399.(
BI(2) 9.C 6.C 12.C 27.C
CSL 2009(2! 38.C 20.C 31.C 89.(
CSL 2013(2 8.C 4.C 24.F 36.
Janssen(z 6.C — 4.C 10.C
Merck(2) 4.C 6.C — 10.(
Total $ 240.C $ 541.C $ 526.f $ 1,307.

(1)  These potential milestones include milestonesweae determined to be substantive because theyreghe company t
devote substantial effort to perform services ffer benefit of the counterparty prior to achievenoérthe milestone and tl
payments due upon achievement of the milestoneeasmnable in connection with the services provatetithe remainde
of the milestones in the arrangement.

(2)  The payments are solely dependent upon activifilseocollaborative partner or licensi
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The $10.2 million, $9.5 million and $6.8lion of revenue recorded for the years ended Déez81, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively
was earned principally from the following licenséesmillions):

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Amgen $ 22 $ 1€ $ 2C
MorphoSys 3.C 2.C 2.2
Janssel — 14 1.C
Merck 1.C —_ —
Alexion 0.€ — —
CSL 2.¢ 1.6 1.2
Bl — 1.2 —
Other 0.2 1.2 0.3
Total $ 102 $ 95 $ 6.8

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 our adsoweeivable included $0.1 and $0.3 million, resipely from a major customer, MorphoSys
AG.

A substantial portion of our revenue isnegrfrom collaboration partners outside the UnB&ates. Non-U.S. revenue is denominated in

U.S. dollars. A breakdown of our revenue from Wasd Non-U.S. sources for the years ended Decenbh@033, 2012 and 2011 is as follows
(in millions):

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 2011

U.S. Revenui $ 42 $ 44 $ 3.3
Non-U.S. Revenu 6.C 5.1 3.t
Total $ 102 $ 95 $ 6.8

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue arises from paymentsveddn advance of the culmination of the earningegss. We have classified deferred revenue
expected to be recognized within the next 12 moasha current liability. We recognize deferred maeas revenue in future periods when the

applicable revenue recognition criteria have beeh ithe total amounts reported as deferred reveseue $9.7 million and $7.6 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respgc

104




Table of Content

Xencor, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)
Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses incagle we incur for our own and for our collaborat@search and development activities.
Research and development costs are expensed a®thclhese costs consist primarily of salariestasmkfits, including associated stock-based
compensation, laboratory supplies, facility coats] applicable overhead expenses of personnetlgiineeolved in the research and
development of new technology and products, asaeefees paid to other entities that conduct aeregearch development activities on our
behalf. We estimate preclinical study and clinical expenses based on the services performedigmirso the contracts with research
institutions and clinical research organizatioraet tonduct and manage preclinical studies andcelitiiials on our behalf based on the actual
time and expenses incurred by them. Further, waia@xpenses related to clinical trials based erethel of patient enroliment and activity
according to the related agreement. We monitoepténroliment levels and related activity to theeat reasonably possible and adjust
estimates accordingly. During 2013 we expensedd®hillion for research and development. During 2@h@ 2011 we expensed $12.7 million
for each of the years for research and development.

We capitalize acquired research and dewedop technology licenses and third-party contrigttts and amortize the costs over the shorter
of the license term or the expected useful life. Atgew the license arrangements and the amoudizakeriod on a regular basis and adjust the
carrying value or the amortization period of theetised rights if there is evidence of a changhercarrying value or useful life of the asset. See
"Patents, licenses and other intangible assets."

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider cash equivalents to be onlgdghnvestments which are highly liquid, readily wertible to cash and which mature within th
months from the date of purchase.

The primary objectives for our investmeaittfolio are liquidity and safety of principal. lagtments are made to achieve the highest rate of
return for us, while maintaining consistency wilese two objectives.

Concentrations of Risk

Cash and cash equivalents are maintaintagicial institutions and, at times, balances megeed federally insured limits. We have never
experienced any losses related to these balantiex.d\ir non-interest bearing cash balances weltg insured at December 31, 2012 due to a
temporary federal program in effect from Decemider2®10 through December 31, 2012. Under the prnogifzere was no limit to the amoun
insurance for eligible accounts. Beginning in Jan@®13, insurance coverage reverted to $250,000gmositor at each financial institution,
and our cash balances exceeded federally insuméts.liAmounts on deposit in excess of federallyiad limits at December 31, 2013 and 2012
approximated $77.5 and $2.3 million, respectively.

We have payables with five service prowddiat represent 57.0% of our total payables andsewice providers that represented 27.2% of
our total payables for the years ended Decembe2®13 and 2012, respectively. We have never expeggkan interruption in service related to
these two vendors and believes that there arenattee vendors available and as such do not pexc¢kis concentration to present a significant
risk to our operation. No other vendor accountedifore than 10.0% of payables at December 31, 268132012.
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Fair Value of Financial | nstruments

Our financial instruments primarily consi$tcash, money market funds, trade accounts rabkiyaccounts payable, accrued expenses anc
convertible notes payable. The fair value of casbiney market funds, trade accounts receivable uats@ayable and accrued expenses closely
approximate their carrying value due to their sheaturities. The carrying amounts of convertibléesgayable approximate their fair value, as
the interest rates, in consideration of the corniwarieature, approximate the interest rates présawaailable to us.

We determine the fair value of the printig@ount of financial and nonfinancial assets aaoilities using the fair value hierarchy, which
describes three levels of inputs that may be usadkiasure fair value, as follows:

Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for identical aseetiabilities;

Level 2—Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices suauaged prices for similar assets or liabilitiegpted prices for identici
or similar assets or liabilities in markets tha aot active, or other inputs that are observabtean be corroborated by observable me
data for substantially the full term of the assetBabilities; and

Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by little@market activity and that are significant to thie value of the assets
or liabilities.

Level 1 assets consist of highly-liquid rmgmarket funds. The fair value of Level 1 asseatslbeen determined using quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets. There wertansfers between Level 1 and Level 2 assets dthimgears presented.

The assets recorded at fair value at Deeeib, are classified within the hierarchy as feBdor the years reported (in millions):

2013 2012
Total Total
Fair Value Level 1 Fair Value Level 1

Money Market Fund $ —$ — 3 28 $ 23

For disclosure purposes at December 3ifaihgalue of the principal amount of our outstergdconvertible promissory notes are classified
within the hierarchy as follows (in millions):

2013 2012
Total Total
Fair Value Level 3 Fair Value Level 3
Convertible Promissory Nott $ — % — 3 15.1 $ 15.1

These convertible promissory notes wemaature as of December 31, 2012 (see Note 2 fdndudetail) and when considering the lack of
time value, the absence of an established markéiéoconvertible promissory notes, and our knogéedf the terms, rates, risk and returns
provided by the convertible promissory notes aspamed to financing available for privately-held fii@rmaceutical companies, we determined
that the carrying value of the convertible promigsmtes approximates their fair value. There weréransfers between Level 3 and Level 2 or
Level 1 during the year. The notes were converigm $eries A-1 preferred stock in June 2013.

106




Table of Content

Xencor, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded atarobtlepreciated using the straight-line method thesestimated useful lives of the assets,
ranging from three to seven years, or the lease, t@hichever is shorter. Expenditures for repaird maintenance are charged to expense as
incurred while renewals and improvements are cligeth Useful lives by asset category are as fadtow

Computers, software and equipm 3-5year
Furniture and fixture 5-7 year
Leasehold improvemen 5- 7 years or remainir

lease term, whichever is l¢
Patents, Licenses, and Other | ntangible Assets

The cost of acquiring licenses is capitaliand amortized on the straidime basis over the shorter of the term of thengzeor its estimate
economic life, ranging from five to 25 years. Thpdrty costs incurred for acquiring patents aretaliped. Capitalized costs are accumulated
until the earlier of the period that a patent &ied or we abandon the patent claims. Cumulatipitadized patent costs are amortized on a
straightline basis from the date of issuance over the shoftthe patent term or the estimated useful eminbfe of the patent, ranging from :
to 20 years. Our senior management, with adviaa foatside patent counsel, assesses three prinmitagiacto determine if a patent will be
capitalized initially: i) technical feasibility,)imagnitude and scope of new technical functioreced by the patent compared to the company's
existing technology and patent portfolio, particlylassessing the value added to our product catelicbr licensing business, and iii) legal
issues, primarily assessment of patentability andgrution cost. We review our intellectual propem a regular basis to determine if there are
changes in the estimated useful life of issuedratand if any capitalized costs for unissued gateimould be abandoned. Capitalized patent
costs related to abandoned patent filings are eldaoff in the year of the decision to abandon. By#013 and 2012, we abandoned previously
capitalized patent and licensing related charge&2686,000 and $388,000, respectively. During 20&2idl not abandon any licenses previously
capitalized.

The carrying amount and accumulated anatditin of patents, licenses, and other intangildessifollows (in thousands):

December 31

2013 2012
Patents, definite lifi $ 4,832 $ 4,41¢
Patents, pending issuar 3,51t 3,29:
Licenses and other amortizable intangible as 1,915 1,66¢
Nonamortizable intangible assets (tradema 36¢ 35€
Total gross carrying amou 10,63 9,73¢
Accumulated amortizati—patents (1,395 (98%)
Accumulated amortizati—licenses and oth¢ (42€) (289)
Total intangible assets, r $ 8,81« § 8,46(
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Amortization expense for patents, licenseg, other intangible assets was $598,000, $37200(274,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Future amortization expense for patentsnises, and other intangible assets recorded@eceimber 31, 2013, and for which amortization
has commenced, is as follows:

Years ending
December 31,
(in thousands)

2014 $ 644
2015 57t
2016 57z
2017 57z
2018 562
Thereaftel 2,00:
Total $ 4,93(

The above amortization expense forecaat isstimate. Actual amounts of amortization expemsg differ from estimated amounts due to
additional intangible asset acquisitions, impairtregfrintangible assets, accelerated amortizationtahgible assets, and other events. As of
December 31, 2013, the Company has $3.5 milliantahgible assets which are in-process and havbewt placed in service and, accordingly
amortization on these assets has not commenced.

Long-Lived Assets

Management reviews long-lived and certdéntifiable intangibles for impairment whenevermgeor changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset (or assefpyriay not be recoverable. Recoverability of aswek®e held and used is measured by a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset thiseounted net cash flows expected to be genebgtélte asset. If such assets are considered
to be impaired, the impairment to be recognizedéssured as the amount by which the carrying anafithe assets exceeds the fair value of
the assets. Fair value for our long-lived assetieisrmined using the expected cash flows discduatta rate commensurate with the risks
involved.

As of December 31, 2013, we determinedabatcontinuing losses triggered a review of theyiag value of our long-lived assets
including our capitalized patent and licensing sogfe conducted an impairment analysis of the sagsetccordance with ASC 360 and ASC
by estimating the future undiscounted cash flowsfd3ecember 31, 2013, by patent family, which ugeld granted and pending patents and
related licenses. For purposes of the analysigraxgped our patents into the four primary technplggups, llb, ADCC, Xtend and, Bpecific,
and compared the carrying value of the group tatidiscounted cash flows expected to be received the patents in each group. We
determined that the fair value of the potentialifatcash flows using this method was in excesketarrying value of the intangible assets as of
December 31, 2013. The patent groups assessadgairiment were the Ilb, ADCC, Xtend and bi-speqifatent families and represented the
lowest level of cash flows for evaluation. Theserfpatent families cover all of our current prodeahdidates and our current license
agreements. We modeled the cash flows from oumatgroduct development programs (XmAb5871 and Xm¥95) and licensed programs
that use each particular category of
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patent asset. We used multiple published sourcpharimaceutical product development stage failatesrto estimate failure rates at each stage
of clinical development in order to probability \ght the cash flows for each internal and licensedm@am. We did not recognize a loss from
impairment for the years ended December 31, 202D b2.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordaritie accounting guidance which requires an assetiahility approach to financial accounting
and reporting for income taxes. Deferred incomeatssets and liabilities are computed annually iider@nces between the financial statement
and tax bases of assets and liabilities that edlltt in taxable or deductible amounts in the fitbesed on enacted tax laws and rates applicable
to the periods in which the differences are expmktdeaffect taxable income. Valuation allowancesestablished when necessary to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amount expected toalize®@. Income tax expense is the tax payablefandable for the period plus or minus the
change during the period in deferred tax assetdialbitities.

We assess our income tax positions anddeaea benefits for all years subject to examinmatiased upon our evaluation of the facts,
circumstances and information available at the m@mpdate. For those tax positions where theggéster than 50% likelihood that a tax benefit
will be sustained, we have recorded the largestuainaf tax benefit that may potentially be realizgubn ultimate settlement with a taxing
authority that has full knowledge of all relevamnfiormation. For those income tax positions wheezdhs a 50% or less likelihood that a tax
benefit will be sustained, no tax benefit has eeognized in the financial statements.

Our policy is to recognize interest andgiges on taxes, if any, within operations as inedax expense. We did not have any uncertain tax
positions at December 31, 2013 or 2012.

We are subject to U.S. federal and statatghority audits for the years from DecemberZ11,0 to December 31, 2013.
Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize compensation expense usiag-adlue-based method for costs related to allesbased payments, including stock options.
Stock-based compensation cost related to emplayebsdirectors is measured at the grant date, mas#te fair-value—based measurement of
the award using the Black-Scholes method, anccizgreized as expense over the requisite servicegeri a straight-line basis. We are required
to estimate forfeitures at the time of grant andseethose estimates in subsequent period if attd@itures differ from those estimates. We use
historical data to estimate pre-vesting optionditdres and record stock-based compensation expahséor those awards that are expected to
vest. We recorded stock-based compensation (bpaafitexpense for stoddased awards to employees and directors of appabeiyn$198,00(
$29,000 and $(57,000) for the years ended DeceBiher013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Options granted to individual service pd®rs that are not employees or directors are ateddor at estimated fair value using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing method and are subject tmgie re-measurement over the period during wihehservices are rendered.
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Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per common share is comptedividing the net loss by the weightaderage number of common shares outstanding d
the period. Potentially dilutive securities corigigtof stock options at December 31, 2013, 2012281id, and convertible preferred stock and
convertible promissory notes at December 31, 2022811 were not included in the diluted net losssq@mmon shares calculation because the
inclusion of such shares would have had an antiddeffect.

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 2011

(in thousands)
Convertible preferred stoc — 12,18t 12,18¢
Convertible promissory nott — 2,80( 2,471
Options to purchase common stc 1,794 1,30¢ 1,24¢
Total 1,79¢ 16,297 15,90«

The loss for the period ended DecembeB13 was adjusted, for purposes of the dilutedrmeime per share calculation, to reflect the
deemed contribution of $144.8 million. This refleetdeemed contribution of $148.1 million from éxehange of convertible preferred stock, a
deemed dividend of $1.0 million for the differerzetween the fair value of the shares of Seriescarivertible preferred stock and the price at
which shares were sold in June 2013, and an additieemed dividend of $2.3 million for the diffece between the fair value of the shares of
Series A-1 convertible preferred stock and theepaicwhich additional shares were sold in the sylosst Series A-1 closing in September 2013.

The diluted loss per share calculation mEsuthe conversion of outstanding shares of cableegreferred stock into common stock using
the as-if converted method.
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Basic

Numerator:

Net loss

Deemed contributio

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhsder
basic income per sha

Denominator

Weighte«-average common shares outstanc

Basic net income (loss) per common st

Diluted:

Numerator:

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhder
basic net loss per she

Deemed contributio

Net loss attributable to common stockholders fartdd net
loss per shar

Denominator

Weighted average number of common shares outsta
used in computing basic net (loss) income per comme
share

Dilutive effect of conversion of convertible Prefed stock

Weighte«-average number of common shares outstar
used in computing net loss per common s

Diluted net loss per common shi

Segment Reporting

The Company determines its segment repbi@sed upon the way the business is organizeddking operating decisions and assessing

Year Ended December 3.

2013 2012 2011

(in thousands, excep
per share data)

$ (60,259 $ (8,599 $ (11,209
144,76 — —

$ 8450t $ (8,599 $ (11,209

2,472,58 72,30: 72,302

$ 34.1¢ $ (118.80) $ (154.9)

$ 8450t $ (8,59) $ (11,209
(144,765 — —

$ (60,259 $ (8,599 $ (11,209

2,472,58 72,30: 72,30:
13,173,20 — —

15,645,78 72,30: 72,302

$ (3.85) $ (118.80 $ (154.9%)

performance. The Company has only one operatingeegrelated to the development of pharmaceuticalycts.

2. Convertible Notes Payable

In 2009, we issued $7.7 million of convelgipromissory notes (the 2009 Notes) to existirgggored stockholders. The 2009 notes inclt
a contingent redemption feature which provided, thpbn a change of control or other liquidationrgyéhe outstanding principal and accrued
interest would be converted to shares of our S&rigsonvertible preferred stock which were erditie a payment of liquidation preference
equal to three times the per share price of $2séd for the conversion in priority to any liquidatipayments to be made to any other series of

convertible preferred stock or common stock. O&diin the 2009 Notes had an interest rate of 10p@¥@nnum
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and original maturity date of September 30, 200&kvas subsequently extended to July 31, 201Juie 2011, the 2009 Notes were amendec
to increase the interest rate on the Note from%Q@®12.5% and to extend the maturity date to Déeerl, 2012.

In December 2010, we issued an additioridd $illion of convertible promissory notes (theleNotes) to existing preferred stockholders.
The 2010 Notes included a contingent redemptiotufeavhich provided that, upon a change of cordgralther liquidation event, the
outstanding principal and accrued interest woulddreverted to shares of our Series E-1 conventitdéerred stock which were entitled to a
payment of liquidation preference equal to thraeet the per share price of $2.41 used for the eeiorein priority to any liquidation payments
to be made to any other series of convertible preflestock or common stock. The 2010 Notes beatasiterms as the 2009 notes and,
originally had an interest rate of 10.0% per anramad an original maturity date of December 31, 20 December 2011, the 2010 Notes were
amended to increase the interest rate from 10.022.6% and to extend the maturity date of the Ntwtd3ecember 31, 2012.

In December 2012 the maturity dates for2b@9 Notes and the 2010 Notes were extended tib #pr2013 and in April 2013 the maturity
dates were extended again to June 15, 2013, withsach extension considered to be a modificatfaebt under ASC 470-50-40.

In June 2013, and prior to the maturityedaif the 2009 Notes and the 2010 Notes, our Bafdbirectors and the requisite stockholders
holders of the 2009 Notes and 2010 Notes agreeddoange the outstanding principal into sharesioSeries A-1 convertible preferred stock
in connection with a concurrent financing . Thelexage of the 2009 Notes and 2010 Notes was noagoirso the terms of the applicable Notes
so we accounted for the exchange as an extinguighohéhe original debt instrument under ASC 470480

At December 31, 2012, we had $20.9 milbbiconvertible notes payable which include printigfe15.1 million and accrued interest due
of $5.8 million. As of December 31, 2012, $6.5 iuoill of convertible promissory notes were held lgjractor of the Company.

3. Capital Structure
Authorized Capital Stock

We are authorized to issue 200,000,000eshaircommon stock and 10,000,000 shares of peefstock as of December 31, 2013. We had
57,225,000 shares of common stock and 45,322,684 slof preferred stock authorized as of Decembe2(®L2.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, zero3@h@ million shares of Series A-E convertible prefd stock were held by a director of the
Company, respectively.

Rights of Convertible Preferred Stock
During 2013 and prior to 2012 we issued laad outstanding several series of convertiblecpredl stock.
Anti-Dilution

In the event we sold or issued additiohales of preferred or common stock at a pricetless the original conversion price of the
convertible preferred stock of $1.36 per sharectresersion price
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was to be reduced pursuant to a weighted-averdgdiltion adjustment set forth in our amended asstated certificate of incorporation.
Conversion

Each 3.1 shares of convertible preferredkstvas convertible, at the stockholder's optiotg bne share of common stock. Additionally,
each share of convertible preferred stock was aaticaily converted into common stock, at the th&aetive conversion rate, upon (i) written
consent of 70% of the holders of the then outstamdhares of all convertible preferred stock votiggther, (i) in the event of a public offering
of our equity securities resulting in gross procetedus of $25.0 million or more and (jii) upon &féective date of any registration statement
filed with the SEC under the Securities Act or Exage Act.

Liquidation

In the event of any liquidation, dissolutior winding up of the Company, either voluntaryirawoluntary, including any merger,
consolidation or similar transaction:

. the holders of Series-1 were entitled to receive preference to Seri-2 and common stockholders to any distribution of
assets of the Company in an amount per share &xjtre sum of (a) $150,000,000, which amount shatkase by 6% per year
from the date of the filing of our amended andatest certificate of incorporation, compounded afipudivided by the aggrega
number of shares of preferred stock outstandiigvahg the final closing of the Series Afinancing, plus (b) accrued and ung
dividends (such per share amount referred to aS¢hies Preferred Liquidation Preference);

. the holders of Series-2 were entitled to receive preference to commocks$tolders to any distribution of any assets of
Company in an amount per share equal to the Seréferred Liquidation Preference and,

. the Series -1 and /-2 Preferred Stock carried a liquidation preferenic®146.8 million and $5.5 million, respective

After full payment of the Series A-1 andi8g A-2 liquidation preference amounts, the remmgiassets would be distributed ratably to the
holders of shares of common stock and convertitdéepred stock on an as-converted to common staslsb

The convertible preferred stock is classifas mezzanine equity outside stockholders' tiédicthe years ended December 31, 2012 be:
each series of preferred stock is subject to a dddiguidation clause that could potentially requiedemption of the preferred shares for cash a
a result of events outside the control of the Campa

We did not adjusted the carrying valuethefconvertible preferred stock to the liquidatpyaferences of such shares because it is uncertai
whether or when an event would occur that wouldgalté us to pay the liquidation preferences to éidaf shares of convertible preferred st
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Dividends

The holders of outstanding shares of cdiblerpreferred stock were entitled to receive, whed if declared by our Board of Directors, a
noncumulative dividend at an annual rate of 6%hefdriginal issue price of $1.36 per share. Sucileind was payable in preference to any
dividends payable to holders of shares of commacksdeclared by our Board of Directors. No dividehéve been declared to date.

Voting

Each share of convertible preferred st@rkied one vote for each share of common stockvifiich such shares of convertible preferred
stock may be converted.

Redemption
The convertible preferred stock has no-dpeific mandatory redemption feature.
4. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consist of the foithgy:

December 31

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Computers, software and equipm $ 351« $ 3,374
Furniture and fixture 89 107
Leasehold and tenant improveme 3,081 3,081
6,68¢ 6,56
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (6,377) (6,279

$ 307 $ 28

During 2012, we entered into a capital éefas certain computer equipment for $22,000. Tasslets under capital lease were $22,000 and
$54,000 of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectigegumulated depreciation for these assets wa9®12nd $37,000 at December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively.

Depreciation expense in 2013, 2012 and 2@4<$113,000, $154,000 and $333,000, respectively.
5. Income Taxes

We use the assets and liability methodctmant for income taxes in accordance with ASC Z@0come taxes. Under this method,
deferred income tax assets and liabilities areroeted based on differences between financial tepand tax bases of assets and liabilities
each balance sheet date, we evaluate the avadaidience about future taxable income and otherilplessource of realization of deferred
income tax assets, and record a valuation allowtrateeduces the deferred income tax assetsamannt that represents management's best
estimate of the amount of such deferred incomeasaets that more likely than not will be realiz&8C 470 also clarifies the accounting for
uncertainty in tax positions recognized in the ficial statements. We did not record a
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liability or an asset related to an uncertain tasion for the years ended December 31, 2013 a4d.2

Our effective tax rate differs from thetatary federal income tax rate, primarily as a hesfithe net operating loss carryforwards and
research credit carryforwards. For the years elmmber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 there was nontymrevision for federal or state income
taxes due to taxable losses incurred in each ofehes.

A reconciliation of the federal statutongdme tax rate to our effective income tax ratsigollows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Federal statutory income tax ri $ (20,489 $ (2,929 $ (3,809
Loss on settlement of not 18,88 — —
Nonr-deductible research and development ¢ — 33€ 32(C
Other 4 12 18
Net change in valuation allowan 1,60( 2,57¢ 3,471
Net effective tax rat $ — $ — $ —

The tax effect of temporary differenced tige rise to a significant portion of the defertex assets and liabilities at December 31, 2013
and 2012 is presented below (in thousands):

2013 2012
Deferred income tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 58,28t $ 57,78.
Research credi 24,27¢ 22,501
Depreciatior 84¢ 89z
Stocl-based compensatic 52 —
Accrued compensatic 137 168
Deferred revenu 3,89¢ 3,04¢
Gross deferred income tax asse 87,49¢ 84,38t
Valuation allowance (84,045 (81,076)
Net deferred income tax asset 3,45¢ 3,31-
Deferred income tax liabilities
Patent cost (2,929 (2,739
Licensing cost: (40¢) (455
Capitalized legal cos (119) (119
Gross deferred income tax liabilities (3,459 (3,317
Net deferred income tax asset/(liability’ $ — $ —

Due to the uncertainty surrounding theizaéibn of the benefits of our deferred tax assefature tax periods, we have placed a valuation
allowance against our deferred tax assets. The @oynp
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recognizes valuation allowances to reduce deféaedssets to the amount that is more likely thatrtabe realized. The Company's net defe
income tax asset is not more likely than not tedadized due to the lack of sufficient sourcesufife taxable income and cumulative book
losses that have resulted over the years. Durimgéhrs ended December 31, 2013, the valuatiowatice increased by $3.0 million; during
2012 the valuation allowance increased by $4.3anillin connection with the sale of common stockhie Company's initial public offering,
there was a change in ownership under Section 882 dnternal Revenue Code and related state gioms. Section 382 limits the amount of
net operating losses and tax credit forwards tteat be available after a change in ownership. Thag2my is reviewing the potential impact of
the section 382 limitations on its federal andestat operating loss and tax credit carryforwafti® Company's tax returns remain open to
potential inspection for the years ended 2010 atet.|

As of December 31, 2013, we had cumulatieoperating loss carryforwards for federal aagesincome tax purposes of $150.4 million
and $119.4 million respectively, and available ¢eedit carryforwards of approximately $13.7 millitor federal income tax purposes and
$10.5 million for state income tax purposes, wtdah be carried forward to offset future taxableme, if any.

Our federal net operating loss carryforgaggpire starting in 2019 and state net operatiagds expire starting in 2014. Federal tax credit
carryforwards expire starting in 2018. Utilizatiohthe net operating losses and tax credits wesgesuto a substantial annual limitation due to
the ownership changes which occurred on the saterafnon stock in our Initial Public Offering. Asesult of these changes, provisions in the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 under Section 38%anithr state provisions may result in the expirabf certain of our net operating losses
and tax credits before we could use them.

6. Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2010, the Board of Directord e requisite stockholders approved a stock @@Rian, the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the
2010 Plan). All options granted under the 2010 Riznto be made at prices not less than fair vafitiee stock at the date of grant. Options
granted under the 2010 Plan are exercisable aiusadates over their 10-year life. Generally, ooat®l of Directors grants options under our
2010 Plan with 100% of the shares initially subjectesting and where 25% of such shares vesteunrib-year anniversary of the date of grant
and 1/48 of the shares vest monthly thereafter.

Information with respect to stock optiongstanding is as follows:

December 31

2013 2012 2011
Exercisable option 1,203,88" 1,094,57. 914,70t
Weighted average exercise price per s

of exercisable optior $ 0.5¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.5¢
Weighted average grant date fair value

share of options granted during they $ 3.7¢ $ 034 $ 0.34
Options available for future grar 2,403,36! 753,69: 813,14:
Weighted average remaining contract

life 5.72 7.7¢ 8.7C
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The following table summarizes stock optiativity for the years ended December 31, 2013201®:

Weightec-
Average
Remaining

Weighted-

Average

Exercise

Number of Price
Shares (Per Share)(1)
Balances at December 31, 2( 1,245,39 $ 0.5¢
Options grante: 60,64 0.5¢
Options cancele (1,199 0.5¢
Balances at December 31, 2( 1,304,84 0.5¢
Options grante: 517,06: 4.2¢
Options cancele (5,30%) 0.5¢
Options exercised(: (22,39) 0.5¢
Balance at December 31, 2C _1,794,21 1.6€
As of December 31, 201

Options vested and expected to \ 1,458,84 $ 1.1¢€
Exercisable 1,203,88! 0.5¢

Contractual Aggregate
Term Intrinsic Value
(in years) (in thousands)(2)
8.7C —
7.7¢€ —
572 $ 13,42¢
48€ $ 11,64¢
3.8¢ % 10,29:

(1) The weighted average exercise price per sharagesni@ed using exercise price per share for stations.

(2) The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated aslifierence between the exercise price of the opinththe fair value of ol

common stock for in-the-money options at Decemlie2B13.

(3)  The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdiseas $191,000 for the years ended December 3B, Zbiere were no

option exercises in 2012 or 20:

The stock options outstanding and exertaslay exercise price at December 31, 2013 arelasvia

Stock Options Outstanding

Weighted- Stock Option Exercisable
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Range of Remaining Average Average
Contractual Exercise Price Exercise Price
Exercise Number of Term Number of
Prices Shares (in years) Per Share Shares Per Share
$0.59 1,277,15. 41z % 0.5¢ 1,203,880 $ 0.5¢
$4.25 502,06: 966 $  4.2¢ $  4.2r
$5.50 15,00( 9.9 $ 5.5C $ 5.5C
1,794,21. 5.72 $ 1.6¢€ 1,203,88! $ 0.5¢

We estimated the fair value of employee rowkemployee awards using the Black-Scholes vialuatodel. The fair value of employee
stock options is being amortized on a straighttiasis over the requisite service period of therdsvaMlanagement's estimates the probability of
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non-employee awards being vested based upon amegieal of the non-employee achieving their spegiécformance goals.

Options granted after our Initial Publicf®ing, are issued at the fair market value ofsiack at the date the grant is approved by ourd
of directors. For 2013 options granted prior to kmitial Public Offering, we used and estimated failue of $4.25 per share as determined b
board of directors based on input from managenfamtthe options granted in the year ended DeceBihe2012, we used an estimated fair
value per share of $0.59, originally determinecbby Board of Directors as of December 31, 2009.Us& the capital asset valuation model to
determine fair value with the following key assuiops: junior nature of the common stock to outsitagdonvertible preferred stock and
convertible preferred promissory notes, converslitution, minority status and the illiquid natureaur common stock.

The fair value of employee stock optionswatimated using the following weighted averagemptions for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011.

2013 2012 2011
Common stock fair value per sh: $5.50 $ 05¢ $ 0.5¢
Volatility 86.7% 63.7% 63.7%
Risk-free interest rat 0.9%- 2.19% 2.68% 2.6&%
Dividend yield — — —
Expected term (in year 6.0 6.C 6.C

Total employee, director and non-employteeksbased compensation expense recognized wati@asd:

Years Ended
December 31,
(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
General and administratiy $ 4C $ 19 $ (29
Research and developme 15¢ 1C (34)

$ 19t § 29 $ (57)

The expected term of stock options reprssiie average period the stock options are exgpéateemain outstanding. The expected stock
price volatility for our stock options for the yeagnded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was deseriny examining the historical
volatilities for industry peers and adjusting faffefences in our life cycle and financing leveralyglustry peers consist of several public
companies in the biopharmaceutical industry.

We determined the average expected ligaifk options based on the simplified method bexaus common stock has not been publicly
traded for an extended period and we do not harexck record of establishing the volatility. For@btion grants prior to our Initial Public
Offering we were a privately held company.

The risk-free interest rate assumptioreisdol on the U.S. Treasury instruments whose tescamsistent with the expected term of our
stock options.

The expected dividend assumption is basenlio history and expectation of dividend payouts.
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At December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, tleenartized compensation expense related to unvestéths was $895,000, $26,000 and
$45,000, respectively. The remaining unamortizedmensation expense will be recognized over the fgetars.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

Although we may be involved from time tmé in litigation incidental to our business, we aog currently aware of any ongoing, pending
or threatened litigation which would have a matexiverse effect on our financial position, resolt®perations and cash flows. However,
unforeseen litigation may be initiated by us orthiyd parties. Such litigation could adversely affeur business, financial position and results of
operations and divert our attention and resounmmes bther matters.

In 2009, we purchased certain computerpgent under a three-year capital lease. Total pag1tie under the capital lease are listed
below.

In 2011, we entered into an agreement itstlandlord to amend the terms of its existinglfigdease in Monrovia, California. The new
lease extends the term of the lease from Janudrg @0April 2015 and provides for a new rent paytsmmedule. The new lease is a hon-
cancelable operating lease. We are responsiblgttier lease related costs such as personal prdpggy, insurance, maintenance and utilities.

Future minimum payments under the non-dabte operating and capital leases consist ofdleviing at December 31, 2013 (in
thousands):

Capital
Equipment Operating
Years ending December 31 Lease Leases
2014 $ 9 % 62C
2015 1 21z
Thereafte! — —
Total $ 10 $ 832

Net rent expense for the years ended Deeeith 2013 and 2012 was $547,000 and $689,00Dfkit.

Guarantees

In the normal course of business, we indgnuertain employees and other parties, such Habmration partners and other parties that
perform certain work on behalf of, or for the Compar take licenses to our technologies. hawse bgweed to hold these parties harmless
against losses arising from our breach of repratiens or covenants, intellectual property infrimgat or other claims made against these
parties in performance of their work with us.

These agreements typically limit the timighim which the party may seek indemnification ksyand the amount of the claim. It is not
possible to prospectively determine the maximunempil amount of liability under these indemnificatagreements since we have not had any
prior indemnification claims on which to base tladcalation. Further, each potential claim wouldblased on the unique facts and circumstances
of the claim and the particular provisions of eagheement. We are not aware of any potential claimisdid not record a liability as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

119




Table of Content

Xencaor, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
8. 401(k) Plan

We have a 401(k) plan covering all full-éramployees. Employees may make pre-tax contritsitip to the maximum allowable by the
Internal Revenue Code. Participants are immediatedyed in their employee contributions and emplaolgcretionary contributions, if any. No
employer contributions were made for the years eémcember 31, 2013, 2012 or 2011.

9. Related Parties

On September 4, 2013, our Board of Directarthorized the forgiveness of the outstandingcjpal and interest of approximately
$166,000, under the promissory note from our Chiefcutive Officer, effective and contingent upoe filing of a registration statement on
Form S-1 for our initial public offering with the.B. Securities and Exchange Commission.

10. Conversion of Convertible Promissory Notes anBreferred Stock
In June 2013, our Board of Directors arelrgquisite holders of the 2009 Notes and 2010d\ote
and requisite preferred stockholders agteedseries of transactions as follows:

. an exchange of the outstanding principal due or2@89 Notes and 2010 Notes for shares of Ser-1 convertible preferre
stock and cancellation of the accrued and unpagigst thereon, pursuant to a Note Conversion Ageeé

. an exchange of the current outstanding sharesedéPed Series —E for Series 1 convertible preferred stock pursu
to the operation of provisions in our amended a&sthted certificate of incorporation;

. the sale of an additional $10.0 million in Serie-1 convertible preferred stock to existing stockleodd anc

. the conversion of certain shares of Seri-1 convertible preferred stock into shares of Sek-2 convertible preferre
stock at a conversion rate of 1 for 3, pursuafat heandatory conversion provision (e.g. a "pay &y'pprovision) in our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation.

The primary business purpose for this sesfaransactions was to raise an additional $1llomiof capital from the sale of shares of our
Series A-1 convertible preferred stock (the finagi The exchange of Notes, cancellation of interestatement of our certificate of
incorporation to effect the exchange of PreferredeS A—E for Series A-1 convertible preferred ktand the conversion of certain shares of
Series A-1 convertible preferred stock for shafeSasies A-2 convertible preferred stock were eafjotiated aspects of, and conditions to, the
financing. When considering the terms for the fiting, our Board of Directors took these conditiorte account and, ultimately, determined
that the financing was in the best interests ofGbmpany and our stockholders. Subsequent to appobthe financing by our Board of
Directors, the requisite stockholders and holdéth@Notes also approved this series of transastio

Under the terms of the Note Conversion &grent, the total outstanding principal due on th&bl as of June 13, 2013 was exchanged for
45,902,321 shares of Series A-1 convertible pre€estock, 5,303,597 of which were subsequently eded into 1,766,097 shares of Series A-2
convertible preferred stock. We determined thatpttreshare fair value of the shares of Series Arivertible preferred stock issued was $1.54
and the total fair value of the issued shares utideNote
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Conversion Agreement was $70.7 million and we raagl a loss on the exchange of $48.6 million lier difference in the fair value of the
shares of Series A-1 convertible preferred stoaktha carrying value of the Notes as of June 13320

The $48.6 million loss is reported on otat8ment of Operation as a Loss on Settlement té$\as an Other Expense for the year ended
December 31, 2013. Associated transaction cosid hDO00 related to the exchange were expensed.

After the exchange of the Notes, the ontlitey shares of Preferred Series A—E were exchafayeld977,137 shares of Series A-1
convertible preferred stock, 257,409 of which wasbsequently converted into 85,717 shares of Saresonvertible preferred stock. We
determined the fair value of the shares of Seridscanvertible preferred stock issued to be $3l0aniand we recorded a deemed contribution
to equity of $140.6 million equal to the differeriogthe fair value of the shares issued and theyicay value of the existing shares of Preferred
Series A—E. We record issuance costs related tpmederred stock sales as a reduction to paidiiitadaat the time the preferred securities are
issued and reflect the carrying value of the preféstock at the aggregate issuance price. Wed¢cese issuances as a non-cash equity
distribution at the date of redemption. The deepwribution has been adjusted to reflect $3.0iomilbf original issuance costs of the Prefel
Series A—E.

We determined that the value of the Seki@sconvertible preferred stock to be $0.58 pershA total of 1,851,814 shares of Series A-2
convertible preferred stock with a fair value of Binillion were issued in exchange for 5,561,006e8 of Series A-1 convertible preferred
stock with the fair value of $8.6 million. We recoged a deemed contribution of $7.5 million for thierence in the fair value of the shares of
Series A-2 convertible preferred stock issued itharge for the shares of Series A-1 convertibléepred stock.

On June 26, 2013 we sold 5,586,510 shdradditional Series A-1 convertible preferred stemlexisting stockholders at a purchase price
of $1.36 per share for aggregate proceeds of $illiormWe determined that the fair value of thess sold in June 2013 to be $8.6 million and
we recorded a deemed dividend of $1.0 million Fer difference in the sales price of the Seriescdiivertible preferred stock and the fair value
of the shares. The $40,000 of transaction costsetko the sale was recorded against Additional iR&Capital.

We determined that the fair value of thee3eA-1 and Series A-2 convertible preferred staslof June 26, 2013 was $1.54 and $0.58,
respectively. We used the probability-weighted exge return method (PWERM) to determine the falu@af the shares of the Series A-1 and
A-2 convertible preferred stock. PWERM is a scaméidsed analysis that estimates the value per bhaesl on the probabilityeighted preser
value of expected future investment returns, camsig each of the possible outcomes available tasisvell as the economic and control rights
of each share class.

On September 23, 2013 we sold 1,766,43Qiaddl shares of Series A-1 convertible preferstatk for gross proceeds of $2.4 million at a
purchase price of $1.36 per share. We determireeththvalue of the shares of Series A-1 convestiiseferred stock sold to be $4.7 million,
based on a per share fair value of $2.69, detedhbgeestimating the enterprise value of the Compgzsed on a projected offering price in an
initial public offering, and we recorded a deemeddnd of $2.3 million for the difference in theles price of the Series A-1 convertible
preferred stock and the fair value of
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
10. Conversion of Convertible Promissory Notes anBreferred Stock (Continued)
the shares. Transaction costs of $34,000 relatttbteale were recorded against Additional Paiddpital.
11. Initial Public Offering

On December 2, 2013, we commenced oualrgtiblic offering pursuant to a registration stagat on Form S-1 that was declared effective
by the SEC on December 3, 2013 and that registregjgregate of 14,639,500 shares of our commahk &iosale to the public at a price of
$5.50 per share and an aggregate offering prig@@{17,250. The net offering proceeds to us, dieucting underwriting discounts and
commissions and offering costs, were approxim&k@&B.5 million. Deferred offering costs as of Decem®1, 2013, consisted of legal,
accounting, printing and filing fees incurred i threparation of the Company's Registration Statéome Form S-1 as part of the Company's
IPO have been offset against the IPO proceeds thfgocompletion of the offering in December 2013.

12. Subsequent Events

We completed an evaluation of all subsefjgeents through the date the financial statemeate issued to ensure that this filing includes
appropriate disclosure of events both recognizeédérDecember 31, 2013 financial statements andtewvehich occurred but were not
recognized in the financial statements.

13. Condensed Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following table contains selected uritatifinancial data for each quarter of 2013 ant22@’he unaudited information should be read
in conjunction with the Company's financial statetseand related notes included elsewhere in tpigrteThe Company believes that the
following information reflects all normal recurriregljustments necessary for a fair presentatioheofrtformation for the periods presented. The
operating results for any quarter are not necdgsadicative of results for any future period.

Quarterly Financial Data (in thousands, except peshare data):

2013 Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
Total revenue $ 1348 $ 3921 $ 3,161 $ 1,74%
Loss from operation (3,96)) (1,00€) (1,849 (3,710
Net loss (4,612 (50,109 (1,83%) (3,709
Basic net loss per common sh (63.7¢) 1,341.6° (57.87) (0.39)
Diluted net loss per common shi $ (63.7¢) $ (3.8¢) $ (57.87) $ (0.39)

2012 Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
Total revenue $ 3,121 $ 240 $ 1,57¢ $ 2,42¢
Loss from operation (622) (1,087 (1,999 (2,529
Net loss (1,209  (1,69)) (2,590 (3,119

Basic and diluted net loss per commonsl $ (16.62 $ (23.39) $ (35.82) $ (43.09)
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accotamts on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procesithat are designed to ensure that informatiguired to be disclosed in our periodic and
current reports that we file with the SEC is reealdprocessed, summarized and reported withirirtteeferiods specified in the SEC's rules and
forms, and that such information is accumulated@rdmunicated to our management, including ourf@xecutive officer and principal
financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timelgcisions regarding required disclosure. In desmyaind evaluating the disclosure controls and
procedures, management recognized that any coatrdiprocedures, no matter how well designed ardatgd, can provide only reasonable
not absolute assurance of achieving the desiretict@bjectives. In reaching a reasonable levelssurance, management necessarily was
required to apply its judgment in evaluating thetdzenefit relationship of possible controls and pdages. In addition, the design of any sys
of controls also is based in part upon certainragsions about the likelihood of future events, #mete can be no assurance that any design will
succeed in achieving its stated goals under adirgi@ future conditions; over time, control maybme inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or the degree of compliance with pekodor procedures may deteriorate. Because of lisednt limitations in a cost-effective control
system, misstatements due to error or fraud mayraoed not be detected.

As of December 31, 2013, we carried ougaluation, under the supervision and with theigipgtion of our management, including our
chief executive officer angrincipal financial officer, of the effectivenesktbe design and operation of our disclosure céstmad procedures,
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) undeEtwhange Act. Based on this evaluation, our chietative officer and principal financial
officer concluded that our disclosure controls pratedures were not effective at the reasonableasse level as of December 31, 2013. We
have identified material weaknesses in our intecoatrols over financial reporting. The principatfors that contributed to this material
weakness were revenue recognition as it relatpeofgerly recording negotiated terms and conditiareur product development partnerships
and license agreements and the misapplication gtF5#ith respect to the timing of the recognitiorre¥enue for such agreements.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

This Annual Report does not include a repbmanagement's assessment regarding internabtomer financial reporting or an attestat
report of our registered public accounting firm do@ transition period established by the ruleghefSEC for newly public companies.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal cbver financial reporting identified in managertievaluation pursuant to Rules 13a-15(d) or
15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act during the quartefeghDecember 31, 2013 that materially affecte@drereasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.

Iltem 9B. Other Information
Not applicable.

123




Table of Content

PART IlI
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprate Governance

We have adopted a code of ethics for dirscbfficers (including our principal executiveioér, principal financial officer and principal
accounting officer) and employees, known as theeGQdBusiness Conduct and Ethics. The Code of Bgsi€onduct and Ethics is available on
our website ahttp://www.xencor.comnder the Corporate Governance section of our tové®lations page. We will promptly disclose om ou
website (i) the nature of any amendment to thecpdhat applies to our principal executive offigarincipal financial officer, principal
accounting officer or controller, or persons perforg similar functions and (ii) the nature of angiver, including an implicit waiver, from a
provision of the policy that is granted to onelufge specified individuals that is required to iseldsed pursuant to SEC rules and regulations,
the name of such person who is granted the wanettee date of the waiver.

The other information required by this itamd not set forth below will be set forth in tleeons headed "Election of Directors" and
"Executive Officers" in our Proxy Statement for @14 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, or Proxy &tagnt, to be filed with the SEC within
120 days after the end of the fiscal year endec&Béer 31, 2013, and is incorporated herein by eafay.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item viiik set forth in the section headed "Executed Cosgtiem" in our Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficihfOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Mégrs

The information required by this item wik set forth in the section headed "Security Owriprsf Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management" in our Proxy Statement and is incotpdrherein by reference.

The information required by Item 201(d)Regulation S-K will be set forth in the section thed "Executive Compensation” in our Proxy
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

The information required by this item vk set forth in the section headed "Transactiorth Rélated Persons” in our Proxy Statement
is incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item viiik set forth in the section headed " RatificatibBelection of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm" in our Proxy Statement and is ipaated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

1. Financial Statements. We have filed the following documents as path@ Annual Report:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimg 9C
Balance Shee 91
Statements of Operatio 92
Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock and Siders' Equity
(Deficit) 93
Statements of Cash Flo\ 94
Notes to Financial Statemet 95

2. Financial Statement Schedules All scheduled have been omitted because theyeairapplicable or required, or the
information required to be set forth therein iduged in the Financial Statements or notes thénetaded in Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

3. Exhibits.

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatioth® Company (incorporated |
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Curregpidrt on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC
on December 11, 201:

3.2  Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (incatpd by reference to Exhibit 3.2
the Company's Current Report on For-K, filed with the SEC on December 11, 201

4.1  Form of Common Stock Certificate of the Compangdgiporated by reference
Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Registration StatensenfEorm S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobér, 2013).

4.2 Third Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agre¢nageed June 26, 2013, among
Company and certain of its stockholders incorparatereference to Exhibit 4.2 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, asdet (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201

10.7*  Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Companyi@ndirectors and officel
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlpany's Registration Statement on
Form S-1, as amended (File No. 3B3t689) , originally filed with the SEC on Octolisr,
2013).

10.2x  Xencor, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, as amendad Form of Stock Option Gra
Notice, Option Agreement and Form of Notice of Exse (incorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Registration StateémerForm S-1, as amended
(File No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

10.2*  Xencor, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan and Fornstifck Option Agreement and Form
Stock Option Grant Notice thereunder (incorpordtgdeference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, asdet (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.¢

10.5*

10.€

10.7

10.&

10.¢

10.1¢*

10.17

10.12

10.1%

10.1#

Xencor, Inc. 2013 Employee Stock Purchase Plam(porated by reference
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Registration Statdrar-orm S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Xencor, Inc. No-Employee Director Compensation Policy (incorpordigdeference t
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Registration StatemerForm S-1, as amended
(File No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Second Amended and Restated Executive Employmensieftent, dated January 1, 20
by and between the Company and Dr. Bassil |. Dalfigaorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's Registration StatemearForm S-1, as amended

(File No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Offer Letter, dated January 12, 2010, by and betwee Company and Dr. Edgar
Baracchini, Jr. (incorporated by reference to EiHib.7 to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 33889 1originally filed with the SEC
on October 11, 2013

Offer Letter, dated September 28, 2009, by and éetvthe Company and Dr. Bruce Ca
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to tlpany's Registration Statement on
Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-191689), orilyifitled with the SEC on October 11,
2013).

Amendment to Offer Letter, dated November 18, 2@}0and between the Company ¢
Dr. Bruce Carter (incorporated by reference to BitHi0.9 to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 33889 1originally filed with the SEC
on October 11, 2013

Amended Consulting Agreement, dated January 1,,2814&nd between the Company ¢
Development and Strategic Consulting Associate€ [ihcorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Company's Registration Statgroa Form S-1, as amended

(File No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Offer Letter, dated August 1, 2012, by and betwttenCompany and Dr. Paul Fos
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to@wmpany's Registration Statement on
Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-191689), orilyifited with the SEC on October 11,
2013).

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreerdated September 4, 2013,
and between the Company and Dr. Bassil I. Dahipab(porated by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to the Company's Registration Statgmea Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Offer Letter, dated September 5, 2013, by and betwiee Company and Dr. Edgat
Baracchini, Jr. (incorporated by reference to EitHib.13 to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 33889 1originally filed with the SEC
on October 11, 2013

Amended and Restated Severance Agreement, datéeh8ep 5, 2013, by and betwe

the Company and Dr. John R. Desjarlais (incorpdrbatereference to Exhibit 10.14 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, andet (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.1%

10.1¢&

10.17t

10.1¢&t

10.1¢t

10.2¢t

10.21t

10.2zt

10.2¢t

10.24t

Amended and Restated Change in Control AgreemataddSeptember 5, 2013, by ¢
between the Company and John J. Kuch (incorpotatedference to Exhibit 10.15 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, anded (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201

Offer Letter, dated August 12, 2013, by and betweernCompany and Dr. Paul Fos
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to@wnpany's Registration Statement on
Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-191689), orilyifited with the SEC on October 11,
2013).

GPExX®-Derived Cell Line Sale Agreement, dated Decembef@11, by and between t
Company and Catalent Pharma Solutions, LLC (incatead by reference to Exhibit 10.17
to the Company's Registration Statement on Form&s-amended (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201

Development and Manufacturing Services AgreemeatediSeptember 15, 2005, by ¢
between the Company and Catalent Pharma Solufiormsdrly Cardinal Health PTS, LL(
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to@mwmpany's Registration Statement on
Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-191689), orilyifitled with the SEC on October 11,
2013).

Collaboration and License Agreement, dated Jun@@I0, by and between the Compi
and MorphoSys AG (incorporated by reference to Eixhi0.19 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amendegl Keil 333-191689), originally filed
with the SEC on October 11, 201

First Amendment to the Collaboration and Licenseeggnent, dated March 23, 2012,
and between the Company and MorphoSys AG (incotpaiay reference to Exhibit 10.20
to the Company's Registration Statement on Formas-amended (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201

Collaboration and Option Agreement, dated Decer@BeP010, by and between t
Company and Amgen, Inc. (incorporated by refereéadexhibit 10.21 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amendeg Keil 333-191689), originally filed
with the SEC on October 11, 201

Clinical Supply Agreement, dated October 1, 2032ald between the Company and C
Pharmica LLC (incorporated by reference to ExHiloif22 to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 33889 1originally filed with the SEC
on October 11, 2013

Option and License Agreement, dated January 28,281and between the Company i
Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (incorporated by mefiee to Exhibit 10.23 to the Compar
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amendegl Keil 333-191689), originally filed
with the SEC on October 11, 201

Collaboration Agreement, dated February 10, 20§ rid between the Company ¢
Boehringer Ingelheim International GmbH (incorperhby reference to Exhibit 10.24 to
the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-apreended (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201
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lszj(pr:ggr Description
10.2t  Office Building Lease, dated May 12, 2000, by artileen the Company and |
Monrovia, LLC, as amended on November 1, 2011 ¢mo@ted by reference to
Exhibit 10.25 to the Company's Registration Statgrme Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

10.2¢t  Cros«-License Agreement, dated December 19, 2012, byeatween the Company a
MedImmune, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhili.26 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amendeel Kfeil 333-191689), originally filed
with the SEC on October 11, 201

21.1  Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by refeedo Exhibit 10.26 to the Compan
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amendesl Kfeil 333-191689), originally filed
with the SEC on October 11, 201

23.1  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

24.1 Power of Attorney. Reference is made to the sigegtage heretc

31.1  Certification of the Principal Executive Officergsuant to Rule 1:-14(a) or 15-14(a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 19

31.z  Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pauwant to Rule 1:-14(a) or 15-14(a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 19:

32.1** Certification of the Principal Executive Officerpsuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2** Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pmwant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

t We have received confidential treatment for cerpairtions of this agreement, which have been ochted filed
separately with the SEC pursuant to Rule 406 utigeSecurities Act of 1933, as amended.

* Indicates management contract or compensatany. pl
** These certifications are being furnished solelgdcompany this annual report pursuant to 18 U.SeCtion 1350, and are
not being filed for purposes of Section 18 of tleeBities Exchange Act of 1934 and are not to berjporated by

reference into any filing of the Company, whethede before or after the date hereof, regardleasyfjeneral
incorporation language in such filin

128




Table of Content

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sectioorlb(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, @ompany has duly caused this Annual
Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalfit®yundersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Xencor, Inc.

Date: March 31, 2014 By: /s/ BASSIL I. DAHIYAT, PH.D.

Bassil I. Dahiyat, Ph.D.
President & Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that eackrgon whose signature appears below constituteagants Bassil |. Dahiyat,
Ph.D. and John J. Kuch, and each of them, hisamddawful attorneys-in-fact, each with full powsrsubstitution, for him in any and all
capacities, to sign any amendments to this AnnegbR on Form 10-K and to file the same, with eithithereto and other documents in
connection therewith, with the Securities and ExgfeaCommission, hereby ratifying and confirmingtladit each of said attorneys-in-fact or
their substitute or substitutes may do or causetdone by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seesrixchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report omi&0-K has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Company andchin¢apacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ BASSIL |. DAHIYAT, PH.D. Director, President & Chief Executi

Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

March 31, 201«
Bassil I. Dahiyat, Ph.C

s/ JOHN J. KUCH Vice President, Finance (Principal

Financial and Accounting Officer)

March 31, 2014
John J. Kuct

/s/ BRUCE L.A. CARTER, PH.D.

Chairman of the Board of Directors March 31, 2014
Bruce L.A. Carter, Ph.C

/s/ ROBERT F. BALTERA, JR.

Director March 31, 2014
Robert F. Baltera, J

/sl JIONATHAN FLEMING

Director March 31, 2014
Jonathan Flemin
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Signature Title Date

/s/ JOHN S. STAFFORD Il

Director March 31, 201«
John S. Stafford Il
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Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

3.1

4.1

4.2x

10.7*

10.2*

10.%*

10.¢*

10.5*

10.€*

10.7*

10.8*

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiothn® Company (incorporated |
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Curresppd®t on Form 8-K, filed with the
SEC on December 11, 201

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (incatpd by reference to Exhibit &
to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, fikéth the SEC on December 11,
2013).

Form of Common Stock Certificate of the Compangdiporated by reference
Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Registration Stateno@nEorm S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobér, 2013).

Third Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreénaeted June 26, 2013, amc

the Company and certain of its stockholders incaigal by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-apeended (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201

Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Companyindirectors and officer
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tleerpany's Registration Statement on
Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-191689) , albyiriiled with the SEC on
October 11, 2013

Xencor, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, as amendad Form of Stock Option Gra
Notice, Option Agreement and Form of Notice of Eise (incorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Registration Statdroar-orm S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Xencor, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan and Fornstifck Option Agreement and Fo
of Stock Option Grant Notice thereunder (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, anded (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201

Xencor, Inc. 2013 Employee Stock Purchase Plam(pwrated by reference
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Registration Statdroar-orm S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Xencor, Inc. No-Employee Director Compensation Policy (incorpordigdeference t
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Registration StatedmearForm S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Second Amended and Restated Executive Employmemeftent, dated January

2007, by and between the Company and Dr. Bad3atiyat (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's Registration Stegiet on Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Offer Letter, dated January 12, 2010, by and betvtlee Company and Dr. Edgar
Baracchini, Jr. (incorporated by reference to EitHib.7 to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No.133%89), originally filed with the SE
on October 11, 2013

Offer Letter, dated September 28, 2009, by and éetvthe Company and Dr. Bru
Carter (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8e Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No.133%89), originally filed with the SE
on October 11, 2013
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.¢*

10.1¢*

10.17

10.1%

10.1%

10.1#

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1%t

10.1¢t

10.1¢t

Amendment to Offer Letter, dated November 18, 2@30and between the Company
Dr. Bruce Carter (incorporated by reference to BitHi0.9 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amendeg il 333-191689), originally filed
with the SEC on October 11, 201

Amended Consulting Agreement, dated January 1,,281&nd between the Compe
and Development and Strategic Consulting Associates (incorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.10 to the Company's Registration Statgme Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Offer Letter, dated August 1, 2012, by and betwidbenCompany and Dr. Paul Fos
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to@wnpany's Registration Statement on
Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-191689), orilyifited with the SEC on

October 11, 2013

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreerdateéd September 4, 2013,
and between the Company and Dr. Bassil |. Dahipab(porated by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to the Company's Registration Statgme Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Offer Letter, dated September 5, 2013, by and testvtlee Company and Dr. Edgal
Baracchini, Jr. (incorporated by reference to ExHiB.13 to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No.133%89), originally filed with the SE
on October 11, 2013

Amended and Restated Severance Agreement, datezh8eg 5, 2013, by and betwe
the Company and Dr. John R. Desjarlais (incorpdrhiereference to Exhibit 10.14 to
the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-apeended (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201

Amended and Restated Change in Control AgreemateddSeptember 5, 2013, by ¢
between the Company and John J. Kuch (incorpotatedference to Exhibit 10.15 to
the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-apeended (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201

Offer Letter, dated August 12, 2013, by and betwenCompany and Dr. Paul Fos
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to@wnpany's Registration Statement on
Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-191689), orilyifited with the SEC on

October 11, 2013

GPEx®-Derived Cell Line Sale Agreement, dated DecembeP@11, by and betwe
the Company and Catalent Pharma Solutions, LL®(parated by reference to
Exhibit 10.17 to the Company's Registration Statgme Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Development and Manufacturing Services AgreemeriediSeptember 15, 2005, by ¢
between the Company and Catalent Pharma Solutiomadrly Cardinal Health

PTS, LLC) (incorporated by reference to ExhibitlBto the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No.133%89), originally filed with the SE
on October 11, 2013

Collaboration and License Agreement, dated Jun@@I0, by and between t
Company and MorphoSys AG (incorporated by referéadexhibit 10.19 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, anded (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.2¢t

10.21t

10.2:t

10.2%t

10.2¢4t

10.2¢

10.26°

211

23.1
24.1

31.1

31.z2

32.1%*

32.2*

First Amendment to the Collaboration and Licenseeggent, dated March 23, 2012,
and between the Company and MorphoSys AG (incotpotay reference to

Exhibit 10.20 to the Company's Registration Statgme Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Collaboration and Option Agreement, dated DecerdBeP010, by and between t
Company and Amgen, Inc. (incorporated by refereéadexhibit 10.21 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amendeg il 333-191689), originally filed
with the SEC on October 11, 201

Clinical Supply Agreement, dated October 1, 2032aihd between the Company ¢
Cook Pharmica LLC (incorporated by reference toiBixi0.22 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amendeg il 333-191689), originally filed
with the SEC on October 11, 201

Option and License Agreement, dated January 28,21and between the Compe
and Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 10.23 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, anded (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201

Collaboration Agreement, dated February 10, 20¢ 2 between the Company ¢
Boehringer Ingelheim International GmbH (incorpethby reference to Exhibit 10.24 to
the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-apeended (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201

Office Building Lease, dated May 12, 2000, by artideen the Company a

BF Monrovia, LLC, as amended on November 1, 20ddofiporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.25 to the Company's Registration Statgme Form S-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-191689), originally filed with the SEC on Octobdr, 2013).

Cros«-License Agreement, dated December 19, 2012, byetween the Company a
Medimmune, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhili.26 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amendeg il 333-191689), originally filed
with the SEC on October 11, 201

Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by refegeo Exhibit 10.26 to th
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, anded (File No. 333-191689),
originally filed with the SEC on October 11, 201

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Power of Attorney. Reference is made to the sigegtage heretc

Certification of the Principal Executive Officerguant to Rule 1:-14(a) or 15-14(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 19:

Certification of the Principal Financial Officer ppuwant to Rule 1:-14(a) or 15-14(a) ol
the Securities Exchange Act of 19:

Certification of the Principal Executive Officerguant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Principal Financial Officer ppuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

T We have received confidential treatment for cerpairtions of this agreement, which have been ochted filed
separately with the SEC pursuant to Rule 406 utideSecurities Act of 1933, as amenc
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* Indicates management contract or compensatory

*x These certifications are being furnished sol&yaccompany this annual report pursuant to 18Q@J.Section 1350, and are
not being filed for purposes of Section 18 of tleeBities Exchange Act of 1934 and are not to berjporated by
reference into any filing of the Company, whetherde before or after the date hereof, regardleasyfeneral
incorporation language in such filin
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

Xencor, Inc.
Monrovia, California

We hereby consent to the incorporationgfgrence in the Registration Statement on Forn{I$e8333-191689) of Xencor, Inc. of our
report dated March 31, 2014, relating to the fingrgtatements which appears in this Form 10-K.

/s BDO USA, LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 31, 2014
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Bassil I. Dahiyat, Ph.D., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Repartrmrm 10-K for the fiscal year ended December2B813 of Xencor, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a matagabr omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nigiaglisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldich this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the Company as of, andfferperiods presented in this report;

4. The Company's other certifying daffis) and | are responsible for establishing anithtaiaing disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%¢r the Company and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controlsmaodedures, or caused such disclosure controlproogdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Company, including its consolidatatsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of thenGany's disclosure controls and procedures anémiext in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conttntbprocedures, as of the end of the period coumrehlis report based on such
evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any chaimgthe Company's internal control over financigloging that occurred during the
Company's most recent fiscal quarter (the Compdaytsh fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrgghat has materially affected, or
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Comparigternal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Company's other certifying daffis) and | have disclosed, based on our most revatuation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the Company's auditors and the auaiimittee of the Company's board of directors @spns performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and nrééweaknesses in the design or operation of fiatlezontrol over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Camgtsaability to record, process, summarize andntdpeancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not materibkttinvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the Company's
internal control over financial reporting.

/sl BASSIL |I. DAHIYAT

Bassil I. Dahiyat, Ph.D.
President & Chief Executive Offic

Date: March 31, 2014
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUA NT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, John J. Kuch, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Repartrmrm 10-K for the fiscal year ended December2B813 of Xencor, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a matagabr omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nigiaglisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldich this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the Company as of, andfferperiods presented in this report;

4. The Company's other certifying d#fiis) and | are responsible for establishing anthtaiaing disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%¢r the Company and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controlsmaodedures, or caused such disclosure controlproogdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Company, including its consolidatatsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of thenGany's disclosure controls and procedures anémiext in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conttntsprocedures, as of the end of the period coumrehlis report based on such
evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any chaimgthe Company's internal control over financigloging that occurred during the
Company's most recent fiscal quarter (the Compdaytsh fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrgghat has materially affected, or
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regsii's internal control over financial reportingdan

5. The registrant's other certifyinfjar(s) and | have disclosed, based on our mestteevaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the Company's auditors and the auadiimittee of the Company's board of directors @spns performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and nrééweaknesses in the design or operation of fialezontrol over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the tegig's ability to record, process, summarize amert financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not materibkttinvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the Company's
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ JOHN J. KUCF

John J. Kuch
Vice President, Finance (Principal Financial
Officer)

Date: March 31, 2014
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 2002
(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapte8 6f Title 18, United States Code)

In connection with the Annual Report oniadr0-K of Xencor, Inc. (the "Company") for the metiended December 31, 2013, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thetdaef (the "Report™), |, Bassil |. Dahiyat, Ph.Bs, President and Chief Executive Office
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®b0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tHeaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my
knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with treguirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéesrExchange Act of 1934, as amended;
and

2. theinformation contained in the B fairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

Date: March 31, 201 /s/ BASSIL |. DAHIYAT

Bassil I. Dahiyat, Ph.D.
President & Chief Executive Offic

The foregoing certification is being fulmésl solely to accompany the Report pursuant to.83@J § 1350, and is not being filed for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchargef1934, as amended, and is not to be incorpdray reference into any filing of the
Company, whether made before or after the datehergardless of any general incorporation languagsuch filing. A signed original of this
written statement required by Section 906 has Ipeavided to the Company and will be retained byGeenpany and furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




QuickLinks
Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sadsa@xley Act of 2002 (Subsections (a) and (b) afti®a 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18,
United States Code)



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 2002
(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapte8 6f Title 18, United States Code)

In connection with the Annual Report oniadr0-K of Xencor, Inc. (the "Company") for the metiended December 31, 2013, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thetdaif (the "Report™), I, John J. Kuch, as Princkiaancial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, agptatbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Gdepf 2002, that to my knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with thegjuirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&iesrExchange Act of 1934, as amended;
and

2. the information contained in the Befairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

Date: March 31, 201 /s/ JOHN J. KUCF

John J. Kuch
Vice President, Financ

The foregoing certification is being fulmésl solely to accompany the Report pursuant to.83@J § 1350, and is not being filed for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Excharg@f1934, as amended, and is not to be incorpdtay reference into any filing of the
Company, whether made before or after the datehergardless of any general incorporation languagsuch filing. A signed original of this
written statement required by Section 906 has peavided to the Company and will be retained byGoenpany and furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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